
Regular Planning Commission Meeting
City Council Chambers
18747 Clarkdale Avenue

Artesia, CA 90701
(562) 865-6262

 
 

Tuesday, June 17, 2025
7:00 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This is the portion of the meeting set aside to invite public comments regarding any matter within
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Planning Commission. Public comments may also be submitted
by email at publiccomments@cityofartesia.us before 12:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Public
comments are limited to no more than three minutes each. If comments relate to a specific agenda
item, those comments will be taken following the staff report for that item and prior to the Planning
Commission vote. Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the Planning Commission is prohibited
from taking action on items that are not listed on the agenda, but may refer the matter to staff or to
a subsequent meeting. Those wishing to speak are asked to add your information at the digital
public kiosk located at the entrance of the Council Chamber.

4.A. Public Comments

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

5.A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

— Recommendation: Approve Minutes as Presented for March 10, 2025 - Special Meeting, and
May 20, 2025 - Regular Meeting.

6. NEW BUSINESS - NON-PUBLIC HEARING - NONE

7. NEW BUSINESS - PUBLIC HEARING



7.A. Case No. 2024-06 - Artesia Downtown Specific Plan

— Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 2025-17P, Recommending That the City Council
Adopt Environmental Findings, a Statement of Overriding Considerations, a Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program, and Certify the Environmental Impact Report, for the
Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, and Amendments to the General Plan and the Zoning Code in
Accordance With the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA);

— Adopt Resolution No. 2025-18P, Recommending That the City Council Approve Amendments
to the General Plan To Modify Various Tables, Maps, and Text To Reflect the New Artesia
Downtown Specific Plan;

— Adopt Resolution No. 2025- 19P, Recommending That City Council Adopt Ordinance No. 25-
971 Establishing the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan; And

— Adopt Resolution No. 2025-20P, Recommending That the City Council Adopt Ordinance No.
25-972 To Amend the City of Artesia Zoning Code and Zoning Map To Reflect the New Artesia
Downtown Specific Plan.

8. DISCUSSION / REPORT ITEMS FROM STAFF - NONE

9. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR UPDATES

10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

11. ADJOURNMENT

The City of Artesia complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  If you require special assistance to attend or participate in
this meeting, please call the City Clerk’s office at 562-865-6262 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  Copies of Staff Reports are on file

in the Office of the City Clerk and are available for inspection. 

Date Posted: June 13, 2025



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:   June 17, 2025  ITEM NO:   5A.

 
TO: Honorable Chairperson and Members of the Planning Commission

 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

 

FROM: Steven Valdez, Acting Planning Manager
 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:
  Sal Lopez, Interim Community Development Director

Abel Avalos, City Manager

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Planning Commission approve minutes as presented for the following meeting(s):

March 10, 2025 - Special Meeting
May 20, 2025 - Regular Meeting

 
BACKGROUND:
The attached minutes serve as the official record of the City Council meetings, recording the legislative body’s
decisions, recorded in its motions, actions, and votes, as mandated by Government Code 36814 and 40801.
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approval of this item.

Attachments

PC MINUTES 3-10-25.pdf
PC MINUTES 5-20-25.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F684b6a75b45c09005b7c60a1%2FPC%20MINUTES%203-10-25.pdf?alt=media&token=07bf89a2-3063-4f62-bd43-ea78bcd8e3ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F684b6a75b45c09005b7c60a1%2FPC%20MINUTES%203-10-25.pdf?alt=media&token=07bf89a2-3063-4f62-bd43-ea78bcd8e3ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F684b6a75b45c09005b7c60a1%2FPC%20MINUTES%203-10-25.pdf?alt=media&token=07bf89a2-3063-4f62-bd43-ea78bcd8e3ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F684b6a75b45c09005b7c60a1%2FPC%20MINUTES%205-20-25.pdf?alt=media&token=ac77ce55-fe2b-470a-8535-89305cd8b53b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F684b6a75b45c09005b7c60a1%2FPC%20MINUTES%205-20-25.pdf?alt=media&token=ac77ce55-fe2b-470a-8535-89305cd8b53b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F684b6a75b45c09005b7c60a1%2FPC%20MINUTES%205-20-25.pdf?alt=media&token=ac77ce55-fe2b-470a-8535-89305cd8b53b


Artesia Planning Commission Regular Meeting 
Council Chambers, 18747 Clarkdale Avenue, Artesia, California 

Tuesday, March 10, 2025, 7:00 p.m. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Manalo called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioner Diaz led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

3. ROLL CALL 
Present: Chair Manalo, Vice Chair Michelle Diaz, Commissioner Chirag Patel,  
Absent: Commissioner Paul Barcelos, Commissioner Maurice Pantoja 

Staff Present: City Manager Avalos, Interim Community Development Manager Sal 
Lopez; Acting Planning Manager Bill Rodrigues; City Clerk Jennifer Alderete; Deputy City 
Attorney Nick Papajohn. 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Public comments could be provided in person or submitted by email to 
publiccomments@cityofartesia.us by 12:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting. No public 
comments were provided.  
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR - NONE 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS - NON-PUBLIC HEARING - NONE 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS - PUBLIC HEARING 
7A. Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the proposed Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (ADSP) 
Art Bashmakian, Contract Planner provided the staff report. Alan Loomis and Jennifer 
Kelly consultants from Placeworks, presented the Draft EIR. Chair Manalo opened the 
public hearing. Artesia resident, Lorelei Bailey provided comments on behalf of Strong 
Towns in support of the project over the alternatives because it best supports the needs 
of the community, and identified areas that could be improved upon. Chair Manalo closed 
the public hearing. Chair Manalo, Vice Chair Diaz, and Commissioner Patel asked 
questions and/or provided comments.  
 

8. DISCUSSION / REPORT ITEMS FROM STAFF – NONE 
 

9. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR UPDATES 
Interim Community Development Manager Lopez provided updates with input from City 
Manager Avalos. 
 

10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 



Chair Manalo, and Vice Chair Diaz asked questions and/or provided comments.  
 

11. ADJOURNMENT:  
Chair Manalo adjourned the meeting at 8:39 pm.  
 



Artesia Planning Commission Special Meeting 
Council Chambers, 18747 Clarkdale Avenue, Artesia, California 

Tuesday, May 20, 2025, 7:00 p.m. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Manalo called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM.  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chair Manalo led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

3. ROLL CALL 
Present: Chair Manalo, Vice Chair Michelle Diaz, Commissioner Chirag Patel, 
Commissioner Maurice Pantoja 
Absent: Commissioner Paul Barcelos 

Staff Present: City Manager Avalos, Interim Community Development Manager Sal 
Lopez, Acting Planning Manager Steve Valdez, City Clerk Jennifer Alderete, Deputy City 
Attorney Nick Papajohn. 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Public comments could be provided in person or submitted by email to 
publiccomments@cityofartesia.us by 12:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting. No public 
comments were provided.  
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
5A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Recommended Action: Approve Minutes as Presented for February 18, 2025 – Regular 
Meeting, and March 3, 2025 - Special Meeting. 
 
Vice Chair Diaz moved, seconded by Commissioner Pantoja, to approve Agenda Item 
5A, as recommended.  
 
Motion Carried, 5-0-1-0 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS - NON-PUBLIC HEARING - NONE 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS - PUBLIC HEARING 

7A. Case No. 2023-01: Zoning Code Amendment, Zoning Text Amendment and Zone Map 
Amendment Pertaining To Mixed Use Overlay 
Recommendation: Consider Adoption Resolution No. 2025-06P, Recommending That the 
City Council Approve a Proposed Zoning Code Amendment Establishing a Mixed Use 
Overlay (Mu-O) Zone (Case No. 2023-01), Amend the City of Artesia Zoning Map, and 
Certify a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report for the Proposed Zoning Code 
Amendment; Including the Following Actions, and Recommend That the City Council 
Consider Case No. 2023-01: 



Adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; And 
Direct Staff to File Notice of Determination  
 
Interim Community Development Manager Lopez introduced Christine Kudija, Willdan 
Contract Principal Planner, who provided the staff report. Interim Community Development 
Manager Lopez and Chad Brown, Wildan Contract Planner provided clarifications. Chair 
Manalo opened the public hearing. Artesia resident, Lorelei Bailey provided comments on 
behalf of Strong Towns expressing her support. Mindy Gellar, representing the property at 
176th St and Pioneer Blvd. provided public comment and stated she is pro-development, 
but expressed concern regarding parking. Chair Manalo closed the public hearing. Chair 
Manalo, Vice Chair Diaz, and Commissioner Patel asked questions and/or provided 
comments.  
 
Commissioner Pantoja moved, seconded by Commissioner Patel, item as 
recommended.  
 
Motion Carried, 5-0-1-0 
 
7B. Case No. 2024-22: General Plan Amendment, Amendment to the Artesia Live Specific 
Plan, Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance, Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 84570, 
Design Review and Mitigated Negative Declaration for Project Located at 17610 & 17618 
Pioneer Boulevard 
Recommendation: Consider Adoption the Following Resolutions and Recommend That 
the City Council Consider Case No. 2024-22: 
Resolution No. 2025-13P, Recommending That the City Council Adopt the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (Sch #2025040131) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the Pioneer 
Place Mixed Use Project at17610 & 17618 Pioneer Boulevard (Assessor Parcel Numbers 
7033-007-016, 7033-007-017 &7033-007-018) (Case No. 2024-22), and Approve the 
Project; 
Resolution No. 2025-08P, Recommending That the City Council Approve an Amendment 
to the General Plan To Modify the Description of the City Center Mixed Use Land Use 
Designation by Adding the Following Sentence “Residential Density May Exceed 70 
DU/AC Subject to Approval of a Specific Plan” and To Add Footnote “3” to Table Lu-3 in 
the General Plan to Provide: “Residential Density May Exceed 70 Du/AC Subject to 
Approval of a Specific Plan”; 
Resolution No. 2025-09P, Recommending That the City Council Adopt Ordinance No. 25-
968To Amend the Artesia Live Specific Plan; 
Resolution No. 2025-10P, Recommending That the City Council Adopt Ordinance No. 25-
968To Approve an Amendment to the City of Artesia Zoning Code To Amend the 
Description of the Artesia Live Specific Plan To Reflect the New Pioneer Place Mixed Use 
Development Project (Case No. 2024-22); 
Resolution No. 2025-11P, Recommending That the City Council Approve Vesting Tentative 
Tract Map No. 84570 to Subdivide the Land Located at 17610 & 17618 Pioneer Boulevard 
(Assessor Parcel Numbers 7033-007-016, 7033-007-017 & 7033-007-018) for 83 
Residential Condominiums (Case No. 2024-22); And 



Resolution No. 2025-12P, Approving a Design Review Application To Construct a Six-Story 
Mixed Use Development Consisting of 83-Unit Residential Condominiums and a 1,600 
Square Foot Rooftop Restaurant (Pioneer Place Mixed Use) at 17610 & 17618 Pioneer 
Boulevard (Assessor Parcel Numbers 7033-007-016, 7033-007-017 & 7033-007-018) 
(Case No. 2024-22) 
 
Interim Community Development Manager Lopez introduced Art Bashmakian, Contract 
Principal Planner, who provided the staff report. Mr. Bashmakian read in the record a 
correction on Resolution No. 2025-13P and Resolution 2025-08P: 
In Section 1, “…Footnote # 3 to Table LU-3…” should read “…Footnote #3 to Table LU-
4” in both resolutions.  
Chair Manalo opened the public hearing. Artesia resident, Lorelei Bailey provided 
comments on behalf of Strong Towns expressing her support for the project. Mindy Gellar, 
representing the property at 176th St and Pioneer Blvd. provided public comment and 
stated she thinks it is a great project, but expressed concerns regarding parking. Chair 
Manalo closed the public hearing. Chair Manalo, Vice Chair Diaz, and Commissioner Patel 
asked questions and/or provided comments.  
 
Commissioner Pantoja moved, seconded by Commissioner Patel, Resolution No. 2025-
13P, as recommended, with two amendments.  
 
Motion Carried, 4-0-1-0 
 
Vice Chair Diaz moved, seconded by Commissioner Pantoja, Resolution No. 2025-08P, 
as recommended, with two amendments.  
 
Motion Carried, 4-0-1-0 
 
Commissioner Patel moved, seconded by Commissioner Pantoja, Resolution No. 2025-
09P, as recommended.  
 
Motion Carried, 4-0-1-0 
 
Vice Chair Diaz moved, seconded by Commissioner Pantoja, Resolution No. 2025-10P, 
as recommended. 
 
Motion Carried, 4-0-1-0 
 
Commissioner Patel moved, seconded by Commissioner Pantoja, Resolution No. 2025-
11P, as recommended.  
 
Motion Carried, 4-0-1-0 
 
Commissioner Pantoja moved, seconded by Commissioner Patel, Resolution No. 2025-
12P, as recommended.  



 
Motion Carried, 4-0-1-0 
 

8. DISCUSSION / REPORT ITEMS FROM STAFF – NONE 
 

9. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR UPDATES 
Interim Community Development Manager Lopez provided updates. 
 

10. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Chair Manalo, and Vice Chair Diaz asked questions and/or provided comments.  
 

11. ADJOURNMENT:  
Chair Manalo adjourned the meeting at 8:30 pm.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:   June 17, 2025  ITEM NO:   7A.

 
TO: Honorable Chairperson and Members of the Planning Commission

 
SUBJECT: Case No. 2024-06 - Artesia Downtown Specific Plan

 

FROM: Sal Lopez, Interim Community Development Director
 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:
  Best Best & Krieger LLP, City Attorney's Office

Abel Avalos, City Manager

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2025-17P recommending that the City Council adopt environmental findings, a
statement of overriding considerations, a mitigation monitoring and reporting program, and certify the
Environmental Impact Report, for the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, and amendments to the General Plan
and the Zoning Code in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2025-18P recommending that the City Council approve amendments to the General
Plan to modify various tables, maps, and text to reflect the new Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.

3. Adopt Resolution No. 2025- 19P recommending that City Council adopt Ordinance No. 25- 971 establishing
the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.

4. Adopt Resolution No. 2025-20P recommending that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 25-972 to amend
the City of Artesia Zoning Code and Zoning Map to reflect the new Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.

PROPOSAL

The Planning Commission will consider adopting a specific plan, known as the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan
(ADSP or Plan), which will provide development guidance for a 70.8-acre area within the City of Artesia (City). The
boundary of the ADSP is shown on the map below:

Under California State law, the governing body (e.g., City Council) of a local government is required to adopt a
comprehensive, long-term General Plan for the physical development of the municipality.  A municipality may
prepare and adopt a Specific Plan to help implement the municipality’s General Plan for a particular geographic
subarea of the community.  A Specific Plan is incorporated into the General Plan, providing more detailed land use
information and establishing the primary means of development guidance within the project area outlined in the
community’s General Plan. By law, Specific Plans must include, among other items, the following:

Explanation of the relationship to and consistency with the General Plan;
Location and distribution of land uses, including the amount of each type and the development densities and
intensities;
Development standards and guidelines for each land use;



Transportation circulation, other infrastructure, and public facilities to support the planned level of
development; and
Implementation strategies, including financing of infrastructure

Once a Specific Plan is adopted, development applications for the area are reviewed by the municipality to ensure
consistency with the Specific Plan and other applicable governing land use documents in the community.

BACKGROUND:
 
The Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) plans to construct the Southeast Gateway
Line (SGL), which includes a future station at Pioneer Boulevard (see page 1–7 of the Plan for the map of the
SGL). Upon completion of the SGL, Downtown Artesia will have a direct public transit connection to Downtown Los
Angeles.  Pioneer Station will directly connect Artesia with major destinations and employment centers in the region
—Downtown Los Angeles, Union Station, and South Los Angeles.  Transferring at Union Station, passengers can
connect to destinations as far as Santa Monica, Los Angeles International Airport, Pasadena, East Los Angeles,
Azusa, and Pomona.

Upon completion, the SGL terminus station will enhance the City's Downtown and establish Artesia as the  gateway
between Los Angeles and Orange Counties.  The City Council approved a grant agreement between the City and
Metro on August 22, 2016, to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, thereby facilitating new
transit-oriented development.  A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the City and Metro as
the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded.

The City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with PlaceWorks on April 10, 2023, to prepare the
Specific Plan.  Since April of 2023, PlaceWorks and City staff hosted community workshops, and other events to
hear from various members of the community. On September 12, 2023, a study session was held during a special
meeting of the Planning Commission to gather feedback from the Commission and the public regarding the
proposed Plan.  On September 25, 2023, a similar study session was held before the City Council.

After many months of work, on February 28, 2025, the City of Artesia released the draft Artesia Downtown Specific
Plan (Plan) for public review.  Concurrently with the release of the draft Plan, the City also released a Draft
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for public review and comment.  The DEIR was made available for public
review and comment from February 28, 2025 through April 14, 2025.  To further facilitate public participation, on
March 10, 2025 a special meeting of the Planning Commission was held, which provided additional opportunity for
the public, other agencies and the Planning Commission to comment on the DEIR during the 46-day public review
period.

Artesia Downtown Specific Plan Overview/Summary

The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area encompasses 70.8 acres, including the blocks adjoining Pioneer
Boulevard to the southeast and ending at 180th Street to the north. The northern portion of the project site (north of
Metro’s Southeast Gateway Line light rail project) is bounded by Alburtis Avenue and Corby Avenues to the west,
180th Street to the north, Arline Avenue to the east, and 188th Street to the south. The project site extends south of
the Southeast Gateway Line to the future Pioneer Boulevard light rail station and includes the area between 188th

Street and the La Belle Chateau Mobile Home Park, Pioneer Boulevard on the east, and Jersey Avenue on the west.

To facilitate new transit-oriented development, the Plan will implement new land use, zoning, and development
standards, thereby creating incentives for new investment in the downtown. The Plan encourages new
opportunities for jobs, housing, recreation,  entertainment, and retail as the city prepares for the Metro extension.

The Plan will dictate the scale of future development growth in Artesia’s Downtown district, enhance pedestrian
and bicyclist experience, curate community gathering spaces and create a sense of place.



The Vision of the Plan includes the preservation of residential uses along Corby Avenue, Airline Avenue and at the
mobile home park at the south end of downtown.  Large commercial parcels along 183rd Street and South Street
present opportunities for new 4–5 story mixed-use development and creating gateway anchors at the north and
south ends of Downtown. The downtown core connects the north and south anchors with small-scale boutique
shopping, dining, and entertainment, in a manner analogous to traditional shopping malls anchored by department
stores. In addition to existing on-street parking, additional parking is provided via a parking structure adjacent to
the transit station and at the north gateway, accommodating visitors arriving southbound along Pioneer Boulevard
from the 91 Freeway. The area south of 188th Street and west of Corby Avenue features infill development with a
mix of low-intensity residential, commercial, office, and retail uses that complements the residential character of
the neighborhood.

The Plan divides the project site into six zoning districts, allowing for a range of land uses and densities within a
defined building envelope.  Chapter 6.0 of the ADSP presents standards and guidelines for development, including
allowable densities and height, as well as required setbacks, open space, and parking standards.  Chapter 5.0
outlines the uses permitted by right and uses subject to a Conditional Use Permit in the six zoning districts
described below. The Plan establishes goals and objectives, development standards, and implementation actions
related to land use, mobility, and infrastructure. It outlines a transit-oriented plan that will provide new opportunities
for housing, retail, commercial, and entertainment uses. The six zoning districts are as follows:

Downtown North. The Downtown North District encompasses 15.3 acres and would become the northern
gateway and anchor to downtown Artesia. This district would allow for higher density mixed-use development
at 65 dwelling units per acre (du/ac). The southwest corner of this district would allow four- to five-story
mixed-use development and two- and three-story townhomes. Where the city owns property at the northwest
corner of 183rd Street and Pioneer Boulevard, a public-private partnership would be encouraged for
development of a public parking structure with ground-floor retail uses. The parking structure would serve
visitors, residents, and employees as they travel to and from Downtown Artesia and the 91 freeway to the
north. The post office at 183rd Street and Albertis Avenue is expected to remain.
Pioneer Boulevard. The Pioneer Boulevard District encompasses 8.8. acres, fronts Pioneer Boulevard north of
the future Metro transit station and is in the center of downtown Artesia. This area is composed of narrow
parcels with a continuous street frontage of one-story commercial establishments such as restaurants,
markets, jewelry shops, and other retail establishments. Although significant new development is not
expected in this district, the district would allow for three-story buildings at 50 du/ac or 60 du/ac by utilizing
the Downtown Density Bonus Program.
Downtown South. The Downtown South District encompasses 23.1 acres and would become the southern
gateway to downtown Artesia and the City. The district would allow four- to six-story mixed-use development
at 75 du/ac and incorporate land uses such as ground-floor retail, a hotel, townhomes, and neighborhood
parks for residents and visitors. A Metro parking structure[1] is planned in the South Street Mixed District just
south of the transit station.
188th Street / Corby Avenue. The 188th Street/Corby Avenue District encompasses 4.6 acres and would be
south of the future Metro station; it presently includes residential and light industrial uses. This district would
allow for residential uses such as duplex, triplex, and townhomes at 65 du/ac and commercial office and
retail in a horizontal mixed-use format.
Downtown Neighborhood. The Downtown Neighborhood District encompasses 9.4 acres and would be in the
residential west and east edges of the Downtown area along Corby Avenue and Arline Avenue. The downtown
neighborhood would retain its residential character at 40 du/ac.
Chateau Estates. The Le Belle Chateau Estates Mobile Home Park District encompasses 9.6 acres and sits at
the southern edge of the project site. The mobile home park use would be maintained in this district. The
Chateau Estates District would retain its residential character at 11 du/ac.



After the draft ADSP was released for review and presented to the Planning Commission, various comments were
received, including comments from other agencies.  In response to the comments, the draft ADSP has been slightly
modified.  The substantive modifications include the following:

In response to the City of Cerritos’s concern regarding the allowable height of buildings that may be near
adjacent single-family homes in the City of Cerritos, setback development standards have been updated to
include Special Setbacks adjacent to low-density residential that require portions of building above 30 feet in
height to step back and not exceed a 45 degree angle height limit (page 6-9 of the ADSP).
Standards were added to address the conversion of existing units into live-work units.
The minimum open space requirement was revised to 150 square feet per unit, down from 200 square feet
per unit, consistent with past practice and typical transit-oriented downtown development standards.

There are several other, non-substantive changes.  These, along with the three changes mentioned above, are listed
in Attachment 5 (Edits between the first draft and the current draft).

Draft Resolution No. 2025-19P (Attachment #3) provides evidence and applicable information, including findings
supporting the adoption of the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.

General Plan Amendment

The Artesia General Plan 2030 identifies the Zoning Ordinance and Specific Plans as the most important
implementation mechanisms for the Land Use Sub-Element.  California state law requires the Zoning Ordinance
and Map to be consistent with the Land Use Element and Diagram; similarly, all provisions of Specific Plans must
be consistent with the General Plan. 

Adoption of the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan requires amending the land use designations of the Land Use Sub-
Element of the General Plan for portions of the project site that are currently designated City Center Mixed-Use,
South Street Gateway Commercial and High Density Residential (see Attachment #7). The amendment would
revise the existing designations within the Plan area to the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. The amendment would
also add the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan as a Land Use Designation, along with its description and definition,
to the list of Land Use Designations on pages LU-9 and LU-10 of the General Plan.  And finally, the amendment
would also modify Tables LU-3 and LU-4 of the General Plan and incorporate the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.

Cities may amend general plans and general plan elements in the manner provided for in Article 6 (Sections
65350–65362) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code.  Government Code Section 65353
states the Planning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing before approving a recommendation on the
adoption or amendment of a General Plan.  Government Code 65354 states that the Planning Commission shall
make a written recommendation on the adoption or amendment of a general plan. A recommendation for approval
shall be made by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the total membership of the Commission, and
the Commission must send its recommendation to the legislative body (City Council).

Draft Resolution No. 2025-18P (Attachment #2) provides an analysis of the project’s consistency with relevant
General Plan policies and provides evidence in support of the amendment.

Zoning Amendment

The Artesia General Plan 2030 requires that the adoption of a Specific Plan be accompanied by an amendment to
the Artesia Municipal Code (Title 9, Chapter 2 - Zoning) to acknowledge the approved Specific Plan and establish a
Specific Plan Zone for it.  A Specific Plan Zone must include the name of the Specific Plan, followed by the
parenthetical designation “SP” and a reference number that corresponds to the name of the specific plan.  The
Zone Text Amendment involves amending Section 9–2.3453 (Specific Plan Zones and Zoning Map Designations)
of the Zoning Code to add the “Artesia Downtown Specific Plan” as an approved and established Specific Plan
Zone.  The amended Zoning Code Section would state the following:



Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, a copy of which is on file in the Office
of the City Clerk, has been prepared to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s
Downtown districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line (Southeast
Gateway Line). The 70.8-acre Plan area includes the blocks adjoining Pioneer Boulevard, beginning with the
area around the future Pioneer Station to the south and ending just beyond 183rd Street to the north.  To the
east and west, the area is bounded by Arline, Corby, and Alburtis Avenues. The area further extends south
along Pioneer Boulevard within the City of Artesia and includes the area between 188th Street and the Le
Belle Chateau Estates Mobile Home Park, and Pioneer Boulevard to Jersey Avenue. The area covered by the
Artesia Downtown Specific Plan shall be established as the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan (ADSP) Zone,
and shall be designated on the Zoning Map by the designation “ADSP.” Properties within the ADSP Zone shall
be subject to specific plan recovery fees, as set forth by City Council resolution and authorized by Chapter 7
(Specific Plan Recovery Fees) of Title 3 (Finance) of the Artesia Municipal Code. (Ord. 666, § 12; Ord. 12-778,
§ 12; Ord. 16-834 § 11).

The Zone Map Amendment would designate the entire subject site, currently zoned Commercial General,
Commercial Planned Development, Light Manufacturing and Industrial, Multiple-Family Residential, Service &
Professional, and South Street Specific Plan to Artesia Downtown Specific Plan (see Exhibit “A” of Resolution No.
2025-20P (Attachment #4).

As the Zone Map Amendment would eliminate the existing South Street Specific Plan, the amendment will also
rescind the current reference to the South Street Specific Plan in Section 9–2.2453(b) of Article 34.5 in Chapter 2 of
the Zoning Law of the City of Artesia (Zoning Code).

Cities may amend zoning ordinances to change properties from one zone to another in the manner provided for in
Government Code Sections 65854–65857.  Government Code Section 65854 requires that the Planning
Commission hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment to a zoning ordinance.  Section 65855 requires that
after the hearing, the Planning Commission make a written recommendation to the City Council. The
recommendation must include the reasons for the recommendation, as well as the relationship of the proposed
ordinance or amendment to applicable general and specific plans. It shall transmit the recommendation to the City
Council.

Draft Resolution No. 2025-20P (Attachment #4) provides the analysis and findings in support of the proposed
Zoning Code Amendment to the text and map of the Zoning Code.

Environmental Analysis

In conformance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City prepared a Draft Environmental
Impact Report (DEIR), which analyzed potential environmental effects of adopting the ADSP. 

Per CEQA, the City sent a Notice of Availability (NOA) of the DEIR to various state, regional and local agencies
including public utilities and Native American Tribes, to solicit their input and comment on the DEIR during the 46
day public review period which commenced on February 28, 2025 and concluded on April 14, 2025.  During the 46-
day review period, the City received two comments.  One letter from the City of Cerritos and one letter from Lorelei
Baily, a resident of Artesia, who presented her letter during the March 10 Planning Commission meeting, on behalf
of Strong Towns Artesia.  The content of these letters and responses are included in Attachment #6 (Final
Environmental Impact Report (FEIR)).  The letters did not identify deficiencies in the DEIR or identify a new or
exacerbated significant environmental impact.  However, minor, non-substantive revisions were made to the DEIR,
which are shown in Attachment #6 (FEIR)

EIR Overview



This EIR fulfills the requirements for a Program EIR. Although the legally required contents of a Program EIR are the
same as for a Project EIR, Program EIRs are typically more conceptual than Project EIRs, with a more general
discussion of impacts, alternatives, and mitigation measures, commensurate with the level of detail available for a
project. According to Section 15168 of the CEQA Guidelines, a Program EIR may be prepared on a series of actions
that can be characterized as one large project.  Use of a Program EIR gives the lead agency an opportunity to
consider broad policy alternatives and program-wide mitigation measures as well as greater flexibility to address
project-specific and cumulative environmental impacts on a comprehensive scale. Since there is no particular
development project associated with the proposed ADSP, the Program EIR is appropriate in this case.

The purpose of the EIR is to serve as an informational document for the public and City of Artesia decision-makers.
The EIR is intended to provide decision-makers and the public with information that enables them to consider the
environmental consequences of the proposed action (the adoption of the ADSP) intelligently. This EIR identifies
significant or potentially significant environmental effects that cannot be mitigated to a level of less than
significant, as well as ways in which other identified impacts can be reduced to less-than-significant levels, whether
through the imposition of mitigation measures or through the implementation of specific alternatives to the project.
The EIR serves as a fact-finding technique, providing concerned citizens and agency staff with an opportunity to
collectively review and evaluate the project's impacts through a process of full disclosure.

Summary of Environmental Impacts and Mitigation Measures

Based on the scope of the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, significant and unavoidable impacts could result from
future development of the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan in the following areas:

Air Quality    
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Noise

A detailed discussion of these impacts can be found in Section 5.2 (Air Quality), Section 5.6 (Greenhouse Gas
Emissions) and Section 5.9 (Noise) of the DEIR.  Table 1-1, summarizing the impacts and mitigation measures, is
available in Chapter 1 (Executive Summary), pages 1–10 through 1–26 of the Draft Environmental Impact Report
(DEIR). 

CEQA requires that in the event an agency (e.g. city council) chooses to approve a project that includes significant
and unavoidable impacts which cannot be reduced to acceptable levels the agency must adopt a written Statement
of Overriding Considerations which identifies why the local agency is willing to accept the significant unavoidable
effect(s).  Resolution No. 2025-17P (Attachment #1) provides the findings in support of the Statement of
Overriding Consideration and recommends that the City Council adopt required findings, Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Plan, the Statement of Overriding Considerations, and certify the EIR. 

[1]   The planned Metro parking structure is part of the Southeast Gateway Line project (formerly West Santa Ana Branch Corridor Project) and is analyzed

in the West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor Project EIR (SCH No. 2017061007).

PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice of the public hearing was published on May 26, 2025, in the Long Beach Press-Telegram in a 1/8-page
display advertisement.  The notice regarding the June 17, 2025, Planning Commission public hearing was posted
on the City’s website on May 28, 2025.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2025-17P (Final Environmental Impact Report, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, and
Statement of Overriding Considerations).



2. Resolution No. 2025-18P (General Plan Amendment)
3. Resolution No. 2025-19P (Artesia Downtown Specific Plan)
4. Resolution No. 2025-20P (Zoning Map and Text Amendment)
5. List of edits between the first draft and the current draft of the ADSP
�. Final Environmental Impact Report, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, Findings and Statement of

Overriding Considerations
7. General Plan Land Use Map

 
 
 
 

Attachments

Attachment 1 - Resolution No 2025-017P (CEQA).pdf
Appendix-A to Attachment 1 - MMRP.pdf
Attachment 2 - Resolution No 2025-18P (General Plan Amendment).pdf
Attachment 3 - Resolution No 2025-19P (Establishing ADSP).pdf
Exhibit A to Attachment 3 - Ordinance No. 25-971(Adopting the ADSP).pdf
Attachment 4 - Resolution No 2025-20P (Zoning Code Amendment).pdf
Exhibit A to Attachment 4 - Ordinance No. 25-972 (Adopting Zoning Amendment).pdf
Attachment 5 - ADSP Edits.pdf
Attachment 6 - FEIR, MMRP, SOOC.pdf
Attachment 8 - General Plan Land Use Map.pdf

https://www.cityofartesia.us/DocumentCenter/View/8478/DASP_June2025_withAppendicesV2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-017P%20(CEQA)-c1.pdf?alt=media&token=a35caec5-3ea1-4461-b370-e00d3fc81fc1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-017P%20(CEQA)-c1.pdf?alt=media&token=a35caec5-3ea1-4461-b370-e00d3fc81fc1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-017P%20(CEQA)-c1.pdf?alt=media&token=a35caec5-3ea1-4461-b370-e00d3fc81fc1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FAppendix-A_ADTSP%20MMRP_Final_05.29.25_OPT.pdf?alt=media&token=67f9b6b6-a0f5-4028-bd50-3f9baddafb9a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FAppendix-A_ADTSP%20MMRP_Final_05.29.25_OPT.pdf?alt=media&token=67f9b6b6-a0f5-4028-bd50-3f9baddafb9a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FAppendix-A_ADTSP%20MMRP_Final_05.29.25_OPT.pdf?alt=media&token=67f9b6b6-a0f5-4028-bd50-3f9baddafb9a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-18P%20(General%20Plan%20Amendment)-c1.pdf?alt=media&token=7a7f7b77-26de-4fa2-92b8-080a1452537e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-18P%20(General%20Plan%20Amendment)-c1.pdf?alt=media&token=7a7f7b77-26de-4fa2-92b8-080a1452537e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-18P%20(General%20Plan%20Amendment)-c1.pdf?alt=media&token=7a7f7b77-26de-4fa2-92b8-080a1452537e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-19P%20(Establishing%20ADSP)-c1%20(3).pdf?alt=media&token=5191dca6-d02a-4174-83d0-4d32756f072d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-19P%20(Establishing%20ADSP)-c1%20(3).pdf?alt=media&token=5191dca6-d02a-4174-83d0-4d32756f072d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-19P%20(Establishing%20ADSP)-c1%20(3).pdf?alt=media&token=5191dca6-d02a-4174-83d0-4d32756f072d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20Ordinance%20No.%2025-971(Adopting%20%20the%20ADSP)-c1_sledits%20-%20CLEAN.pdf?alt=media&token=80b8b419-37be-476a-a572-819266ebeb1b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20Ordinance%20No.%2025-971(Adopting%20%20the%20ADSP)-c1_sledits%20-%20CLEAN.pdf?alt=media&token=80b8b419-37be-476a-a572-819266ebeb1b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20Ordinance%20No.%2025-971(Adopting%20%20the%20ADSP)-c1_sledits%20-%20CLEAN.pdf?alt=media&token=80b8b419-37be-476a-a572-819266ebeb1b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-20P%20(Zoning%20Code%20Amendment)-c1%20(3).pdf?alt=media&token=a9e6cbe7-86c1-4503-9756-63149140b3ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-20P%20(Zoning%20Code%20Amendment)-c1%20(3).pdf?alt=media&token=a9e6cbe7-86c1-4503-9756-63149140b3ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_ADSP%20PC%20Reso%20No%202025-20P%20(Zoning%20Code%20Amendment)-c1%20(3).pdf?alt=media&token=a9e6cbe7-86c1-4503-9756-63149140b3ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FARTESIA_ADSP%20Ordinance%20No.%2025-972%20(Adopting%20%20Zoning%20Amendment)-c1_sledits%20-%20CLEAN.pdf?alt=media&token=b843bd15-018f-4778-978b-c3ee156fea2d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FARTESIA_ADSP%20Ordinance%20No.%2025-972%20(Adopting%20%20Zoning%20Amendment)-c1_sledits%20-%20CLEAN.pdf?alt=media&token=b843bd15-018f-4778-978b-c3ee156fea2d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FARTESIA_ADSP%20Ordinance%20No.%2025-972%20(Adopting%20%20Zoning%20Amendment)-c1_sledits%20-%20CLEAN.pdf?alt=media&token=b843bd15-018f-4778-978b-c3ee156fea2d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_DSP_Edits_Feb-to-June2025v2%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=5fabb3a7-f2a5-4085-8322-e36556dd32ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_DSP_Edits_Feb-to-June2025v2%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=5fabb3a7-f2a5-4085-8322-e36556dd32ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FArtesia_DSP_Edits_Feb-to-June2025v2%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=5fabb3a7-f2a5-4085-8322-e36556dd32ed
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FADTSP_FEIR_Final_OPT%5B27%5D.pdf?alt=media&token=cc196e7e-7176-4dc3-8da7-dc8b3af0861b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FADTSP_FEIR_Final_OPT%5B27%5D.pdf?alt=media&token=cc196e7e-7176-4dc3-8da7-dc8b3af0861b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FADTSP_FEIR_Final_OPT%5B27%5D.pdf?alt=media&token=cc196e7e-7176-4dc3-8da7-dc8b3af0861b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FAttachment%208%20General%20Plan%20Land%20Use%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=3a651421-b44d-456f-a6cd-d75be19607b6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FAttachment%208%20General%20Plan%20Land%20Use%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=3a651421-b44d-456f-a6cd-d75be19607b6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/artesiaca%2Factions%2F6848c303359f51005f9c2986%2FAttachment%208%20General%20Plan%20Land%20Use%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=3a651421-b44d-456f-a6cd-d75be19607b6


 1 

CITY OF ARTESIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-17P 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF ARTESIA RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY 
COUNCIL ADOPT A MITIGATION MONITORING AND 
REPORTING PROGRAM, A STATEMENT OF 
OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS AND CERTIFY 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT STATE 
CLEARINGHOUSE (SCH) No. 2024020999) RELATED TO 
THE ADOPTION OF THE ARTESIA DOWNTOWN 
SPECIFIC PLAN, AND THE RELATED AMENDMENTS TO 
THE GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING CODE PURSUANT TO 
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

(CEQA) (CASE NO. 2024-06) 

_____________________________________________________ 
 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ARTESIA DOES HEREBY 
FIND, ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Artesia City Council, on August 22, 2016, approved a grant 
agreement between the City of Artesia and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Metro”) to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (“Plan”).  A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the 
City and Metro, as the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded.  

SECTION 2. The Plan would implement new land use, zoning, and development 
standards to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown 
districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line 
(Southeast Gateway Line).  The Plan, in conjunction with amendments to the General 
Plan and the Zoning Code, constitutes the “Project”. 

SECTION 3. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
(Public Res. Code § 21000 et seq.), the State CEQA Guidelines (14 CCR § 1500 et seq.), 
the City of Artesia (the “City”) is the lead agency for the Project, as the public agency with 
general governmental powers.  

SECTION 4. The City, as lead agency, determined that an Environmental Impact 
Report (“EIR”) should be prepared pursuant to CEQA in order to analyze all potential 
adverse environmental impacts of the Plan. 

SECTION 5. The City issued a Notice of Preparation (“NOP”) of a Draft EIR on 
February 27, 2024, and circulated the NOP to the State Clearinghouse, public agencies, 



 2 

special districts, responsible and trustee agencies and other interested parties; and was 
filed with the Los Angeles County Clerk and made available at the Artesia Public Library 
and Artesia City Hall, Planning Department and on the City’s website.  

SECTION 6. A public scoping meeting was held during the public review period 
on March 4, 2024, at the City of Artesia’s Albert O. Little Community Center.  

SECTION 7. The City received comments in response to the Notice of Preparation 
(NOP), which assisted the City in refining the scope and analysis as it prepared the Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR).  

SECTION 8. On February 28, 2025, the City initiated the 45-day public review 
period of the DEIR by filing a Notice of Availability with the State Office of Land Use and 
Climate Innovation, publishing the Notice in the Los Cerritos Community Newspaper a 
newspaper of general circulation, and releasing the DEIR (State Clearinghouse [SCH] 
No. 2024020999) for public review and comment.  

SECTION 9. During the 46-day review period, the City received two comments on 
the DEIR, and prepared responses to those comments and made appropriate changes 
to the DEIR. Those changes, comments and responses were made a part of the Final 
EIR for the Project. 

SECTION 10. On March 10, 2025, the Planning Commission held a meeting 
and provided an additional opportunity for the public to comment on the Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) and the draft Plan. 

SECTION 11. The Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) includes the 
DEIR, the received comments, responses to the comments, modifications to the DEIR 
text, the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), and a Statement of 
Overriding Consideration. 

SECTION 12. On Jun 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing to consider the Final EIR, the proposed Project (the Plan), and all 
other relevant information contained in the administrative record regarding the Project, 
including all oral and written evidence presented to it during all meetings and hearings. 

SECTION 13. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council 
make the following environmental findings and determinations: 

A. The Draft and Final EIRs, including the technical appendices and responses 
to comments, were prepared, circulated and completed in compliance with 
CEQA. 

B. Revisions have been appropriately made to the Draft EIR, and such 
revisions, including responses to comments, and other documents related 
to the Draft EIR have been made a part of and incorporated into the Final 
EIR as shown in Exhibit A, incorporated herein. 



 3 

C. The revisions made to the Draft EIR and incorporated into the Final EIR do 
not require recirculation of the Draft EIR because no significant new 
information has been added that would deprive the public of a meaningful 
opportunity to comment on a substantive adverse environmental effect of 
the project. 

D. Economic, planning, social, aesthetic, and environmental benefits of the 
Project against the Project’s unavoidable adverse impacts outweigh the 
potential unavoidable adverse impacts, and recommends City Council 
adopt a Statement of Overriding Considerations (Exhibit B Findings of Fact) 
for the Project.   

E. The Planning Commission recommends City Council direct staff to file a 
Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Clerk and the 
Governor’s Office of Land Use and Climate Innovation within five (5) 
working days of approval of the Project.  

F. The custodian of records for the Final EIR, MMRP and all other materials 
which constitute the record of proceedings upon which the Planning 
Commission’s decision is based upon, is the Planning Department of the 
City of Artesia.  Those documents are available for public review in the 
Planning Department of the City of Artesia, located at 18747 Clarkdale 
Avenue, California 90701, telephone (562) 865-6262. 

SECTION 14. The Interim Community Development Director shall certify to 
the adoption of this Resolution and shall forward a copy of it to the City Clerk and to the 
City Council. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2025. 

 
        
  Victor Manalo, Chairperson   

ATTEST: 

 
      ____________  
Salvador Lopez, Interim Community Development Director   
 
 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:   COMMISSIONERS:  
NOES:   COMMISSIONERS:   
ABSENT:   COMMISSIONERS:  
ABSTAIN:   COMMISSIONERS:  



June 2025 | Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
State Clearinghouse No. 2024020999

ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
City of Artesia 

Prepared for: 

City of Artesia 
Salvador Lopez, Jr., Interim Community Development Director 

18747 Clarkdale Avenue 
Artesia, California 90701 

562.865.6262 

Prepared by: 

PlaceWorks 
Contact: Addie Farrell, Principal 

700 Flower St, Suite 600 
Los Angeles, California 90017 

213.623.1443 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 

A-1
~ PLACEWORKS 



A-2



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Table of Contents 

June 2025 Page i 

Section Page 

1. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................. 1 
1.1 PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ............................ 1 
1.2 PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS ....................................................................................................................... 2 
1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS ........................................................................................................................ 5 

2. MITIGATION MONITORING PROCESS ......................................................................................... 7 
2.1 MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM ORGANIZATION ........................................................... 7 
2.2 DISPUTE RESOLUTION .................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.3 ENFORCEMENT ................................................................................................................................................. 8 

3. MITIGATION MONITORING REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................. 9 
3.1 PREMONITORING MEETING ...................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 CATEGORIZED MITIGATION MEASURES/MATRIX ......................................................................... 9 
3.3 IN-FIELD MONITORING ................................................................................................................................ 9 
3.4 DATABASE MANAGEMENT .......................................................................................................................... 9 
3.5 COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTORS ................................................................................................ 9 
3.6 LONG-TERM MONITORING ........................................................................................................................ 9 

4. MITIGATION MONITORING REPORTS ....................................................................................... 21 
4.1 FIELD CHECK REPORT ................................................................................................................................ 21 
4.2 IMPLEMENTATION COMPLIANCE REPORT ...................................................................................... 21 
4.3 DISPUTE/ENFORCEMENT REPORT ...................................................................................................... 21 

5. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT ...................................................................................................... 23 
6. REPORT PREPARATION ............................................................................................................. 25 

6.1 LIST OF PREPARERS ....................................................................................................................................... 25 

List of  Tables 

Table Page 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements .............................................................................................. 11 

A-3



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Table of Contents 

Page ii PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

A-4



June 2025 Page 1 

1. Introduction 
1.1 PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 

PROGRAM 
The City of  Artesia (City) is the lead agency for the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan (proposed 
project) and has developed this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) as a vehicle for 
monitoring and ensuring the successful implementation of  mitigation measures outlined in the City of  Artesia 
proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR), State Clearinghouse No. 
2024020999. As the lead agency, the City is responsible for implementing the MMRP, which has been prepared 
in conformance with Section 21081.6 of  the California Public Resources Code, as follows: 

(a) When making findings required by paragraph (1) of  subdivision (a) of  Section 21081 or 
when adopting a mitigated negative declaration pursuant to paragraph (2) of  subdivision 
(c) of  Section 21080, the following requirements shall apply: 

(1) The public agency shall adopt a reporting or monitoring program for the changes made 
to the project or conditions of  project approval, adopted in order to mitigate or avoid 
significant effects on the environment. The reporting or monitoring program shall be 
designed to ensure compliance during project implementation. For those changes which 
have been required or incorporated into the project at the request of  a responsible agency 
or a public agency having jurisdiction by law over natural resources affected by the project, 
that agency shall, if  so requested by the lead or responsible agency, prepare and submit a 
proposed reporting or monitoring program. 

(2) The lead agency shall specify the location and custodian of  the documents or other 
material which constitute the record of  proceedings upon which its decision is based. 

The MMRP consists of  mitigation measures that avoid, reduce, and/or fully mitigate potential environmental 
impacts. The mitigation measures have been identified and recommended through preparation of  the EIR and 
drafted to meet the requirements of  Public Resources Code, Section 21081.6.  

A-5



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 2 PlaceWorks 

1.2 PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 
1.2.1 Project Location 
The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area (Specific Plan area or project site) is in an urbanized area 
in the City of  Artesia, Los Angeles County. The City is 19 miles southeast of  Downtown Los Angeles; it shares 
its eastern, southern, and western boundaries with the City of  Cerritos and its northern boundary with the City 
of  Norwalk.  

The project site encompasses 70.8 acres known as the Artesia Downtown district, including the blocks adjoining 
Pioneer Boulevard to the southeast and ending at 180th Street to the north. The northern portion of  the project 
site (north of  Metro’s Southeast Gateway Line light rail project) is bounded by Alburtis Avenue and Corby 
Avenue to the west, 180th Street to the north, Arline Avenue to the east, and 188th Street to the south. The 
project site extends south of  the Southeast Gateway Line to the future Pioneer Boulevard light rail station and 
includes the area between 188th Street and the La Belle Chateau Mobile Home Park, and to Pioneer Boulevard 
on the east and Jersey Avenue on the west. The nearest freeway providing regional access to the project site is 
State Route (SR-) 91, a multilane freeway that divides the northern end of  the City.  

1.2.2 Project Description 
The proposed project would implement new land use, zoning, and development standards to guide the scale 
of  future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown district as the City prepares for the planned 
expansion of  a new Metro light rail line (referred to as the Southeast Gateway Line) that would connect 
southeastern Los Angeles County communities, including Artesia, to Downtown Los Angeles. The new Metro 
light rail line extension is anticipated to connect to Pioneer Boulevard in 2035.1 The Final EIR for the Metro 
light rail line extension was certified April 2024.  

While there are no specific development projects proposed at this time, the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan 
would establish goals and objectives, development standards, and implementation actions associated with land 
use, mobility, and infrastructure and establish a transit-oriented plan that would provide new opportunities for 
housing, retail/commercial, and entertainment uses. The proposed project would establish the necessary plans, 
development standards, regulations, infrastructure requirements, and implementation programs on which 
subsequent project-related development activities in the Specific Plan area would be based. The following 
sections discuss components of  the proposed project. 

1.2.2.1 LAND USE PLAN 

As shown on Figure 3-6, Proposed Zoning Districts, of  the Draft EIR, the land use plan divides the project site 
into six zoning districts that allow for a range of  land uses and density within a defined building envelope. The 

 
1  The Pioneer Boulevard Light Rail Station would be developed as the southern terminus of a 14.5-mile segment that connects 

southeast Los Angeles to downtown Los Angeles. The forecast completion date is 2035 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit 
Authority (Metro). 2024. Southeast Gateway Line (previously West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor). 
https://www.metro.net/projects/southeastgateway/. (Metro 2024). 

A-6



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

June 2025 Page 3 

zones would also implement the City’s urban design objectives for each part of  the project site to establish and 
maintain attractive distinctions between each zone. The six zoning districts are: 

 Downtown North. The Downtown North District encompasses 15.3 acres and would become the 
northern gateway and anchor to Downtown Artesia. This district would allow for higher density mixed-use 
development at 65 dwelling units per acre (du/ac). The southwest corner of  this district would allow four- 
to five-story mixed-use development and two- and three-story townhomes. Where the City owns property 
at the northwest corner of  183rd Street and Pioneer Boulevard, a public-private partnership would be 
encouraged for development of  a public parking structure with ground-floor retail uses. The parking 
structure would serve visitors, residents, and employees as they travel to and from Downtown Artesia and 
the 91 freeway to the north. The post office at 183rd Street and Albertis Avenue is expected to remain. 

 Pioneer Boulevard. The Pioneer Boulevard District encompasses 8.8. acres, fronts Pioneer Boulevard 
north of  the future Metro Pioneer Boulevard light rail station and is in the center of  Downtown Artesia. 
This area is composed of  narrow parcels with a continuous street frontage of  one-story commercial 
establishments such as restaurants, markets, and jewelry shops. Although significant new development is 
not expected in this district, the district would allow for three-story buildings at 50 du/ac or 60 du/ac by 
utilizing the Downtown Density Bonus Program.  

 Downtown South. The Downtown South District encompasses 23.1 acres and would become the 
southern gateway to downtown Artesia and the City. This district would allow four- to six-story mixed-use 
development at 75 du/ac and incorporate land uses such as ground-floor retail, a hotel, townhomes, and 
neighborhood parks for residents and visitors. A Metro parking structure is planned in the South Street 
Mixed District just south of  the transit station.2 

 188th Street / Corby Avenue. The 188th Street/Corby Avenue District encompasses 4.6 acres and would 
be south of  the future Metro station; it presently includes residential and light industrial uses. This district 
would allow for residential uses such as duplex, triplex and townhomes at 65 du/ac and commercial office 
and retail in a horizontal mixed-use format. 

 Downtown Neighborhood. The Downtown Neighborhood District encompasses 9.4 acres and would 
be in the residential west and east edges of  the Downtown area along Corby Avenue and Arline Avenue. 
The Downtown Neighborhood District would retain its residential character at 40 du/ac. 

 Chateau Estates. The Le Belle Chateau Estates Mobile Home Park District encompasses 9.6 acres and 
sits at the southern edge of  the project site. Although the proposed project would establish new 
development standards for the Chateau Estates District, the mobile home park use would be maintained 
in this district. The Chateau Estates District would retain its residential character at 11 du/ac.  

 
2  A 3.3-acre, four-story parking structure with up to 1,100 parking spaces would be located south of the Pioneer Station. Access to 

the parking facility and station platform would be via Pioneer Boulevard and Corby Avenue. Pedestrian access from Pioneer 
Boulevard to the parking facility would be via Pioneer Boulevard from the southeast end of the station platform (Metro 2024).  

A-7



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 4 PlaceWorks 

1.2.2.2 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

The proposed project would establish development standards related to the physical form and design of  both 
new and renovated buildings and properties in the project site. Development standards would include 
requirements for site planning (i.e., setbacks from public rights-of-way and other structures); open space and 
landscaping standards; building mass, scale, and maximum heights; materials and finishes; parking and loading; 
and frontage design standards.  

1.2.2.3 MOBILITY AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

The proposed project includes mobility policies and standards reflective of  a long-term vision to maximize 
accessibility of  Downtown Artesia that is centered around the development of  a transit-oriented community, 
enhancing first/last mile and complete street elements that dedicate space and amenities for people walking, 
bicycling, and accessing transit. The proposed project aims to complete the gaps in the bicycle network, enhance 
the pedestrian network, boost transportation options by adding micro-mobility, and adjust the parking network 
to manage the curb space for continuously changing needs and to construct parking structures at the edges of  
Downtown. Additionally, the proposed project identifies improvements to the infrastructure system as a result 
of  implementation of  the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan with respect to water supply, sewage, and storm 
drainage. 

1.2.2.4 IMPLEMENTATION ACTIONS 

The goals and objectives of  the proposed project would be implemented through implementation policies and 
programs. The proposed project would establish the implementation process associated with the Specific Plan. 

1.2.2.5 INCENTIVES AND BONUSES 

Community benefits have been included as part of  the proposed project, including a new Downtown Density 
Bonus program. Additional development potential in exchange for community benefits would be granted to 
applicants by the City Council, following policies and procedures adopted by the City of  Artesia. Applicants 
utilizing the Downtown Density Bonus program would require a statutory development agreement with the 
City or a covenant between the City and developer.  

1.2.2.6 OPPORTUNITY SITES 

The proposed project includes buildout projections associated with the likely redevelopment of  Opportunity 
Sites based on the anticipated levels of  density and intensity for each land use category. The proposed project 
has identified 53 parcels within the Specific Plan area that could support future redevelopment (redevelopment 
opportunity sites). Criteria for selecting these sites are described in detail in the Specific Plan. For purposes of  
analysis, the Draft EIR conservatively assumed redevelopment of  the 53 redevelopment opportunity sites using 
the by-right development standards.  

A-8



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

June 2025 Page 5 

1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
The level of  significance is identified for each impact in the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR). 
Although the criteria for determining significance are different for each topic area, the environmental analysis 
applied a uniform classification of  the impacts based on definitions consistent with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines: 

 No impact. The project would not change the environment. 

 Less than significant. The project would not cause any substantial, adverse change in the environment. 

 Less than significant with mitigation incorporated. The EIR includes mitigation measures that avoid 
substantial adverse impacts on the environment. 

 Significant and unavoidable. The project would cause a substantial adverse effect on the environment, 
and no feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce the impact to a less than significant level. 

1.3.1 Impacts Found Not to Be Significant 
 Aesthetics 
 Energy 

 Hydrology and Water Quality 

 Land Use and Planning  

 Population and Housing  

 Public Services 
 Recreation 
 Utilities and Service Systems 

1.3.2 Potentially Significant Adverse Impacts That Can Be Mitigated, Avoided, 
or Substantially Lessened 

 Air Quality 

 Cultural Historic Resources 

 Geology and Soils 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  

 Noise 
 Transportation 
 Tribal Cultural Resources 

  

A-9



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 6 PlaceWorks 

1.3.3 Significant and Unavoidable Impacts  
 Air Quality 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  
 Noise  

 

A-10



June 2025 Page 7 

2. Mitigation Monitoring Process 
2.1 MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM ORGANIZATION 
Overall MMRP management is the responsibility of  the City of  Artesia. The City’s technical consultants (CEQA 
consultant, etc.) may perform related monitoring tasks under the direction of  the environmental monitor (i.e., 
the qualified/professional expert in charge of  monitoring and/or implementing mitigation) if  they are 
contracted by the City.  

2.1.1 City of Artesia 
As the lead agency, the City is responsible for the review of  all monitoring reports, enforcement actions, and 
document disposition. The City will rely on information provided by individual monitors (CEQA consultant, 
etc.) as accurate and up to date, and will field check mitigation measure status, as required.  

2.1.2 Mitigation Monitoring Team 
The mitigation monitoring team, consisting of  the designated Project Manager (e.g., Community Development 
Director) and Technical Consultants (CEQA consultant, etc.) are responsible for monitoring implementation 
and compliance with all adopted mitigation measures and conditions of  approval. A major portion of  the team’s 
work will entail in-field monitoring and compliance report preparation. Implementation disputes are brought 
to the Project Manager, and any appeals would go to the City Manager and ultimately the City Council. 

2.1.3 Monitoring Team 
The following summarizes key positions in the MMRP and their respective functions: 

 Project Manager. Responsible for coordination of  mitigation monitoring team, technical consultants, 
report preparation, and overall program administration and document/report clearinghouse. 

 Construction Contractor. Responsible for coordination of  mitigation monitoring team; technical 
consultants; report preparation; and implementation the monitoring program, including overall program 
administration, document/report clearinghouse, and first phase of  dispute resolution. 

 Technical Consultants. Responsible for monitoring in respective areas of  expertise (CEQA consultant, 
project engineer, noise analyst/specialist). Report directly to the Project Manager. 

A-11



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

2. Mitigation Monitoring Process 

Page 8 PlaceWorks 

2.1.4 Recognized Experts 
The use of  recognized experts on the monitoring team is required to ensure compliance with scientific and 
engineering mitigation measures. The mitigation monitoring team’s recognized experts assess compliance with 
required mitigation measures, and recognized experts from responsible agencies consult with the Project 
Manager regarding disputes. 

2.2 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
If  the monitoring team determines that a mitigation measure, in the opinion of  the monitor, has not been 
implemented or has not been implemented correctly, the problem will be brought before the Project Manager 
for resolution. The decision of  the Project Manager is final unless appealed to the City Manager. The Project 
Manager will have the authority to issue stop-work order until the dispute is resolved. 

2.3 ENFORCEMENT 
Public agencies may enforce conditions of  approval through their existing police powers using stop-work 
orders, fines, infraction citations, revocation of  approval/permits, or in some cases, notice of  violation for tax 
purposes. 

A-12



June 2025 Page 9 

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 
3.1 PREMONITORING MEETING 
A premonitoring meeting will be scheduled to review mitigation measures, implementation requirements, 
schedule conformance, and mitigation monitoring team responsibilities. At such meetings, the monitoring team 
rules are established, the entire mitigation monitoring program is presented, and any misunderstandings are 
resolved. 

3.2 CATEGORIZED MITIGATION MEASURES/MATRIX 
Project-specific mitigation measures have been categorized in matrix format, as shown in Table 1, Mitigation 
Monitoring Requirements. The matrix identifies the environmental factor, specific mitigation measures, schedule, 
and responsible monitor. The mitigation matrix will serve as the basis for scheduling the implementation of  
and compliance with all mitigation measures.  

3.3 IN-FIELD MONITORING 
Project monitors and technical subconsultants shall exercise caution and professional practices at all times when 
monitoring implementation of  mitigation measures. Protective wear (e.g., hard hat, glasses) shall be worn at all 
times in construction areas. Injuries shall be immediately reported to the mitigation monitoring team. 

3.4 DATABASE MANAGEMENT 
All mitigation monitoring reports, letters, and memos shall be prepared utilizing electronic software, such as 
Microsoft Word, Adobe, etc. 

3.5 COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTORS 
The construction manager is responsible for coordination of  contractors and for contractor completion of  
required mitigation measures. 

3.6 LONG-TERM MONITORING 
Long-term monitoring related to several mitigation measures will be required, including review of  project plans 
to ensure compliance with the most recent versions of  the California Building Code and California Fire Code. 
Post-construction fire inspections are conducted on a routine basis by the City of  Artesia  Fire Department. 

  

A-13



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 10 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

A-14



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 11 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

AIR QUALITY 
AQ-1 Prior to discretionary approval by the City of Artesia for development projects subject 

to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) review (i.e., nonexempt projects), 
project applicants shall prepare and submit a technical assessment evaluating 
potential project construction-related air quality impacts to the City of Artesia Planning 
Division for review and approval. The evaluation shall be prepared in conformance 
with South Coast Air Quality Management District (South Coast AQMD) methodology 
for assessing air quality impacts. If construction-related criteria air pollutants are 
determined to have the potential to exceed the South Coast AQMD–adopted 
thresholds of significance, the City of Artesia Building & Safety Division shall require 
feasible mitigation measures to reduce air quality emissions. Potential measures shall 
be incorporated as conditions of approval for a project and may include, but are not 
limited to the following: 
• Require fugitive dust control measures that exceed South Coast Air Quality 

Management District’s Rule 403, such as: 
- Requiring use of nontoxic soil stabilizers to reduce wind erosion. 

- Applying water every four hours to active soil disturbing activities. 

- Tarping and/or maintaining a minimum of 24 inches of freeboard on trucks 
hauling dirt, sand, soil, or other loose materials. 

• Using construction equipment rated by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency as having Tier 4 interim or higher exhaust emission limits. 

• Ensuring construction equipment is properly serviced and maintained to the 
manufacturer’s standards. 

• Limiting nonessential idling of construction equipment to no more than five 
consecutive minutes. 

• Using Super-Compliant VOC paints for coating of architectural surfaces 
whenever possible. A list of Super-Compliant architectural coating manufactures 
can be found on the South Coast Air Quality Management District’s website at: 
https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/compliance/vocs/architectural-
coatings/super-compliant-coatings. 

These identified measures shall be incorporated into all appropriate construction 
documents (e.g., construction management plans) submitted to the City and shall be 
verified by the City’s Planning Department.  

Future Project 
Applicants  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Planning Department  

 

A-15

I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 12 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

CULTURAL RESOURCES 
CUL-1 Historic Resources Assessment. Prior to the approval of a discretionary project 

proposed on a parcel(s) within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area that includes 
a building or structure more than 45 years old and that has not previously been 
evaluated for potential historic significance, the City shall require the project 
proponent to retain an architectural historian meeting the minimum professional 
qualifications standards (PQS) set forth by the Secretary of the Interior (codified in 36 
Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] Part 61; 48 Federal Register 44738–44739) 
(Qualified Architectural Historian) to conduct a historic resources assessment of 
affected properties. The assessment shall include a records search at the South 
Central Coastal Information Center or review of a prior record search conducted within 
the previous one year; a review of other pertinent archives and sources; a pedestrian 
field survey; recordation of all identified historic architectural resources on California 
Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) 523 forms; evaluation of resources which 
may be eligible for listing in the California Register (i.e., meets the definition for 
historical resource in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5[a]), and for local listing; and 
preparation of a technical report documenting the methods and results of the 
assessment for each future project facilitated by Artesia Downtown Specific Plan 
measures and actions.  
If a historic architectural resource is found eligible by the Qualified Architectural 
Historian, then the Qualified Architectural Historian shall coordinate with the project 
proponent and City to ensure the project is constructed in conformance with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. All reports resulting from implementation of this 
measure shall be filed with the South Central Coastal Information Center (including 
but not limited to historic resources assessments and Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards plan reviews). On the basis of this evaluation, if it is determined that the 
subject property contains a historic resource, Mitigation Measure CUL-2 shall be 
implemented.  

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Qualified Cultural 
Resources 
Specialist  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

CUL-2 Avoidance or Minimization of Effects on Identified Historic Resources. If it is 
determined that the subject property contains a historic resource the project 
proponent shall consult with City staff to determine whether a project can be feasibly 
redesigned or modified to avoid significant adverse impacts on listed and identified 
eligible historic resource(s), including historic districts. If avoidance of historic 
resource(s) is not feasible, where feasibility is defined as “capable of being 
accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into 
account economic, environmental, legal, social, and technological factors,” the project 
proponent shall seek to reduce the effect on historic resource(s) to a less-than-

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Professional 
Archaeologist  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-16



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 13 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

significant level pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15364. Projects that conform to 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties are 
considered to have a less-than-significant effect on historic architectural resources.  

CUL-3 Cultural Resources Assessment. For discretionary projects that involve ground-
disturbing activities during construction on areas within the Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan area where no previous ground disturbance or excavation has occurred, or 
ground-disturbing activities would occur in native soil, a site-specific cultural resources 
study shall be completed prior to project approval. The study shall include records 
searches of the California Historical Resources Information System and the Sacred 
Lands File maintained by the Native American Heritage Commission. The records 
searches shall determine if the proposed project has been previously surveyed for 
archaeological resources, identify, and characterize the results of previous cultural 
resource surveys, and disclose any cultural resources that have been recorded and/or 
evaluated. 
If the records search identifies a sensitivity for archaeological resources, an 
archaeological resources assessment shall be performed under the supervision of an 
archaeologist that meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification 
Standards (PQS) in either prehistoric or historic archaeology. If the archaeological 
assessment indicates the area to be of medium sensitivity for archaeological 
resources, an archaeologist who meets the PQS shall be retained on an on-call basis.  
If the archaeological assessment indicated the area to be highly sensitive for 
archaeological resources, a qualified archaeologist shall monitor all ground-disturbing 
construction and pre-construction activities.  
 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Professional 
Archaeologist  

During Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

CUL-4  All Projects. If cultural resources are discovered during ground-disturbing activities, 
all ground-disturbing activities within 50 feet of the find shall be halted until a meeting 
is convened between the developer, archaeologist, tribal representatives, and the 
Director of the Community Development Department. At the meeting, the significance 
of the discoveries shall be discussed and after consultation with the tribal 
representatives, developer, and archaeologist, a decision shall be made, with the 
concurrence of the Director of the Community Development Department, as to the 
appropriate mitigation (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the cultural 
resources. 
 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Professional 
Archaeologist 

During Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

A-17

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 14 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

GEO-1 Low-to-High Sensitivity. For discretionary projects that involve ground-disturbing 
activities during construction on areas within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area 
where no previous ground disturbance or excavation has occurred, or ground-
disturbing activities would occur in native soil, the project applicant shall consult with a 
geologist or paleontologist to confirm the level of sensitivity for paleontological 
resources. If confirmed that underlying sediments may have moderate to high 
sensitivity, a qualified paleontologist shall be retained to develop and implement a 
Paleontological Resources Impact Mitigation Plan. The paleontologist shall have the 
authority to halt construction during ground disturbing activities as outlined in 
Mitigation Measure GEO-2.  

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Licensed 
Professional 
Engineer 

Prior to Issuance of a 
Grading Permit and 
during Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Building and Safety 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

GEO-2 All Projects. In the event of any fossil discovery, regardless of depth or geologic 
formation, ground disturbing activities shall halt within a 50-foot radius of the find until 
its significance can be determined by a qualified paleontologist. Significant fossils 
shall be recovered, prepared to the point of curation, identified by qualified experts, 
listed in a database to facilitate analysis, and deposited in a designated 
paleontological curation facility in accordance with the standards of the Society of 
Vertebrate Paleontology. The most likely repository is the Natural History Museum of 
Los Angeles County. The repository shall be identified, and a curatorial arrangement 
shall be signed as part of the Paleontological Impact Mitigation Plan (GEO-1) and 
prior to collection of the fossils. 
 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Certified 
Paleontologist 

Prior to Issuance of a 
Grading Permit and 
during Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-18



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 15 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
GHG-1 New development within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan shall implement the 

following, voluntary provisions of the California Green Building Standards Code 
(CALGreen). The project applicant/developer(s) shall provide documentation (e.g., 
building plans) of implementation of the applicable voluntary measures to the City of 
Artesia Building and Safety Department prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 Residential Structures with Three or Fewer Stories. For residential land 

uses with three or fewer stories, the project developer(s) shall: 

• Design and build condominium/townhouses dwellings that have an 
attached private garage to have a dedicated electric circuit to support 
electric vehicle charging, as outlined in the Residential Voluntary 
Measures of CALGreen, Division A4.1, Planning and Design, as 
outlined under Section A4.106.8.1.  

• Design and build residential buildings to, at a minimum, meet the Tier 
2 electric vehicle parking standards of the Residential Voluntary 
Measures of CALGreen, Division A4.1, Planning and Design, as 
outlined under Section A4.106.8.2.1. 

• Design and build residential buildings to meet the short- and long-
term bicycle parking standards of the Residential Voluntary Measures 
of CALGreen, Division A4.1, Planning and Design, as outlined under 
Section A4.106.9. 

• Design and build residential buildings to meet energy efficiency 
requirements of the Residential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, 
Division A4.2, Energy Efficiency, as outlined under Section A4.203.1. 

 
 Nonresidential Structures and Residential Structures with Four or More 

Stories. For nonresidential land uses and residential land uses that are four 
or more stories, the applicant/developer shall: 

• Design and build structures to, at a minimum, meet the Tier 2 
advanced energy efficiency requirements of the Nonresidential 
Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, Division A5.2, Energy Efficiency, as 
outlined under Section A5.203.1.2.2. 

• For projects with off-street parking, design the proposed parking to 
provide parking for low-emitting, fuel-efficient, and carpool/van 
vehicles. At minimum, the number of preferential parking spaces shall 

Future Project 
Applicants and City 
of Artesia Public 
Works and 
Engineering 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-19

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 16 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

equal the Tier 2 Nonresidential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, 
Division A5.1, Planning and Design, Section A5.106.5.1.2.  

• For projects with off-street parking, design the proposed parking to 
provide electric vehicle (EV) charging stations. At minimum, the 
number of EV charging stations shall comply with the Tier 2 
Nonresidential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, Division A5.1, 
Planning and Design, Section A5.106.5.3.3 or Section A5.106.5.3.4.   

GHG-2  For residential and nonresidential land use development projects, the 
project applicant/developer shall comply with the following: 

• All major appliances (e.g., dishwashers, refrigerators, clothes 
washers and dryers, and water heaters) provided/installed shall be 
Energy Star certified or of equivalent energy efficiency where 
applicable.  

• Installed water heaters shall meet a zero NOX emissions standard. 
• Installed central furnaces with a Rated Heat Input Capacity less than 

or equal to 2,000,000 British thermal units (Btu) per hour shall meet a 
zero NOX emissions standard. 

• Installed fireplaces shall be electric-powered only. 
Prior to the issuance of the certificate of occupancy, the City of 
Artesia Building and Safety Department shall verify implementation of 
these requirements. 

 

Future Project 
Applicants and City 
of Artesia Public 
Works and 
Engineering 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval  

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

GHG-3 For nonresidential land use development projects, prior to issuance of the certificate 
of occupancy, the property owner shall provide documentation to the City of Artesia 
Building and Safety Department demonstrating enrollment in a 100 percent carbon-
free electricity energy plan, such as Southern California Edison’s Green Rate 
program, for proposed project building(s) when feasible. If a 100 percent carbon-free 
electricity plan is not available, the property owner shall enroll in an energy plan with 
the next highest carbon-free electricity until a 100 percent carbon-free electricity 
energy plan becomes available. Measures to achieve 100 percent carbon-free 
electricity use for the proposed project building(s) may include, but are not limited to, 
plans for 100 percent renewable electricity. If such carbon-free electricity energy plans 
are waitlisted, the property owner shall sign up onto the waiting list until such time a 
plan is available. 
 

Future Project 
Applicants and City 
of Artesia Public 
Works and 
Engineering 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Prior to issuance of 
the Certificate of 
Occupancy  

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-20



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 17 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

NOISE  
N-1 Prior to any construction activity such as grading, site prep or issuance of building 

permits, a note shall be provided on construction plans indicating that during 
construction activities and phasing the project applicant shall be responsible for 
requiring contractors to implement the following measures to limit construction-related 
noise to a performance standard of 80 dBA Leq at the property line of the nearest 
sensitive receptor: 

• Per Section 5-2.06 of the Artesia Municipal Code, construction activity is limited 
to the daytime hours 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays or at any time on 
Sunday or Federal holiday. If construction outside of these hours is necessary 
for construction of a project under the Specific Plan, construction noise shall be 
limited to the City of Artesia nighttime exterior and interior noise standards for 
residential uses of 50 dBA and 45 dBA, respectively.  

• During the entire active construction period, equipment and trucks used for 
project construction shall utilize the best available noise control techniques (e.g., 
improved mufflers, use of intake silencers, ducts, engine enclosures, and 
acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds), wherever feasible. 

• Require that impact tools (e.g., jack hammers and hoe rams) be hydraulically or 
electrically powered wherever possible. Where the use of pneumatic tools is 
unavoidable, an exhaust muffler on the compressed air exhaust shall be used 
along with external noise jackets on the tools. 

• Stationary equipment such as generators, air compressors shall be located as 
far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive uses. 

• Stockpiling shall be located as far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive 
receptors. 

• Construction traffic shall be limited—to the extent feasible—to approved haul 
routes established by the City. 

• At least 10 days prior to the start of construction activities, a sign shall be posted 
at the entrance(s) to the job site, clearly visible to the public, that includes 
permitted construction days and hours, as well as the telephone numbers of the 
City’s and contractor’s authorized representatives that are assigned to respond 
in the event of a noise or vibration complaint. If the authorized contractor’s 
representative receives a complaint, he/she shall investigate, take appropriate 
corrective action, and report the action to the City.  

• Signs shall be posted at the job site entrance(s), within the on-site construction 
zones, and along queueing lanes (if any) to reinforce the prohibition of 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Construction 
Contractor 

Prior to Issuance of 
Demolition, Grading, 
and/or Building 
Permits and During 
Construction 
Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department and 
Building and Safety 
Department 

 

A-21

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 18 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

unnecessary engine idling. All other equipment shall be turned off if not in use 
for more than 5 minutes. 

• During the entire active construction period and to the extent feasible, the use of 
noise-producing signals, including horns, whistles, alarms, and bells, shall be for 
safety warning purposes only. The construction manager shall use smart back-
up alarms, which automatically adjust the alarm level based on the background 
noise level, or switch off back-up alarms and replace with human spotters in 
compliance with all safety requirements and laws. 

• Erect temporary noise barriers, where feasible, when construction noise is 
predicted to exceed the noise standards after other measures have been 
considered, would occur at nighttime, or when the anticipated construction 
duration is greater than is typical (e.g., two years or greater).  

N-2 Prior to issuance of a building permit for a project requiring pile driving during 
construction within 135 feet of fragile structures such as historical resources, 100 feet 
of non-engineered timber and masonry buildings (e.g., most residential buildings), or 
within 75 feet of engineered concrete and masonry (no plaster); or a vibratory roller 
within 25 feet of any structure, the project applicant shall prepare a noise and vibration 
analysis to assess and mitigate potential noise and vibration impacts related to these 
activities. This noise and vibration analysis shall be conducted by a qualified and 
experienced acoustical consultant or engineer. The vibration levels shall not exceed 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) architectural damage thresholds (e.g., 0.12 
in/sec PPV for fragile or historical resources, 0.2 in/sec PPV for non-engineered 
timber and masonry buildings, and 0.3 in/sec PPV for engineered concrete and 
masonry). If vibration levels would exceed this threshold, alternative uses such as 
static rollers and drilling piles as opposed to pile driving shall be used.  

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Qualified Acoustical 
Consultant 

Prior to Issuance of a 
Building Permit 

City of Artesia 
Community and 
Development 
Department and 
Building and Safety 
Department 

 

A-22



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 19 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

TRANSPORTATION  
T-1 At the time of project entitlement, the project developer shall ensure the 

implementation of California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Association (CAPCOA) 
2021 Handbook Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program T-16. 

• T-16. Unbundle Residential Parking Costs from Property Cost 
According to the CAPCOA 2021 Handbook, “this measure will unbundle 
or separate a residential project’s parking costs from property costs, 
requiring those who wish to purchase parking spaces do so at an 
additional cost. On the assumption that parking costs are passed to the 
vehicle owners/drivers utilizing the parking spaces, this measure results in 
decreased vehicle ownership and, therefore, a reduction in VMT and 
GHG emissions.” It is assumed that qualifying residential project within 
the Specific Plan area will comply with the provisions of California Civil 
Code Section 1947.1 resulting from Assembly Bill 1317 (2023, Carillo), 
which requires residential developments of 16 or more units located in 
Los Angeles County to unbundle parking from the cost of rent. A cost of 
$25.00 per month, or $300.00 per year, per leased parking space, is 
assumed for analysis purposes. No action is required by the City of 
Artesia to implement this measure, as project developers would be 
required to comply with all applicable State laws as the time of project 
entitlement. 

 

Future Project 
Applicant  

At the time of project 
entitlement  

City of Artesia 
Community and 
Development 
Department 

 

T-2 At the time of project operation, the developer shall and City shall continue to enforce 
California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Association (CAPCOA) 2021 Handbook 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program T-24. 

• T-24. Implement Market Price Public Parking (On-Street) 
According to the CAPCOA 2021 Handbook, “this measure will price all 
on-street parking in a given community. Increasing the costs of parking 
increases the total coast of driving to a location, incentivizing shifts to 
other modes and thus decreasing total VMT to and from the priced 
areas.” The City of Artesia currently provides priced on-street parking 
within the Specific Plan area, primarily along Pioneer Boulevard, 186th 
Street, and 187th Street. The City of Artesia should continue to implement 
the priced on-street parking which currently exists within the Specific Plan 
area. 

Future Project 
Applicant  

During project 
operation  

City of Artesia 
Community and 
Development 
Department 

 

A-23

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 20 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

A-24



 

June 2025 Page 21 

4. Mitigation Monitoring Reports 
Mitigation monitoring reports are required to document compliance with the Mitigation Monitoring Program 
and to resolve disputes. Specific reports include: 

 Field Check Report 
 Implementation Compliance Report 
 Dispute/Enforcement Report 

4.1 FIELD CHECK REPORT 
Field check reports are required to record in-field compliance and conditions. 

4.2 IMPLEMENTATION COMPLIANCE REPORT 
The Implementation Compliance Report (ICR) is prepared to document the implementation of  mitigation 
measures on a phased basis, based on the information in Table 3-1. The report summarizes implementation 
compliance, including mitigation measures, date completed, and monitor’s signature. 

4.3 DISPUTE/ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
The Dispute/Enforcement Report (DER) is prepared to document the outcome of  the Project Manager or 
City Manager and becomes a portion of  the ICR. 

 

  

A-25



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

4. Mitigation Monitoring Reports 

Page 22 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

A-26



 

June 2025 Page 23 

5. Community Involvement 
Monitoring reports are public documents and are available for review by the general public. Discrepancies in 
monitoring reports can be taken to the Project Manager or Community Development Director by the general 
public. 

  

A-27



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

5. Community Involvement 

Page 24 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

A-28



 

June 2025 Page 25 

6. Report Preparation 
6.1 LIST OF PREPARERS 
6.1.1 City of Artesia, Planning Department 
Salvador Lopez, Jr., Interim Community Development Director 

Art Bashmakian, Senior Project Manager 

Karen Lee, Special Projects Manager 

6.1.2 PlaceWorks 
Addie Farrell, Managing Principal 

Jennifer Kelley, Senior Associate 

Itzeel Padilla, Project Planner  

  

A-29



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

6. Report Preparation 

Page 26 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

A-30



 1 

CITY OF ARTESIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-18P 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF ARTESIA RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL 
PLAN AND ESTABLISH THE ARTESIA DOWNTOWN 
SPECIFIC PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION AND AMEND 
RELATED TABLES, TEXT, AND LAND USE MAP OF THE 
GENERAL PLAN. (CASE NO. 2024-06).  

_____________________________________________________ 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ARTESIA DOES HEREBY 
FIND, ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Artesia City Council, on August 22, 2016, approved a grant 
agreement between the City of Artesia and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Metro”) to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (“Plan”). A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the 
City and Metro, as the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded.  

SECTION 2. The Plan would implement new land use, zoning, and development 
standards to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown 
districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line 
(Southeast Gateway Line).  The Plan, in conjunction with amendments to the General 
Plan and the Zoning Code, constitutes the “Project.” 

SECTION 3. Government Code Section 65350 provides that cities shall amend 
general plans and elements of those general plans in the manner provided in Article 6 
(Sections 65350–-65362) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code. 

SECTION 4. Government Code Section 65353(a) provides that “[w]hen the city 
has a planning commission authorized by local ordinance or resolution to review and 
recommend action on proposed amendments to the general plan, the commission shall 
hold at least one public hearing before approving a recommendation on the amendment 
of a general plan.  

SECTION 5. Government Code Section 65354 provides that the “planning 
commission shall make a written recommendation on the amendment of a general plan.  
A recommendation for approval shall be made by the affirmative vote of not less than a 
majority of the total membership of the commission.  The planning commission shall send 
its recommendation to the legislative body.” 

SECTION 6. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing in accordance with California Government Code Sections 65090 



 2 

and 65091 to consider the proposed amendments to the General Plan, including its text 
and land use map, and following the receipt of public testimony, closed the public hearing. 

SECTION 7. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code, §§ 21000 et seq., “CEQA”), the regulations promulgated thereunder 
(14 Cal. Code of Regulations §§ 15000 et seq., the CEQA Guidelines the City prepared 
a Draft Environmental Impact Report  (SCH #2024020999) (“DEIR”), that analyzed the 
proposed Project’s environmental impacts. The DEIR was made available for public 
review from February 28, 2025, through April 14, 2025. On June 9, 2025, the City 
completed the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), which comprises of the Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR), comments received on the DEIR, and responses 
to those comments. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing and considered the entire administrative record (as of that date), 
including staff reports, the FEIR, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), 
Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations and oral and written testimony 
from interested persons, all of whom were given an opportunity to be heard. Resolution 
No. 2025-17P recommends adoption of the Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding 
Considerations, the MMRP, and certification of the FEIR, among other things, properly 
assesses the environmental impact of the Project in accordance with CEQA. This 
Resolution incorporates by reference the environmental findings and analysis set forth in 
Resolution No. 2025-17P, including the FEIR, as if fully set forth herein: 

SECTION 8. Based on all evidence in the record, the Planning Commission 
recommends that the City Council find that the proposed amendments to the General 
Plan are appropriate for the following reasons: 

A. Changing the land use designation of the area covered by the proposed Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan from City Center Mixed Use, High Density Residential and 
South Street Gateway Commercial to the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is in the 
public interest because this would create the opportunity for mixed-use residential 
development within the core downtown area of the City subject to development 
standards which will encourage the development and redevelopment of a 
contemporary mix of commercial retail, offices and residential uses that will expand 
economic vibrancy and livability in the areas.  The proposed project would allow 
for the development of a mixed-use transit-oriented community with a mix of high-
density residential uses and commercial retail uses and serve the public interest.  
 

B. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use designation is consistent 
with the General Plan 2030 goal of a well planned community with sufficient land 
uses and intensities to meet the needs of anticipated growth and achieve the 
community’s vision (Community Goal LU 1) by creating opportunities for mixed 
land-use patter that will foster a strong community identify, provide new 
employment, housing, shopping and entertainment opportunities, and strengthen 
the City’s tax base. 
 

C. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use designation will not 
adversely affect or be detrimental to adjacent properties, as it includes measures 



 3 

that adhere to all required City standards for circulation, noise, setbacks, buffer 
areas, landscaping, and architecture, ensuring compatibility between different 
uses.  Moreover, the Plan identifies development standards that would enhance 
the surrounding neighborhood and prevent deterioration of surrounding uses, 
including single-family residences, while also ensuring that it does not adversely 
impact the safety and residential character of the neighborhood. 
 

D. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use designation is consistent 
with the following community policies and policy actions in the General Plan 2030 
Community Policy Program: 

 
1. Community Policy LU 1.1 and Policy Action LU 1.1.1 encourage the 

identification of appropriate locations for residential and non-residential 
development to accommodate growth through the year 2030. The proposed 
Specific Plan land use designation enables re-purposing of under-utilized 
parcels and facilitates vibrant mixed-use developments, which will contribute 
to accommodating the City’s housing demand through the year 2030; and 

 
2. Community Policy LU 1.2 and Policy Action LU 1.2.1 encourage a wide 

variety of commercial services in appropriate locations by analyzing the 
current inventory of developed and undeveloped commercial sites in the City 
in order to assess which are economically viable commercial developments 
that can be supported.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use 
designation will enable mixed-use projects that incorporate commercial uses 
alongside residential uses, thereby enhancing commercial viability by 
positioning customers and services near one another; and 

 
3. Community Policy LU 1.3 and Policy Action LU 1.3.1 encourage active and 

inviting pedestrian-friendly street environments that include a variety of uses 
within commercial and mixed-use areas by enhancing access, safety and the 
streetscape experience for pedestrians, bicyclists and transit riders; and that 
focus improvements in areas with the highest need. The proposed Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan land use designation will enable a mixed-use 
projects; and 

 
4. Housing Sub-Element Policy HE 1.3 encourage mixed-use 

(residential/commercial) development on existing commercial zoned land.  
The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use designation would 
permit infill development of mixed uses comprising of high-density residential 
and commercial retail; and 

 
5. Community Policy LU 1.4 and Policy Action LU 1.4.1 and 1.4.2, which 

ensures that mixed use developments are integrated with surrounding uses 
to become part of the neighborhood by utilizing cohesive architecture, lively 
streetscapes, interesting urban spaces and attractive landscaping.  The 
proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use designation would 



 4 

facilitate mixed-use developments and ensure such developments are 
integrated with surrounding uses with the imposition of development 
standards including but not limited to setbacks, stepbacks, open space, 
height and landscaping.   

 
SECTION 9. Based on the findings contained in Sections 7 and 8 above, and all 

other evidence in the record, the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the City 
Council approve the General Plan Land Use Sub-Element Amendment and Map 
Amendment to change the land use designations within the boundary of the proposed 
Artesia Downtown Specific Plan form City Center Mixed Use, High Density Residential 
and South Street Gateway Commercial to Artesia Downtown Specific Plan and amend 
the text of the General Plan by modifying Land Use Sub-Element Table LU-3 and Table 
LU-4 of the General Plan to reflect the changes resulting from the establishment of the 
Artesia Downtown Specific Plan land use designation.  The amended text and map is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (for the text) and Exhibit “B” (for the map), which are 
incorporated herein by reference..  

SECTION 10. The Interim Community Development Director shall certify to 
the adoption of this Resolution and shall forward a copy of it to the City Clerk and to the 
City Council.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2025. 

 
        
  Victor Manalo, Chairperson   

ATTEST: 

 
       ___________ 
Salvador Lopez, Interim Community Development Director 
  



 5 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:   COMMISSIONERS:  
NOES:   COMMISSIONERS:   
ABSENT:   COMMISSIONERS:  
ABSTAIN:   COMMISSIONERS:  
 
  



 6 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 25-___ TO ESTABLISH THE 
ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 

 



 1 

CITY OF ARTESIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-19P 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF ARTESIA RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY 
COUNCIL ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 25-971 
ESTABLISHING THE ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC 
PLAN (CASE NO. 2024-06).  

_____________________________________________________ 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ARTESIA DOES HEREBY 
FIND, ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Artesia City Council, on August 22, 2016, approved a grant 
agreement between the City of Artesia and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Metro”) to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (“Plan”). A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the 
City and Metro, as the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded.  

SECTION 2. The Plan would implement new land use, zoning, and development 
standards to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown 
districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line 
(Southeast Gateway Line).  The Plan, in conjunction with amendments to the General 
Plan and the Zoning Code, constitutes the “Project.” 

SECTION 3. Government Code Section 65353(a) provides that “[w]hen the city or 
county has a planning commission authorized by local ordinance or resolution to review 
and recommend action on a proposed general plan … the commission shall hold at least 
one public hearing before approving a recommendation on the adoption … of a general 
plan. Notice of the hearing shall be given pursuant to Section 65090.”  Further, Section 
65353(b) provides that “[i]f a proposed general plan would affect the permitted uses or 
intensity of uses of real property, notice of the hearing shall also be given pursuant to 
paragraphs (1) and (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 65091.” 

SECTION 4. Government Code Section 65453(a) provides that “[a] specific plan 
shall be prepared, adopted, and amended in the same manner as a general plan, except 
that a specific plan may be adopted by resolution or by ordinance and may be amended 
as often as deemed necessary by the legislative body.” 

 
SECTION 5. Government Code Section 65454 provides that “[n]o specific plan 

may be adopted … unless the proposed plan … is consistent with the general plan.” 

SECTION 6. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing in accordance with California Government Code Sections 65090 



 2 

and 65091 to consider the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, and following the 
receipt of public testimony, closed the public hearing. 

SECTION 7. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code, §§ 21000 et seq., “CEQA”), the regulations promulgated thereunder 
(14 Cal. Code of Regulations §§ 15000 et seq., the CEQA Guidelines the City prepared 
a Draft Environmental Impact Report  (SCH #2024020999) (“DEIR”), that analyzed the 
proposed Project’s environmental impacts. The DEIR was made available for public 
review from February 28, 2025, through April 14, 2025. On June 9, 2025, the City 
completed the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), which comprises of the Draft 
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR), comments received on the DEIR, and responses 
to those comments. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing and considered the entire administrative record (as of that date), 
including staff reports, the FEIR, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), 
Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations and oral and written testimony 
from interested persons, all of whom were given an opportunity to be heard. Resolution 
No. 2025-17P recommends adoption of the Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding 
Considerations, the MMRP, and certification of the FEIR, among other things, properly 
assesses the environmental impact of the Project in accordance with CEQA. This 
Resolution incorporates by reference the environmental findings and analysis set forth in 
Resolution No. 2025-17P, including the FEIR, as if fully set forth herein: 

SECTION 8. Based on all evidence in the record, the Planning Commission 
recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 25-971 to establish the Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan as shown in Exhibit A, attached hereto, and incorporated herein 
by reference for the following reasons: 

A. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is consistent with the General Plan 
2030 Community Policy LU 1.4, which calls for ensuring that mixed-use 
developments are integrated with surrounding uses to become part of the 
neighborhood by utilizing cohesive architecture, lively streetscape, interesting 
urban spaces, and attractive landscaping.  The proposed project identifies 
permitted uses and development standards that are intended to integrate future 
development within the project site with the surrounding community. Additionally, 
the proposed project includes complementary designs and uses that are 
compatible with existing surrounding neighborhoods by continuing active ground-
level retail. The proposed project also identifies landscaping standards that 
conform to the City’s Urban Forestry Manual, ensuring attractive and cohesive 
landscaping. Therefore, the proposed project would not conflict with this policy. 

 
B. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is consistent with the proposed 

General Plan Amendment, which will establish a new Land Use Designation called 
the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. 
 

C. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan will not adversely affect or be 
detrimental to adjacent properties, as it includes measures that adhere to all 
required City standards for circulation, noise, setbacks, buffer areas, landscaping, 



 3 

and architecture, ensuring compatibility between different uses.  Moreover, the 
Plan identifies development standards that would enhance the surrounding 
neighborhood and prevent deterioration of surrounding uses, including single-
family residences, while also ensuring that it does not adversely impact the safety 
and residential character of the neighborhood. 
 

D. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is consistent with the following 
community policies and policy actions in the General Plan 2030 Community Policy 
Program: 

 
1. Community Policy LU 1.1 and Policy Action LU 1.1.1 encourage the 

identification of appropriate locations for residential and non-residential 
development to accommodate growth through the year 2030 by evaluating 
amendments to the General Plan Land Use Map to consider the effect that 
such amendments will have on the City’s ability to achieve its goals of a well 
planned community. The proposed Specific Plan enables re-purposing of 
under-utilized parcels and facilitates vibrant mixed-use developments, which 
will contribute to accommodating the City’s housing demand through the year 
2030. 

 
2. Community Policy LU 1.2 and Policy Action LU 1.2.1 encourage a wide 

variety of commercial services in appropriate locations by analyzing the 
current inventory of developed and undeveloped commercial sites in the City 
in order to assess which are economically viable commercial developments 
that can be supported.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan will enable 
mixed-use projects that incorporate commercial uses alongside residential 
uses, thereby enhancing commercial viability by positioning customers and 
services near one another. 

 
3. Community Policy LU 1.3 and Policy Action LU 1.3.1 encourage active and 

inviting pedestrian-friendly street environments that include a variety of uses 
within commercial and mixed-use areas by enhancing access, safety and the 
streetscape experience for pedestrians, bicyclists and transit riders; and that 
focus improvements in areas with the highest need. The proposed Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan will enable a mixed-use projects. 

 
4. Housing Sub-Element Policy HE 1.3 encourage mixed-use 

(residential/commercial) development on existing commercial zoned land.  
The project site is currently zoned Commercial General, Multi-Family 
Residential, Light Manufacturing/Industrial, Commercial Planned 
Development, and South Street Specific Plan. The proposed project would 
include a zone change to change the project site’s existing zoning to Specific 
Plan. The proposed project would permit infill development of mixed uses 
comprising of high-density residential and commercial retail. 

 



 4 

SECTION 9. Based on the findings contained in Sections 7 and 8 above, and all 
other evidence in the record, the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the City 
Council adopt Ordinance No. 25-971 (attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 
herein by reference), establishing the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.  

SECTION 10. The Interim Community Development Director shall certify to 
the adoption of this Resolution and shall forward a copy of it to the City Clerk and to the 
City Council.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2025. 

 
        
  Victor Manalo, Chairperson   

ATTEST: 

 
       ___________ 
Salvador Lopez, Interim Community Development Director 
 
 
 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:   COMMISSIONERS:  
NOES:   COMMISSIONERS:   
ABSENT:   COMMISSIONERS:  
ABSTAIN:   COMMISSIONERS:  
 
  



 5 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 25-___ TO ESTABLISH THE 
ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 

 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-971 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA ADOPTING THE ARTESIA 
DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN  (CASE NO. 2024-06). 

WHEREAS, the Artesia City Council, on August 22, 2016, approved a grant 
agreement between the City of Artesia and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Metro”) to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (“Plan”). A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the 
City and Metro, as the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded. 

WHEREAS, the Plan would implement new land use, zoning, and development 
standards to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown 
districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line 
(Southeast Gateway Line).  The Plan, in conjunction with amendments to the General 
Plan and the Zoning Code, constitutes the “Project.” 

 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 65353(a) provides that “[w]hen the city has 
a planning commission authorized by local ordinance or resolution to review and 
recommend action on a proposed general plan … the commission shall hold at least one 
public hearing before approving a recommendation on the adoption … of a general plan. 
Notice of the hearing shall be given pursuant to Section 65090.”  Further, Section 
65353(b) provides that “[i]f a proposed general plan would affect the permitted uses or 
intensity of uses of real property, notice of the hearing shall also be given pursuant to 
paragraphs (1) and (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 65091.” 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 65453(a) provides that “[a] specific plan 
shall be prepared, adopted, and amended in the same manner as a general plan, except 
that a specific plan may be adopted by resolution or by ordinance and may be amended 
as often as deemed necessary by the legislative body.” 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 65454 provides that “[n]o specific plan may 
be adopted … unless the proposed plan … is consistent with the general plan.” 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a properly 
noticed public hearing in accordance with California Government Code Sections 65090 
and 65091 to consider the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, and following the 
receipt of public testimony, closed the hearing and adopted Resolution No. 2025-19P.   

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a properly noticed public hearing on July 
14, 2025 at which members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on 
this Ordinance, the recommendations of staff, and other public testimony 

WHEREAS, all legal preconditions to the adoption of this Ordinance have 
occurred. 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ARTESIA DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The City Council above are each 
incorporated and adopted as findings by the City Council. 

SECTION 2. CEQA. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act 

(Public Resources Code, §§ 21000 et seq., “CEQA”), the regulations promulgated 
thereunder (14 Cal. Code of Regulations §§ 15000 et seq., the CEQA Guidelines the City 
prepared a Draft Environmental Impact Report  (SCH #2024020999) (“DEIR”), that 
analyzed the proposed Project’s environmental impacts. The DEIR was made available 
for public review from February 28, 2025, through April 14, 2025. On June 9, 2025, the 
City completed the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), which comprises of the 
Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR), comments received on the DEIR, and 
responses to those comments. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted 
a duly noticed public hearing and considered the entire administrative record (as of that 
date), including staff reports, the FEIR, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(MMRP), Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations and oral and written 
testimony from interested persons, all of whom were given an opportunity to be heard 
and adopted Resolution No. 2025-17P recommending City Council adopt the Findings of 
Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations, the MMRP, and certify the FEIR. City 
Council Resolution No. 2025-___ certified the FEIR and adopted the MMRP, Findings of 
Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations. This Ordinance incorporates by 
reference the environmental findings and analysis set forth in Resolution No. 2025-___, 
including the FEIR, as if fully set forth herein: 

SECTION 3. Findings. Government Code section 65860 requires a city's zoning 
ordinance to be consistent with the general plan. Based on all evidence in the record, the 
City Council finds as follows:  

A. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is consistent with the General Plan 
2030 Community Policy LU 1.4, which calls for ensuring that mixed-use 
developments are integrated with surrounding uses to become part of the 
neighborhood by utilizing cohesive architecture, lively streetscape, interesting 
urban spaces, and attractive landscaping.  The proposed project identifies 
permitted uses and development standards that are intended to integrate future 
development within the project site with the surrounding community. Additionally, 
the proposed project includes complementary designs and uses that are 
compatible with existing surrounding neighborhoods by continuing active ground-
level retail. The proposed project also identifies landscaping standards that 
conform to the City’s Urban Forestry Manual, ensuring attractive and cohesive 
landscaping. Therefore, the proposed project would not conflict with this policy. 

 
B. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is consistent with the proposed 

General Plan Amendment, which will establish a new Land Use Designation called 
the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. 

 



 3 

C. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan will not adversely affect or be 
detrimental to adjacent properties, as it includes measures that adhere to all 
required City standards for circulation, noise, setbacks, buffer areas, landscaping, 
and architecture, ensuring compatibility between different uses.  Moreover, the 
Plan identifies development standards that would enhance the surrounding 
neighborhood and prevent deterioration of surrounding uses, including single-
family residences, while also ensuring that it does not adversely impact the safety 
and residential character of the neighborhood. 
 

D. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is consistent with the following 
community policies and policy actions in the General Plan 2030 Community Policy 
Program: 

 
1. Community Policy LU 1.1 and Policy Action LU 1.1.1 encourage the 

identification of appropriate locations for residential and non-residential 
development to accommodate growth through the year 2030 by evaluating 
amendments to the General Plan Land Use Map to consider the effect that 
such amendments will have on the City’s ability to achieve its goals of a well 
planned community. The proposed Specific Plan enables re-purposing of 
under-utilized parcels and facilitates vibrant mixed-use developments, which 
will contribute to accommodating the City’s housing demand through the year 
2030. 

 
2. Community Policy LU 1.2 and Policy Action LU 1.2.1 encourage a wide 

variety of commercial services in appropriate locations by analyzing the 
current inventory of developed and undeveloped commercial sites in the City 
in order to assess which are economically viable commercial developments 
that can be supported.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan will enable 
mixed-use projects that incorporate commercial uses alongside residential 
uses, thereby enhancing commercial viability by positioning customers and 
services near one another. 

 
3. Community Policy LU 1.3 and Policy Action LU 1.3.1 encourage active and 

inviting pedestrian-friendly street environments that include a variety of uses 
within commercial and mixed-use areas by enhancing access, safety and the 
streetscape experience for pedestrians, bicyclists and transit riders; and that 
focus improvements in areas with the highest need. The proposed Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan will enable a mixed-use projects. 

 
4. Housing Sub-Element Policy HE 1.3 encourage mixed-use 

(residential/commercial) development on existing commercial zoned land.  
The project site is currently zoned Commercial General, Multi-Family 
Residential, Light Manufacturing/Industrial, Commercial Planned 
Development, and South Street Specific Plan. The proposed project would 
include a zone change to change the project site’s existing zoning to Specific 



 4 

Plan. The proposed project would permit infill development of mixed uses 
comprising of high-density residential and commercial retail. 

 
SECTION 4. Effective Date; Contingency. This Ordinance is a part of a larger 

project (Case No. 2024-06), which requires adoption of a General Plan Amendment. This 
Ordinance shall not take effect unless and until the General Plan Amendment is approved 
and adopted by the City Council. If the Council does not approve the General Plan 
Amendment, this Ordinance shall be null and void and of no force or effect and, without 
any further action by the City Council. It shall be as if the Ordinance had never been 
adopted. 

SECTION 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any person or place, is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The 
City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each and 
every section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, 
irrespective of the fact than any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, 
sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 6. Location of Documents and Custodian of Records. The documents 
29 associated with this Ordinance are located at City Hall, 18747 Clarkdale Ave, Artesia, 
CA 90701, and the City Clerk is the custodian of records for this Ordinance. 

SECTION 7. Certification and Publication. The City Clerk shall certify the passage 
and adoption of this Ordinance and shall cause the same to be published pursuant to 
state law within fifteen (15) days after its passage, and this Ordinance shall become 
effective thirty (30) days after its passage. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of July, 2025.  
 

 
 __________________________ 
 ALI SAJJAD TAJ, MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

 
______________________________ 
JENNIFER ALDERETE, CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
BEST BEST & KRIEGER, CITY ATTORNEY 



 1 

CITY OF ARTESIA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-20P 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF ARTESIA RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY 
COUNCIL ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 25-972 TO APPROVE 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF ARTESIA ZONING 
CODE TO ACKNOWLEDGE THE PROPOSED ARTESIA 
DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN AND ESTABLISH A 
SPECIFIC PLAN ZONE FOR THE PROPOSED ARTESIA 
DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN (CASE NO. 2024-06).  

_____________________________________________________ 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ARTESIA DOES HEREBY 
FIND, ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Artesia City Council, on August 22, 2016, approved a grant 
agreement between the City of Artesia and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Metro”) to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (“Plan”). A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the 
City and Metro, as the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded.  

SECTION 2. The Plan would implement new land use, zoning, and development 
standards to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown 
districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line 
(Southeast Gateway Line).  The Plan, in conjunction with amendments to the General 
Plan and the Zoning Code, constitutes the “Project.” 

SECTION 3. Amendment to the City of Artesia Zoning Code is necessary to 
acknowledge the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan and establish a specific plan 
zone for the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan by amending Artesia Municipal 
Code Section 9-2.3453 (Specific Plan Zones and Zoning Map Designations) to add the 
“Artesia Downtown Specific Plan” as an approved and established Specific Plan Zone. 
The amended Zoning Code Section would state the following:  

 Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, a copy of 
which is on file in the Office of the City Clerk, has been prepared to guide the scale 
of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown districts as the City 
prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line (Southeast 
Gateway Line). The 70.8-acre Plan area includes the blocks adjoining Pioneer 
Boulevard, beginning with the area around the future Pioneer Station to the south 
and ending just beyond 183rd Street to the north.  To the east and west, the area 
is bounded by Arline, Corby, and Alburtis Avenues. The area further extends south 
along Pioneer Boulevard within the City of Artesia and includes the area between 
188th Street and the Le Belle Chateau Estates Mobile Home Park, and Pioneer 



 2 

Boulevard to Jersey Avenue. The area covered by the Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan shall be established as the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan (ADSP) Zone, 
and shall be designated on the Zoning Map by the designation “ADSP.” Properties 
within the ADSP Zone shall be subject to specific plan recovery fees, as set forth 
by City Council resolution and authorized by Chapter 7 (Specific Plan Recovery 
Fees) of Title 3 (Finance) of the Artesia Municipal Code. (Ord. 666, § 12; Ord. 12-
778, § 12; Ord. 16-834 § 11.) 

 
SECTION 4. Amendment to the City of Artesia Zoning Map will change the zoning 

classification of properties covered by the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan from 
Commercial General, Commercial Planned Development, Light Manufacturing and 
Industrial, Multiple-Family Residential, Service & Professional, and South Street Specific 
Plan to Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. The proposed Zoning Map is attached to 
Ordinance No. 25-972 as Exhibit “A.”  

SECTION 5. Artesia Municipal Code Section 9–2.3452(a) provides that “[t]he 
adoption of a specific plan shall be accompanied by an amendment to the Artesia 
Municipal Code to acknowledge the approved specific plan and to establish a Specific 
Plan Zone for the approved specific plan.” 

SECTION 6. California Government Code Section 65853 provides that “an 
amendment to a zoning ordinance, which amendment changes any property from one 
zone to another or imposes any regulation listed in Section 65850 not theretofore imposed 
or removes or modifies any such regulation theretofore imposed shall be adopted in the 
manner set forth in Sections 65854 to 65857, inclusive.” 

SECTION 7. California Government Code Section 65855 provides that “the 
planning commission shall render its decision in the form of a written recommendation to 
the legislative body.  Such recommendation shall include the reasons for the 
recommendation, the relationship of the proposed amendment to applicable general and 
specific plans, and shall be transmitted to the legislative body in such form and manner 
as may be specified by the legislative body.” 

SECTION 8. Artesia Municipal Code Section 9–2.3452(b) provides that “[t]he 
adoption of a specific plan shall be accompanied by an amendment to the Zoning Map of 
the City of Artesia to change the zoning classification of the area covered by the specific 
plan to the designated Specific Plan Zone.” 

SECTION 9. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing in accordance with California Government Code Sections 65090 
and 65091 to consider the proposed amendments to the Zoning Code, including the 
Zoning Map, and following the receipt of public testimony, closed the public hearing. 

SECTION 10. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(Public Resources Code, §§ 21000 et seq., “CEQA”), the regulations promulgated 
thereunder (14 Cal. Code of Regulations §§ 15000 et seq., the CEQA Guidelines the City 
prepared a Draft Environmental Impact Report  (SCH #2024020999) (“DEIR”), that 



 3 

analyzed the proposed Project’s environmental impacts. The DEIR was made available 
for public review from February 28, 2025, through April 14, 2025. On June 9, 2025, the 
City completed the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), which comprises of the 
Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR), comments received on the DEIR, and 
responses to those comments. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted 
a duly noticed public hearing and considered the entire administrative record (as of that 
date), including staff reports, the FEIR, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(MMRP), Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations and oral and written 
testimony from interested persons, all of whom were given an opportunity to be heard. 
Resolution No. 2025-17P recommends adoption of the Findings of Fact, Statement of 
Overriding Considerations, the MMRP, and certification of the FEIR, among other things, 
properly assesses the environmental impact of the Project in accordance with CEQA. 
This Resolution incorporates by reference the environmental findings and analysis set 
forth in Resolution No. 2025-17P, including the FEIR, as if fully set forth herein: 

SECTION 11. Based on all evidence in the record, the Planning Commission 
finds that the proposed Zoning Code and Map Amendments are appropriate for the 
following reasons: 

A. Changing the Zoning designation of the subject properties from Commercial 
General, Commercial Planned Development, Light Manufacturing and Industrial, 
Multiple-Family Residential, Service & Professional, and South Street Specific 
Plan to Artesia Downtown Specific Plan is in the public interest because this would 
create the opportunity for mixed-use residential development within the core 
downtown area of the City subject to development standards which will encourage 
the development and redevelopment of a contemporary mix of commercial retail, 
offices and residential uses that will expand economic vibrancy and livability in the 
areas.  The proposed project would allow for the development of a mixed-use 
transit-oriented community with a mix of high-density residential uses and 
commercial retail uses and serve the public interest.  

 
B. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan Zone is consistent with the 

proposed General Plan Amendment, which will establish a new Land Use 
Designation called the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. 
 

C. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zoning designation is consistent 
with the General Plan 2030 goal of a well-planned community with sufficient land 
uses and intensities to meet the needs of anticipated growth and achieve the 
community’s vision (Community Goal LU 1) by creating opportunities for mixed 
land-use patter that will foster a strong community identify, provide new 
employment, housing, shopping and entertainment opportunities, and strengthen 
the City’s tax base. 
 

D. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zoning designation will not 
adversely affect or be detrimental to adjacent properties, as it includes measures 
that adhere to all required City standards for circulation, noise, setbacks, buffer 



 4 

areas, landscaping, and architecture, ensuring compatibility between different 
uses.  Moreover, the Plan identifies development standards that would enhance 
the surrounding neighborhood and prevent deterioration of surrounding uses, 
including single-family residences, while also ensuring that it does not adversely 
impact the safety and residential character of the neighborhood. 
 

E. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zoning designation is consistent 
with the following community policies and policy actions in the General Plan 2030 
Community Policy Program: 

 
1. Community Policy LU 1.1 and Policy Action LU 1.1.1 encourage the 

identification of appropriate locations for residential and non-residential 
development to accommodate growth through the year 2030. The proposed 
Specific Plan zone enables re-purposing of under-utilized parcels and 
facilitates vibrant mixed-use developments, which will contribute to 
accommodating the City’s housing demand through the year 2030; and 

 
2. Community Policy LU 1.2 and Policy Action LU 1.2.1 encourage a wide 

variety of commercial services in appropriate locations by analyzing the 
current inventory of developed and undeveloped commercial sites in the City 
in order to assess which are economically viable commercial developments 
that can be supported.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zone will enable 
mixed-use projects that incorporate commercial uses alongside residential 
uses, thereby enhancing commercial viability by positioning customers and 
services near one another; and 

 
3. Community Policy LU 1.3 and Policy Action LU 1.3.1 encourage active and 

inviting pedestrian-friendly street environments that include a variety of uses 
within commercial and mixed-use areas by enhancing access, safety and the 
streetscape experience for pedestrians, bicyclists and transit riders; and that 
focus improvements in areas with the highest need. The proposed Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan zone will enable a mixed-use projects; and 

 
4. Housing Sub-Element Policy HE 1.3 encourage mixed-use 

(residential/commercial) development on existing commercial zoned land.  
The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zone would permit infill 
development of mixed uses comprising of high-density residential and 
commercial retail; and 

 
5. Community Policy LU 1.4 and Policy Action LU 1.4.1 and 1.4.2, which 

ensures that mixed use developments are integrated with surrounding uses 
to become part of the neighborhood by utilizing cohesive architecture, lively 
streetscapes, interesting urban spaces and attractive landscaping.  The 
proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zone would facilitate mixed-use 
developments and ensure such developments are integrated with 



 5 

surrounding uses with the imposition of development standards including but 
not limited to setbacks, stepbacks, open space, height and landscaping.   

 
SECTION 12. Based on the findings contained in Sections 10 and 11 above, 

and all other evidence in the record, the Planning Commission hereby recommends that 
the City Council introduce adopt Ordinance No. 25-972, which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, establishing the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan Zone.  

SECTION 13. The Interim Community Development Director shall certify to 
the adoption of this Resolution and shall forward a copy of it to the City Clerk and to the 
City Council.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2025. 

 
        
  Victor Manalo, Chairperson   

ATTEST: 

 
       ___________ 
Salvador Lopez, Interim Community Development Director 
 
 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 
AYES:   COMMISSIONERS:  
NOES:   COMMISSIONERS:   
ABSENT:   COMMISSIONERS:  
ABSTAIN:   COMMISSIONERS:  
 
  



 6 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 25-___ TO AMEND THE ZONING 
CODE INCLUDING TEXT AND MAP 

 



 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-972 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ARTESIA, CALIFORNIA AMENDING SECTION 9-2.3453 
(SPECIFIC PLAN ZONES AND ZONING MAP 
DESIGNATIONS) OF ARTICLE 34.5 (SPECIFIC PLAN 
ZONES (SP)) OF CHAPTER 2 (ZONING) OF TITLE 9 
(PLANNING AND ZONING) OF THE ARTESIA MUNICIPAL 
CODE AND AMENDING THE CITY OF ARTESIA ZONING 
MAP. 

WHEREAS, the Artesia City Council, on August 22, 2016, approved a grant 
agreement between the City of Artesia and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Metro”) to fund the preparation of the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan (“Plan”). A second grant was approved on November 8, 2021, between the 
City and Metro, as the original boundary of the proposed Plan area was expanded. 

WHEREAS, the Plan would implement new land use, zoning, and development 
standards to guide the scale of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown 
districts as the City prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line 
(Southeast Gateway Line).  The Plan, in conjunction with amendments to the General 
Plan and the Zoning Code, constitutes the “Project.” 

 
WHEREAS, amendment to the City of Artesia Zoning Code is necessary to 

acknowledge the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan and establish a specific plan 
zone for the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan by amending Artesia Municipal 
Code Section 9–2.3453 (Specific Plan Zones and Zoning Map Designations) to add the 
“Artesia Downtown Specific Plan” as an approved and established Specific Plan Zone. 
The amended Zoning Code Section would state the following: 

 
Artesia Downtown Specific Plan.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, a copy of 
which is on file in the Office of the City Clerk, has been prepared to guide the scale 
of future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown districts as the City 
prepares for the planned expansion of a new Metro light rail line (Southeast 
Gateway Line). The 70.8-acre Plan area includes the blocks adjoining Pioneer 
Boulevard, beginning with the area around the future Pioneer Station to the south 
and ending just beyond 183rd Street to the north.  To the east and west, the area 
is bounded by Arline, Corby, and Alburtis Avenues. The area further extends south 
along Pioneer Boulevard within the City of Artesia and includes the area between 
188th Street and the Le Belle Chateau Estates Mobile Home Park, and Pioneer 
Boulevard to Jersey Avenue. The area covered by the Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan shall be established as the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan (ADSP) Zone, 
and shall be designated on the Zoning Map by the designation “ADSP.” Properties 
within the ADSP Zone shall be subject to specific plan recovery fees, as set forth 
by City Council resolution and authorized by Chapter 7 (Specific Plan Recovery 
Fees) of Title 3 (Finance) of the Artesia Municipal Code. (Ord. 666, § 12; Ord. 12-
778, § 12; Ord. 16-834 § 11). 



 

 2 

 
The Artesia Live Specific Plan consists of approximately 35,772 square feet at 
17610 & 17618 Pioneer Boulevard (Assessor Parcel Numbers 7033-007-016, 
7033-007-017 and 7033-007-108). 

 
WHEREAS, the amendment to the City of Artesia Zoning Map will change the 

zoning classification of properties covered by the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan from Commercial General, Commercial Planned Development, Light Manufacturing 
and Industrial, Multiple-Family Residential, Service & Professional, and South Street 
Specific Plan to Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. The proposed Zoning Map is attached 
as Exhibit “A”. 

 
WHEREAS, Artesia Municipal Code Section 9–2.1601 provides that the provisions 

of the Zoning Code may be amended to reclassify zones, to alter the boundaries of 
districts, to impose regulations not heretofore imposed, and to remove or modify any 
regulation heretofore imposed pursuant to the provisions of Title 7 of the Government 
Code of the State. 

WHEREAS, Artesia Municipal Code Section 9–2.3452(a) provides that “[t]he 
adoption of a specific plan shall be accompanied by an amendment to the Artesia 
Municipal Code to acknowledge the approved specific plan and to establish a Specific 
Plan Zone for the approved specific plan.” 
 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65853 provides that “an 
amendment to a zoning ordinance, which amendment changes any property from one 
zone to another or imposes any regulation listed in Section 65850 not theretofore imposed 
or removes or modifies any such regulation theretofore imposed shall be adopted in the 
manner set forth in Sections 65854 to 65857, inclusive.” 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65854 provides that “the 
planning commission shall hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment to a zoning 
ordinance.”  

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65855 provides that “the 
planning commission shall render its decision in the form of a written recommendation to 
the legislative body.  Such recommendation shall include the reasons for the 
recommendation, the relationship of the proposed amendment to applicable general and 
specific plans, and shall be transmitted to the legislative body in such form and manner 
as may be specified by the legislative body.”’ 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted a properly 
noticed public hearing in accordance with California Government Code Sections 65090 
and 65091 to consider the proposed amendments to the Zoning Code, and following the 
receipt of public testimony, closed the hearing and adopted Resolution No. 2025-20P.   



 

 3 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a properly noticed public hearing on July 
14, 2025 at which members of the public were afforded an opportunity to comment on 
this Ordinance, the recommendations of staff, and other public testimony 

WHEREAS, all legal preconditions to the adoption of this Ordinance have 
occurred. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ARTESIA DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The City Council above are each 
incorporated and adopted as findings by the City Council. 

SECTION 2. CEQA. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(Public Resources Code, §§ 21000 et seq., “CEQA”), the regulations promulgated 
thereunder (14 Cal. Code of Regulations §§ 15000 et seq., the CEQA Guidelines the City 
prepared a Draft Environmental Impact Report  (SCH #2024020999) (“DEIR”), that 
analyzed the proposed Project’s environmental impacts. The DEIR was made available 
for public review from February 28, 2025, through April 14, 2025. On June 9, 2025, the 
City completed the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), which comprises of the 
Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR), comments received on the DEIR, and 
responses to those comments. On June 17, 2025, the Planning Commission conducted 
a duly noticed public hearing and considered the entire administrative record (as of that 
date), including staff reports, the FEIR, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(MMRP), Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations and oral and written 
testimony from interested persons, all of whom were given an opportunity to be heard 
and adopted Resolution No. 2025-17P recommending City Council adopt the Findings of 
Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations, the MMRP, and certify the FEIR. City 
Council Resolution No. 25-___ certified the FEIR and adopted the MMRP, Findings of 
Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations. This Ordinance incorporates by 
reference the environmental findings and analysis set forth in Resolution No. 2025-___, 
including the FEIR, as if fully set forth herein: 

SECTION 3. Findings. Government Code section 65860 requires a city's zoning 

ordinance to be consistent with the general plan. Based on all evidence in the record, the 
City Council finds as follows:  

A. Changing the Zoning designation of the subject properties from 
Commercial General, Commercial Planned Development, Light 
Manufacturing and Industrial, Multiple-Family Residential, Service & 
Professional, and South Street Specific Plan to Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan is in the public interest because this would create the opportunity for 
mixed-use residential development within the core downtown area of the 
City subject to development standards which will encourage the 
development and redevelopment of a contemporary mix of commercial 
retail, offices and residential uses that will expand economic vibrancy and 
livability in the areas.  The proposed project would allow for the 



 

 4 

development of a mixed-use transit-oriented community with a mix of high-
density residential uses and commercial retail uses and serve the public 
interest.  

 

B. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan Zone is consistent with the 
proposed General Plan Amendment, which will establish a new Land Use 
Designation called the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. 
 

C. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zoning designation is 
consistent with the General Plan 2030 goal of a well planned community 
with sufficient land uses and intensities to meet the needs of anticipated 
growth and achieve the community’s vision (Community Goal LU 1) by 
creating opportunities for mixed land-use patter that will foster a strong 
community identify, provide new employment, housing, shopping and 
entertainment opportunities, and strengthen the City’s tax base. 
 

D. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zoning designation will not 
adversely affect or be detrimental to adjacent properties, as it includes 
measures that adhere to all required City standards for circulation, noise, 
setbacks, buffer areas, landscaping, and architecture, ensuring 
compatibility between different uses.  Moreover, the Plan identifies 
development standards that would enhance the surrounding neighborhood 
and prevent deterioration of surrounding uses, including single-family 
residences, while also ensuring that it does not adversely impact the safety 
and residential character of the neighborhood. 
 

E. The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zoning designation is 
consistent with the following community policies and policy actions in the 
General Plan 2030 Community Policy Program: 

 
1. Community Policy LU 1.1 and Policy Action LU 1.1.1 encourage the 

identification of appropriate locations for residential and non-
residential development to accommodate growth through the year 
2030. The proposed Specific Plan zone enables re-purposing of 
under-utilized parcels and facilitates vibrant mixed-use 
developments, which will contribute to accommodating the City’s 
housing demand through the year 2030; and 

 
2. Community Policy LU 1.2 and Policy Action LU 1.2.1 encourage a 

wide variety of commercial services in appropriate locations by 
analyzing the current inventory of developed and undeveloped 
commercial sites in the City in order to assess which are 
economically viable commercial developments that can be 



 

 5 

supported.  The Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zone will enable 
mixed-use projects that incorporate commercial uses alongside 
residential uses, thereby enhancing commercial viability by 
positioning customers and services near one another; and 

 

3. Community Policy LU 1.3 and Policy Action LU 1.3.1 encourage 
active and inviting pedestrian-friendly street environments that 
include a variety of uses within commercial and mixed-use areas by 
enhancing access, safety and the streetscape experience for 
pedestrians, bicyclists and transit riders; and that focus 
improvements in areas with the highest need. The proposed Artesia 
Downtown Specific Plan zone will enable a mixed-use projects; and 

 
4. Housing Sub-Element Policy HE 1.3 encourage mixed-use 

(residential/commercial) development on existing commercial 
zoned land.  The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan zone 
would permit infill development of mixed uses comprising of high-
density residential and commercial retail; and 

 
5. Community Policy LU 1.4 and Policy Action LU 1.4.1 and 1.4.2, 

which ensures that mixed use developments are integrated with 
surrounding uses to become part of the neighborhood by utilizing 
cohesive architecture, lively streetscapes, interesting urban spaces 
and attractive landscaping.  The proposed Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan zone would facilitate mixed-use developments and 
ensure such developments are integrated with surrounding uses 
with the imposition of development standards including but not 
limited to setbacks, stepbacks, open space, height and landscaping.   

 
SECTION 4. Effective Date; Contingency. This Ordinance is a part of a larger 

project (Case No. 2024-06), which requires adoption of a General Plan Amendment and 
adoption of the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. This Ordinance shall not take effect 
unless and until the General Plan Amendment is approved and the Artesia Downtown 
Specific Plan is adopted by the City Council. If the Council does not approve the General 
Plan Amendment or the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, this Ordinance shall be null and 
void and of no force or effect and, without any further action by the City Council. It shall 
be as if the Ordinance had never been adopted. 

SECTION 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any person or place, is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The 
City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each and 
every section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, 



 

 6 

irrespective of the fact than any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, 
sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 6. Location of Documents and Custodian of Records. The documents 
29 associated with this Ordinance are located at City Hall, 18747 Clarkdale Ave, Artesia, 
CA 90701, and the City Clerk is the custodian of records for this Ordinance. 

SECTION 7. Certification and Publication. The City Clerk shall certify the passage 
and adoption of this Ordinance and shall cause the same to be published pursuant to 
state law within fifteen (15) days after its passage, and this Ordinance shall become 
effective thirty (30) days after its passage. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of July, 2025.  
 

 
 __________________________ 
 ALI SAJJAD TAJ, MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

 
______________________________ 
JENNIFER ALDERETE, CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
BEST BEST & KRIEGER, CITY ATTORNEY 



Artesia Downtown Specific Plan - edits between Feb 2025 Public Review Draft and June 2025 PC Hearing Draft

Edit Chapter/Page
Edited: Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit Authority (Metro) - Transportation, not transit 1.2, page 1-2

Edited text re Metro A line not E line 1.4.3, page 1-7

Edited text to remove "Little India" references 2.3, page 2-4

Updated text and figures regarding closure of 186th vs 187th per adopted SEGL/EIR plans; updated credits to reference 
WSAB Transit Corridor Final EIR"

2.4, pages 2-6--2-7

Added existing data in terms of existing conditions (e.g. counts, surveys, collisions) related to First Last Mile/active 
transportation/connectivity to/from Pioneer station

 3.2 / page 3-6

Credited illustrations to Andmore Partners 4.8.2  page 4-17

Added reference to Section 6.9.5 (Parking Structures Design Standards) in Metro Parking Garage text 4.8.3, page 4-18

Added standards for conversion of existing structures to Live/Work 5.2.1, page 5-12

Added introduction to Chapter 6, define "development" for purposes of design standards; addition renumbers all subsequent 
Sections in Chapter 6

6.1 page 6-2

Added Special Setbacks to Figure 6-1 6.2, Figure 6-1, Page 6-5

Added Special Setbacks to Section 6.3.3  6.3.3, page 6-9

Modified standards to require public alleys be constructed as concrete, not asphalt (per City policy) 6.3.4 item d., page 6-10

Modified Open Space Standards from 200sf/unit to 150sf/unit 6.4.1 Open Space - Dev Standards, page 6-14

Relocated balcony standards to Private Open Space  6.4.4, page 6-17

Edited balcony dimensions for consistency 6.4.4 page 6-17

Add additional options for Height Modulation  6.5.1, page 6-19

Reorganized subsections in Section 6.6 Materials and Finishes to minimize blank pages  6.6, pages 6-22--29

Defined exemptions to Public Art requirement; added requirement for maintanence fund; add provision regarding 
requirements become effective upon adoption of Public Art ordinance

 6.6.4, page 6-25

Integrated Rootop Equipment into Section 6.6.5 Utilities  6.6.5, page 6-26

Add subsection regarding Signs (subject to Muni Code)  6.6.7  page 6-28

Edited Trash standards to include landfill, recycling, and organics 6.6.8, page 6-28

Make Streetscapes unique Subsection  6.7, page 6-30

Edited standards per City Engineer's direction 6.7 Streetscapes, page 6-30

Edited/added standards for Parking Structures per City direction  6.9.5, pages 6-40--41

Corrected reference on Legend: 'West Santa Ana Branch' to 'Southeast Gateway Line' 7.3.2, Figure 7.3 / Page 7-9

Included sidewalk and bike lane buffer dimensions on cross-sections  7.3.4, Figures 7.5-7 / Page 7-13

Corrected street references 7.3.4 Figures 7.5,page 7-13

Reorganized Chapter 8 text/figures to minimize blank pages  Chapter 8

Reorganized Chapter 9 to minimize blank pages Chapter 9

Added standards regarding proposals that cross zone boundaries  9.1.8, page 9-6

Added "9.2.3 Restrictions" to Community Benefits 9.2.3, page 9-7

Corrected Table References 9.2.4, pages 9-8--11

Added language "Adopt a Public Art Ordinance to implement Section 6.6.4" 9.3.4, page 9-13

Reorganized Chapter 10 text/figures to minimize blank pages Chapter 10

Added clause "including any previous Specific Plans" in Section 10.1 General Plan 10.1, page 10-2

Added subsection regarding the Mixed-Use Overlay Zone 10.3.1, page 10-4

Added subsection regarding Downtown Design Guidelines 10.4, page 10-4

Correct section title to 'Perceived Street Width' (typo) Appendix B Existing Conditions / Page B-26



 

June 2025 | Final Environmental Impact Report 
State Clearinghouse No. 2024020999 

ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
City of Artesia 

Prepared for: 

City of Artesia 
Salvador Lopez, Jr., Interim Community Development Director  

18747 Clarkdale Avenue 
 Artesia, California 90701  

562.865.6262 
 
 

Prepared by: 

PlaceWorks 
Contact: Addie Farrell, Principal 

700 Flower St, Suite 600 
Santa Ana, California 90017 

213.623.1443 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 

 
  

~ PLACEWORKS 



 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Table of Contents 

June 2025 Page i 

Section Page 

1. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.2 FORMAT OF THE FEIR ................................................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.3 CEQA REQUIREMENTS REGARDING COMMENTS AND RESPONSES ................................. 1-2 

2. RESPONSE TO COMMENTS ...................................................................................................... 2-1 

3. REVISIONS TO THE DEIR ........................................................................................................... 3-1 
3.1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................. 3-1 
3.2 DEIR REVISIONS IN RESPONSE TO WRITTEN COMMENTS ..................................................... 3-1 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
  



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Table of Contents 

Page ii PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 



 

June 2025 Page 1-1 

1. Introduction 
1.1 INTRODUCTION 
This Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) has been prepared in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as amended (Public Resources Code §§ 21000 et seq.) and CEQA 
Guidelines (California Code of  Regulations §§ 15000 et seq.). 

According to the CEQA Guidelines, Section 15132, the FEIR shall consist of: 

(a) The Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) or a revision of  the Draft; 

(b) Comments and recommendations received on the DEIR either verbatim or in summary; 

(c) A list of  persons, organizations, and public agencies comments on the DEIR; 

(d) The responses of  the Lead Agency to significant environmental points raised in the review 
and consultation process; and 

(e) Any other information added by the Lead Agency. 

This document contains responses to comments received on the DEIR for the Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan during the public review period, which began February 28, 2025, and closed April 14, 2025. This document 
has been prepared in accordance with CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines and represents the independent 
judgment of  the Lead Agency. This document and the circulated DEIR comprise the FEIR, in accordance with 
CEQA Guidelines, Section 15132. 

1.2 FORMAT OF THE FEIR 
This document is organized as follows:  

Section 1, Introduction. This section describes CEQA requirements and content of  this FEIR. 

Section 2, Response to Comments. This section provides a list of  agencies and interested persons 
commenting on the DEIR; copies of  comment letters received during the public review period, and individual 
responses to written comments. To facilitate review of  the responses, each comment letter has been reproduced 
and assigned a number (A-1 and A-2 are letters received from agencies and organizations). Individual comments 
have been numbered for each letter and the letter is followed by responses with reference to the corresponding 
comment number. 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 1-2 PlaceWorks 

Section 3. Revisions to the Draft EIR. This section contains revisions to the DEIR text and figures as a 
result of  the comments received by agencies and interested persons, as described in Section 2, and/or errors 
and omissions discovered subsequent to release of  the DEIR for public review.  

The responses to comments contain material and revisions that will be added to the text of  the FEIR. The City 
of  Artesia staff  has reviewed this material and determined that none of  this material constitutes the type of  
significant new information that requires recirculation of  the DEIR for further public comment under CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15088.5. None of  this new material indicates that the project will result in a significant new 
environmental impact not previously disclosed in the DEIR. Additionally, none of  this material indicates that 
there would be a substantial increase in the severity of  a previously identified environmental impact that will 
not be mitigated, or that there would be any of  the other circumstances requiring recirculation described in 
Section 15088.5. 

1.3 CEQA REQUIREMENTS REGARDING COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15204(a) outlines parameters for submitting comments and reminds persons and 
public agencies that the focus of  review and comment of  DEIRs should be “on the sufficiency of  the 
document in identifying and analyzing possible impacts on the environment and ways in which significant 
effects of  the project might be avoided or mitigated. Comments are most helpful when they suggest additional 
specific alternatives or mitigation measures that would provide better ways to avoid or mitigate the significant 
environmental effects. At the same time, reviewers should be aware that the adequacy of  an EIR is determined 
in terms of  what is reasonably feasible. …CEQA does not require a lead agency to conduct every test or 
perform all research, study, and experimentation recommended or demanded by commenters. When 
responding to comments, lead agencies need only respond to significant environmental issues and do not need 
to provide all information requested by reviewers, as long as a good faith effort at full disclosure is made in the 
EIR.”  

CEQA Guidelines Section 15204 (c) further advises, “Reviewers should explain the basis for their comments, 
and should submit data or references offering facts, reasonable assumptions based on facts, or expert opinion 
supported by facts in support of  the comments. Pursuant to Section 15064, an effect shall not be considered 
significant in the absence of  substantial evidence.” Section 15204 (d) also states, “Each responsible agency and 
trustee agency shall focus its comments on environmental information germane to that agency’s statutory 
responsibility.” Section 15204 (e) states, “This section shall not be used to restrict the ability of  reviewers to 
comment on the general adequacy of  a document or of  the lead agency to reject comments not focused as 
recommended by this section.” 

In accordance with CEQA, Public Resources Code Section 21092.5, copies of  the written responses to public 
agencies will be forwarded to those agencies at least 10 days prior to certifying the environmental impact report. 
The responses will be forwarded with copies of  this FEIR, as permitted by CEQA, and will conform to the 
legal standards established for response to comments on DEIRs.  

  



 

June 2025 Page 2-1 

2. Response to Comments 
Section 15088 of  the CEQA Guidelines requires the Lead Agency (City of  Artesia) to evaluate comments on 
environmental issues received from public agencies and interested parties who reviewed the DEIR and prepare 
written responses. 

This section provides all written responses received on the DEIR and the City of  Artesia’s responses to each 
comment.  

Comment letters and specific comments are given letters and numbers for reference purposes. Where sections 
of  the DEIR are excerpted in this document, the sections are shown indented. Changes to the DEIR text are 
shown in underlined text for additions and strikeout for deletions. 

The following is a list of  agencies and persons that submitted comments on the DEIR during the public review 
period. 

 
Number 

Reference Commenting Person/Agency Date of Comment Page No. 
Agencies & Organizations 

A1 Strong Towns Artesia  3/14/25 2-3 
A2 City of Cerritos 4/14/25 2-9 

 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-2 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-3 

LETTER A1 – Strong Towns Artesia (1 page) 

  

Comment Letter A-1 

Good evening, Commissioners. My name is Lorelei Bailey, resident of Artesia, and I'm speaking 
on behalf of Strong Towns Artesia. 

We support the proposed project over the alternatives because it best aligns with the needs of 
our community. The alternatives would limit density, reduce economic activity, and fail to create 
a walkable, transit-supportive downtown. If we're serious about building a thriving, financially 
strong Artesia, we cannot afford to weaken this plan. 

First, our active transportation network is not just insufficient-it's unsafe. The plan sadly does 
not go far enough to correct this. Painted bike lanes and flex posts will not provide the protection 
needed to make cycling a real transportation option for women, seniors, and children , 
population groups far more likely to be hesitant to ride in unsafe conditions. We need a far more 
aggressive approach, including fully protected bike lanes, raised crosswalks, and continuous, 
safe routes that prioritize people over cars. 

Second, Artesia already faces a deficit of 33 acres of parkland under the Quimby Act. 
Additionally our urban tree canopy is well under half of the average of the region which has 
significant negative impacts on our health, property values, and walkability. As density 
increases, we must ensure that public space is prioritized, not just private development. A 
serious focus on place making and people centered design will set Artesia apart from our peers 
in the region. 

Third, Metro's planned parking structure must not disrupt our urban fabric. We insist that the city 
ensures Metro makes sure its street-facing frontage is active and engaging-with retail, public 
space, or other uses-to prevent dead zones in the heart of downtown. 

Fourth, we must plan for the rise of e-bikes. As they become more common, safe, 
well-connected infrastructure will be even more essential. This isn 't just about cyclists-it's 
about giving more people real, practical alternatives to driving. 

We also urge the City to embrace granular urbanism. Our small businesses generate the 
majority of Artesia's sales tax revenue, yet the DEIR projects a decline in jobs in the study area. 
That's unacceptable. We need policies that support small-scale, incremental development, 
allowing businesses to adapt and grow. 

Finally, land use decisions must reflect how people actually use transit. Most Metro riders travel 
no more than three miles unless heading to a major destination. If Artesia wants to fully benefit 
from the light rail , we must create unique draws that make downtown a destination-flat just a 
stop along the way. 

The proposed project is the only option that can deliver a truly vibrant, financially sustainable 
downtown. Let's make sure we build a place where people want to stay, invest, and thrive. 

Thank you. 

A1-1 

A1-2 

A1-3 

I AU 

I "' 
I A16 

A1-7 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-4 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-5 

A1. Response to Comments from Strong Towns Artesia, dated March 14, 2025. 

A1-1 This comment introduces the comment letter and expresses support for the proposed 
project over the alternatives discussed in the DEIR. This comment does not raise any 
environmental concerns.. No changes to the DEIR are required. 

A1-2 This comment raises concerns for the safety of  the active transportation network, 
specifically bike lanes, and requests that bike lanes be separated from vehicle traffic. 
Section 5.13, Transportation, page 5.13-11, of  the DEIR defines the bikeway facilities being 
proposed under the Specific Plan. The type of  bike lanes proposed are dependent on their 
location, path of  travel, and anticipated level of  use. Class IV bike lanes, which are 
physically separated from vehicle traffic, are planned along South Street and Pioneer 
Boulevard, which are Primary Arterial Highways, through the entirety of  Downtown 
Artesia, except on the segment that would have a Class III route. Class II bike lanes are 
proposed along 183rd Street, a Secondary Arterial Highway, and Class III Bike Route 
along 187th Street, a designated Collector roadway. These segments carry much lower 
volumes of  vehicle traffic compared to Primary Arterial Highways and do not warrant full 
physical separation from the road. The Specific Plan also proposes to coordinate with 
neighboring jurisdictions to create an integrated system of  bike routes to ensure safety. 
Additionally, development facilitated by the Specific Plan, including improvements to the 
circulation network, would be evaluated on a project-by-project basis and would undergo 
the appropriate level of  analysis required under CEQA. This comment does not identify 
a deficiency in the DEIR or a new or exacerbated significant environmental impact. The 
comment is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the decision-making 
bodies for their review and consideration. No changes to the DEIR are required. 

A1-3 This comment raises concerns about the lack of  open space and accurately states a 
deficiency of  33 acres of  parkland within the City. As discussed in the DEIR in Section 
5.12, Recreation, page 5.12-4, surrounding parks in Cerritos, Buena Park, and Long Beach 
and a joint-use agreement with the ABC Unified School District provide additional open 
space and recreational opportunities and amenities for Artesia residents and visitors. As 
discussed in Section 5.12, Recreation, page 5.12-6, Impact 5.12-1, the Specific Plan would 
also implement open space requirements for future development uses that would connect 
surrounding areas to provide access to diverse recreational amenities. As discussed below 
in Section 3, Revisions to the DEIR, residential development shall provide a minimum of  
150 square feet of  open space per unit, and non-residential development over 20,000 
square feet shall provide open space equal to 5 percent of  the overall development 
parcel(s). Additionally, the proposed project would be subject to compliance with City 
Resolution No. 19-2742, which requires payment of  development impact fees to mitigate 
the impacts of  new residents and visitors on parks and recreation facilities (i.e., parkland 
as a result of  new development). Payment of  Development Impact Fees would minimize 
the proposed project’s impacts concerning demand for parkland. Additionally, 
development facilitated by the Specific Plan would be evaluated on a project-by-project 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-6 PlaceWorks 

basis and would undergo the appropriate level of  analysis required under CEQA. The 
DEIR adequately evaluates potential environmental impacts. The comment is 
acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the decision-making bodies for 
their review and consideration. No changes to the DEIR are required. 

A1-4 This comment raises concerns regarding the Metro planned parking structure, and the 
commenter would like to ensure that the structure remains active and engaging with retail 
and open space and does not disrupt the character of  the downtown area. The Metro 
parking structure is a part of  the Southeast Gateway Line project and is analyzed in 
Metro’s West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor Project EIR; it is not a part of  the 
proposed project. Additionally, cumulative impacts, including the planned Metro parking 
structure, were evaluated in Section 5.1, Aesthetics, page 5.1-12. Cumulative development 
projects would result in development similar to what currently exists in the surrounding 
vicinity. Additionally, the City would review site-specific development proposals against 
the Artesia Municipal Code (AMC) requirements for all future projects requiring 
discretionary and ministerial approvals. This regulatory procedure would ensure 
cumulative development is reviewed against the qualities and characteristics expected of  
development and major renovations in the City. This comment does not identify a 
deficiency in the DEIR or a new or exacerbated potential significant environmental 
impact. The comment is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the 
decision-making bodies for their review and consideration. No changes to the DEIR are 
required. 

A1-5 The comment suggests that the increase in the use of  electric bikes and the infrastructure 
needed to accommodate this increase be addressed in the DEIR. As discussed in Section 
5.2, Air Quality, page 5.2-30, Impact 5.2-3, the Specific Plan takes into account future 
mobility hubs for bikeshares, electric scooters (which can include e-bikes), and carshares. 
Additionally, one of  the main objectives of  the Specific Plan would be to create an 
equitable transit experience through quality sidewalk, roadway, and multimodal design. 
The Specific Plan would accommodate improvements to bicycle (which can include 
e-bikes), pedestrian, and transit infrastructure. This comment does not identify a 
deficiency in the DEIR nor a new or exacerbated potential significant environmental 
impact. Therefore, no changes to the DEIR are required. 

A1-6 This comment raises concerns for small businesses and the availability of  jobs. As 
discussed in Section 5.10, Population and Housing, page 5.10-9, Impact 5.10-1, Specific Plan 
Goal 1 would ensure the maintenance of  existing local business, restaurants, and retail 
shops, and Goal 2 would create a connected business district to facilitate new economic 
opportunities and would aim to expand the job market and job opportunities in the City. 
Additionally, the non-residential element of  the Specific Plan would allow for future 
development of  job-generating land uses, such as commercial, office, industrial, and 
institutional uses. This comment does not identify a deficiency in the DEIR nor a new or 
exacerbated potential significant environmental impact. The DEIR adequately evaluates 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-7 

potential environmental impacts. The comment is acknowledged for the record and will 
be forwarded to the decision-making bodies for their review and consideration. Therefore, 
no changes to the DEIR are required. 

A1-7 This comment requests that the land uses reflect how individuals use transit and the 
importance of  the downtown area as a destination for the Metro Light Rail. The Specific 
Plan includes mobility policies and standards that reflect a long-term vision to maximize 
accessibility of  the Downtown Artesia area. Additionally, the proposed project would 
allow for the development of  a mixed-use transit-oriented community with a mix of  high-
density residential uses and commercial retail uses. Approval of  the zone amendment 
(Artesia Downtown Specific Plan) would facilitate a mixed-use transit-oriented 
community and enhance its qualities as a destination. This comment does not identify a 
deficiency in the DEIR nor a new or exacerbated potential significant environmental 
impact. The comment is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the 
decision-making bodies for their review and consideration. Therefore, no changes to the 
DEIR are required. 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-8 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-9 

LETTER A2 – City of  Cerritos (3 pages) 

  

(?.' (;I --'¾-..;; 

·= " Comment l etter/'{2_ Cerritos 

~(/: ·t 

~~- '.))~ 
(?' ~, (J 

' ~ ?:' SM 

~ H~Y £:J f' ~E!=\f\1'1'05" f!S~ 
CIVICCENTEK • 18 125BLOOMPIELDAVENUE 1111 

P.O. BOX 3 130 • CERRITOS, CALIFO RNIA 90703-3 130 ° 
PHONE, (562) 860-03 11 • CERRITOS.GOV 2008 

April 14, 2025 

City of Artesia 
Department of Community Development 
Attn: Salvador Lopez, Jr., Interim Director 
18747 Clarkdale Avenue 
Artesia, CA 90701 

Subject: CITY OF CERRITOS COMMENT LETTER - DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT FOR THE ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 

Dear Mr. Lopez, 

Thank you for notifying the City of Cerritos about the availability of a Draft Environmental 
Impact Report ("Draft EIR") for the City of Artesia's Downtown Specific Plan. The City of 
Cerritos is pleased to support the revitaliza t ion of the downtown area in the City of Artesia, in 
furtherance of economic development and the development of affordable housing, while 
ensuring any potential impacts to adjacent sensitive land uses are effectively mitigated . I !'{2_-1 

appreciate the opportunity to review the Draft EIR, and hereby submit public comments on 
behalf of the Cerritos community, to ensure that any resulting development in close proximity 
to Cerritos remains compatible with surrounding land uses. Specifically, the following 
comments pertaining to land use and planning , public services, and traffic are being provided 
for consideration in establishing the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan . 

Land Use & Planning 

As you are aware, located directly adjacent to the proposed Downtown South District, are 
existing low-density, single-family homes in the City of Cerritos . While the City acknowledges 
potential applicability of Senate Bill 743 for transit-oriented infill projects, as well as the 
proximity of development in this District to the future Southeast Gateway Line, the City of 
Cerritos respectfully requests careful consideration of any proposed development for 
appropriate massing, scale, and architectural style of buildings, in order to ensure continued 
high-quality physical development in this area , and the preservation of compatibility of 
adjacent land uses. As proposed under the Downtown Specific Plan, the Downtown South 
District at its greatest proposed height and density, allows for up to seventy- five (75) 
dwelling units per acre and a maximum bui lding height of up to six (6) stories or eighty feet 
(80') in height, which is of concern for the compatibility to adjacent single-family homes in 
the City of Cerritos, To ensure that development in this District is in harmony with existing 
uses, it is recommended that building heights in close proximity to existing single-family 
homes not exceed 4-5 stories, with adequate screening from adjacent residentia l uses. 
Additionally, the City of Cerritos would like to ensure that measures are included in the Final 
EIR, as well as any future development project(s) in this District, specifically related to 
privacy, lighting, and aesthetics when located in close proxim ity to existing residential uses. 

FRANK AURELIO YOKOYAMA 
MAYOR 

LYNDA P. JOHNSON 
MAYOR PRO TEM 

JENNIFER HONG 
COUNCILMEMBEK 

MARK E. PULIDO 
COUNCILMEMBEK 

SOPH IA M. TSE 
COUNCILMEM BEK 

!'{2_-2 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-10 PlaceWorks 

  

Draft EIR - Artesia Downtown Specific Plan 
City of Cerritos Comment Letter 
April 14, 2025 
Page 2 

Public Services 

In accordance with Appendix G of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, a 
project would normally have a significant effect on the environment if a project results in 
impacts to acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for 
public services including, but not limited to, police and fire protection services. Pursuant to 
the Draft EIR and the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, new development would be permitted 
at the southwest corner of South Street and Pioneer Boulevard, directly across from the Los 
Angeles County Fire Department Station 30, located at 19030 Pioneer Boulevard, Cerritos, 
Californ ia, 90703. Fire Station 30 currently serves the cities of Artesia and Cerritos; 
however, the Draft EIR does not address potential impacts of proposed new development 
within the Downtown Specific Plan area, including potential impacts to emergency response 
times or accessibility to and from the existing fire station. While the Draft EIR acknowledges 
that proposed new residential and commercial development, permitted under the Specific 
Plan , would increase demand for fire protection services, the analysis indicates that any such 
development would occur in an urbanized area where fire protection services are already 
provided, and therefore it is not anticipated that new fire facilities would be required. 
With the Downtown Specific Plan allowing for the potential of 1,981 new housing units and 
approximately 503,000 square feet of nonresidential uses, potentially resulting in an increase] 
of 7,000 new residents and 350 new jobs, such an increase in population, density, and 
associated traffic may impact travel routes and times, and fire station accessibility for fire 
services provided by Fire Station 30 . As such, the City of Cerritos respectfully requests that 
the Final EIR, and well as any future proposed development projects, include measures to 
effectively mitigate all anticipated impacts to public safety services, including fire service 
response times. 

Traffic 

In accordance with t he Draft EIR Appendices, the trip generation forecast methodology 
applies a 25% mixed-use transit oriented development adjustment and a 10% transit 
adjustment to all land uses with the Downtown Specific Plan area . While TOD adjustments 
are generally acceptable, additional analysis should be conducted, as the Downtown Specific 
Plan area serves as the terminus location for the future Southeast Gateway Line, which is 

A2-5 

A2-6 

anticipated to generate more vehicle trips than other, non-terminus stations. It is therefore A2-7 
recommended that any such traffic analysis utilize ridership and trip generation data from 
other rail terminus stations in Los Angeles County, in order to more appropriately assess 
potential traffic impacts in the Downtown Specific Plan area. While the Draft EIR includes two 
(2) mitigation measures related to the separation of residential parking costs from property 
cost and the implementation of market price on-street public parking, the City of Cerritos 
requests that additional analysis and mitigation measures be incorporated to capture the 
traffic impacts associated with the Southeast Gateway Line terminus location . 

Additional analysis should also be conducted to appropriately assess potential traffic and 
parking impacts to properties located within the City of Cerritos, including (i) the Plaza Walk 
residential community located at the intersection of Pioneer Boulevard and Solana Place, and 
(ii) existing commercial and office uses located on the northeast corner of Pioneer Boulevard A2_8 
and South Street. Specifically, the Draft EIR should include sufficient parking mitigation 
measures to ensure that any development as a result of the creation of the Downtown 
Specific Plan includes requirements for parking to be wholly contained wi thin the City of 
Artesia to ensure that there are no parking impacts to adjacent arterial and secondary 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-11 

  

Draft EIR - Artesia Downtown Specific Plan 
City of Cerritos Comment Letter 
Apri l 14, 2025 
Page 3 

residential streets or commercial centers located in the City of Cerritos. The City of Cerritos 
works very carefully with commercial developers in order to ensure that sufficient on-site 
parking is provided at all commercial developments in Cerritos so as to prevent adverse 
parking impacts to adjacent uses, including those located in the City of Artesia . The City of 
Cerritos is requesting that the same careful consideration for development projects be taken 
related to parking needs, in an effort to ensure that any parking overflow is wholly contained 
within the City of Artesia . 

Given the proxim ity of the proposed project area to the City of Cerritos, the City of Cerritos 
requests that, in preparing the Final EIR for the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan, the City of 
Artesia include additional analysis discussed herein, with careful consideration of any 
potential impacts to Cerritos properties resulting from the established development standards 
under the Downtown Specific Plan. Additionally, the City of Cerritos requests a copy of any 
futu re notices, including any future entitlement review projects for physical development 
within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan. The City of Cerritos is eager to work 
collaboratively to ensure that appropriate mitigation measures are put in place to maintain a 
high standard of living for residents and businesses of both cities. Please continue to notify 
the City of Cerritos of any public hearings held for proposed development projects in the City 
of Artesia within a five-hundred (500)-foot radius of the Cerritos/Artesia border. Notifications 
of public hearings may be emailed to kagui la@cerritos.us or mailed to: City of Cerritos, 
Department of Community Development, Attn: Kristin Aguila, 18125 Bloomfield Avenue, 
Cerritos, CA 90703. 

The City of Cerritos looks forward to continu ing to work with the City of Artesia to ensure 
these important concerns are addressed in a manner that promotes the safety, well -being, 
and quality of life of both communities . 

Sincerely 

~ 
Director of Community Development 

cc Robert A. Lopez, City Manager, City of Cerritos 
Abel Avalos, City Manager, City of Artesia 
Sabrina Chan, Advance Planning Manager, City of Cerritos 

PJ.-9 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-12 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-13 

A2. Response to Comments City of Cerritos, dated April 14, 2025. 

A2-1 This comment introduces the letter submitted by the City of  Cerritos and expresses 
appreciation for the opportunity to review the DEIR and submit comments. This 
comment summarizes the topics discussed in the letter, including land use and planning, 
public services, and traffic. This comment does not identify a deficiency in the DEIR nor 
a new or exacerbated potential significant environmental impact. Therefore, no changes 
to the DEIR are required. 

A2-2 This comment raises concerns regarding the distance between potential future 
development facilitated by the Specific Plan to the single-family homes in the City of  
Cerritos that border the Specific Plan area, as it relates to building height and the 
applicability of  Senate Bill (SB) 743 for transit oriented community. With respect to 
SB 743, as discussed in Section 5.1. Aesthetics, page 5.1-1, under CEQA PRC Section 
21099(d)(1), aesthetic and parking impacts of  a residential, mixed-use residential, or 
employment center project on an infill site in a transit priority area shall not be considered 
significant impacts on the environment, provided the project meets all the following three 
criteria; the project is in a transit priority area; an infill site; and residential, mixed-use 
residential, or an employment center. CEQA PRC Section 21099(a)(7) defines a “transit 
priority area” as an area within one-half  mile of  an existing or planned major transit stop. 
A “major transit stop” is defined in CEQA Section 21064.3 as an existing rail transit 
station, ferry terminal served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of  
two or more major bus routes with a frequency of  service interval of  20 minutes or less 
during the AM and PM peak commute periods; this also includes a planned transit stop 
where construction is programmed to be completed before housing development 
completion and occupancy.  

 As discussed in Section 5.1.1, Aesthetics, page 5.1-1, threshold AE-3, future residential and 
mixed-use development that could result from implementation of  the proposed project—
particularly development within one-half  mile of  the future Pioneer Boulevard Light Rail 
Station, which is considered an existing or planned major transit stop as defined in PRC 
Section 21064.3—would meet the criteria under which aesthetic impacts are not required 
to be considered. Notwithstanding SB 743, the City of  Artesia would have the discretion 
to consider aesthetics thresholds on future projects facilitated by the Specific Plan, 
pursuant to CEQA, and disclose potential impacts for informational purposes. 
Additionally, the proposed project includes a number of  design guidelines and 
development standards that would guide future development of  the Specific Plan area. 
The proposed Specific Plan Chapter 5.0, Land Use Plan, identifies permitted uses within 
each proposed zoning district. The proposed Specific Plan Chapter 6.0, Development 
Standards, includes standards and provisions for the proposed zoning districts within the 
project site. Development standards identified include maximum densities, floor area, 
heights, façade length, parcel size, landscaping and open space, setbacks, pedestrian 
paseos, and materials and finishes. Design guidelines include those related to site planning, 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-14 PlaceWorks 

architectural integrity, landscape and open space, signage, and sustainability. The comment 
is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the decision-making bodies for 
their review and consideration. Therefore, no changes to the DEIR are required. 

A2-3 This comment requests that any development facilitated by the Specific Plan consider the 
adjacent low-density single-family homes in the City of  Cerritos and, specifically, that 
building heights not exceed 4 to 5 stories. The single-family homes in the City of  Cerritos 
that border the Specific Plan are to the west and south border of  the Chateau Estates 
Zoning District of  the Specific Plan area (see Figure 3-6, Proposed Zoning District, page 3-15, 
of  the DEIR). The maximum height proposed for the Chateau Estates would be two 
stories. However, no changes to residential character are proposed to the Chateau Estates 
(see Table 3-2, District Development Standards, page 3-17 of  the DEIR). Nonetheless, and in 
response to this comment, as discussed in Section 6.3.3, Setbacks, of  the Specific Plan, 
setbacks development standards have been updated to include Special Setbacks as 
identified in Figure 6.1, Downtown Districts, and discussed in Section 6.3.3.4, of  the 
Specific Plan. Special Setback A would be required for properties fronting Pioneer 
Boulevard and Special Setback B would be required for properties adjacent to low density 
residential. The comment is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the 
decision-making bodies for their review and consideration. Therefore, no changes to the 
DEIR are required.  

A2-4 This comment requests that measures be included to preserve compatibility of  adjacent 
land uses in the City of  Cerritos, including aesthetics and lighting. As discussed in Section 
5.1, Aesthetics, page 5.1-11, Impact 5.1-2, all proposed lighting would be required to comply 
with the exterior lighting requirements in proposed Specific Plan Chapter 6.0 and AMC 
Article 12.5, Lighting. As indicated in proposed Specific Plan Chapter 6.0, all lighting shall 
be directed, oriented, and shielded to prevent light trespassing or glaring onto adjacent 
properties. Additionally, development facilitated by the Specific Plan would be evaluated 
on a case-by-case basis and would comply with policies regarding development standards 
related to the physical form and design of  both new and renovated buildings and 
properties. Development standards would include requirements for site planning; open 
space and landscaping standards; building mass, scale, and maximum heights; materials 
and finishes; parking and loading; and frontage design standards. All future development 
would adhere to all required City standards to ensure compatibility with surrounding uses. 
Additionally, the Specific Plan includes objectives that would balance increased density 
and commercial activity with design standards that respect and enhance the character of  
existing neighborhoods, ensuring compatibility with the surrounding community. The 
comment is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the decision-making 
bodies for their review and consideration. Therefore, no changes to the DEIR are 
required. 

A2-5 This comment raises concerns regarding proximity to Los Angeles Fire Station 30, which 
serves both the City of  Artesia and the City of  Cerritos, and states that potential impacts 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-15 

to emergency response times or accessibility were not adequately addressed in the DEIR. 
A revision has been made as part of  the Final EIR to correctly state that Fire Station 30 
also serves the City of  Cerritos. Revisions are in included in Chapter 3, Revisions to the 
DEIR, below. This revision does not change the conclusion reached by the DEIR.  

Section 5.11, Public Services, page 5.11-4, Impact 5.11-1, evaluates the potential impacts of  
the proposed project to public services, specifically the proposed project’s potential 
impacts from new or expanded facilities associated with fire protection and emergency 
services. According to Appendix G of  the CEQA Guidelines, a project would normally 
have a significant effect on the environment if  the project would result in a substantial 
adverse physical impact associated with the need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of  which could cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other 
performance objectives for fire protection services. The proposed project would 
implement new land use, zoning, and development standards to guide the scale of  future 
development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown district. As such, no physical 
development or specific development projects are proposed as part of  the proposed 
project. At the planning level of  analysis, it is speculative to evaluate project-specific 
environmental impacts on fire response times since specific sites and time frames for 
development are unknown. Future development projects would undergo the necessary 
environmental and development review process to evaluate the potential impacts to 
response times and the need for additional fire protection services and would be evaluated 
on a project-specific basis. Future projects facilitated by the Specific Plan would be subject 
to compliance with development standards that require the fire and police department to 
review development proposals for potential impacts to fire station facilities and emergency 
access. Site plan reviews conducted by the City and fire and police departments for all 
projects would ensure adequate services. If  future facilities are necessary to meet project 
demand as a result of  the Specific Plan, the Los Angeles County Fire Department will 
evaluate projects at the appropriate level of  analysis required under CEQA. Additionally, 
the Los Angeles County Fire District Facilities Master Plan evaluates the current capacity, 
condition, and functionality of  Fire District facilities by projecting future capacity deficits 
utilizing Southern California Association of  Governments (SCAG) population growth 
projections. Facility capacity is analyzed in relation to current levels of  service demand, 
then combined with data on facility condition and functionality to develop a 
comprehensive list of  current need for capital improvements. As discussed in Section 5.10, 
Population and Housing, of the DEIR, pg. 5.10-9, the proposed project’s potential increases 
in density and development intensity would not be unplanned and would be consistent 
with SCAG’s assumptions regarding population growth. Since the 2020 Los Angeles 
County Fire District Facilities Master Plan did not identify a need for  improvements for 
Fire Station 30 and the proposed project is consistent with regional population growth 
forecasts utilized in the Los Angeles County Fire District Facilities Master Plan, the DEIR 
adequately evaluates potential environmental impacts pursuant to CEQA Guidelines. The 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-16 PlaceWorks 

comment is acknowledged for the record and will be forwarded to the decision-making 
bodies for their review and consideration. 

A2-6 This comment raises concerns regarding the increase in residents and new jobs facilitated 
by the Specific Plan and the potential effects to fire services. As discussed in Section 5.10, 
Population and Housing, page 5.10-9, Impact 5.10-1, the anticipated net population growth 
of  6,868 residents and 56 jobs associated with the proposed project would be within the 
assumed population growth and forecast numbers of  jobs under SCAG projections for 
the City. Population growth would not be unplanned and would be consistent with existing 
regional planning assumptions regarding population growth. As discussed under response 
to comment A2-5, if  future facilities are necessary to meet project demand as a result of  
growth facilitated by the Specific Plan, the Los Angeles County Fire Department will 
evaluate projects at the appropriate level of  analysis as part of  the development review 
process. Improvements to facilities would also be evaluated on an ongoing basis through 
updates to the Los Angeles County Fire District Facilities Master Plan. Since the 2020 Los 
Angeles County Fire District Facilities Master Plan did not identify a need for  
improvements for Fire Station 30 and the proposed project is consistent with regional 
population growth forecasts utilized in the Los Angeles County Fire District Facilities 
Master Plan, the DEIR adequately evaluates potential environmental impacts with respect 
to new or expanded facilities associated with fire protection and emergency services. 

A2-7 This comment raises concerns regarding the trip generation forecast used in the DEIR 
and requests that further analysis and mitigation measures be incorporated to fully analyze 
the traffic impacts associates with Metro’s Southeast Gateway Line terminus location. The 
Pioneer Boulevard Light Rail Station would be developed as the southern terminus of  the 
Metro light rail line extension, which is analyzed in Metro’s West Santa Ana Branch Transit 
Corridor Project EIR and is not a part of  the proposed project. The Final EIR for the 
Metro light rail line extension was certified April 2024. However, the methodology to 
determine trip generation is provided in Section H, Project Trip Generation, of  the 
Transportation Impact Study (see Appendix H of  the DEIR).  

Trip generation estimates the total arriving and departing traffic volumes on a peak hour 
and daily basis. Trip generation informs trip distribution, which identifies the origins and 
destinations of  inbound and outbound project traffic volumes, and traffic assignment, 
which involves the allocation of  project traffic to study area streets and intersections. 

Trip generation rates provided in the Institute of  Transportation Engineers’ (ITE) Trip 
Generation Manual were utilized to forecast vehicular traffic generation for existing 
conditions, in order to identify the net change resulting from the proposed project. 
Specifically, land use trip rates were utilized to forecast the traffic volumes generated by 
the existing land uses present on each of  the parcels identified for potential 
redevelopment, which are provided on page 4 of  the Transportation Impact Study.  



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

June 2025 Page 2-17 

As the commenter notes, a 25 percent trip reduction adjustment was applied to the 
proposed project trip generation forecast for all proposed land uses to reflect the mixed-
use nature of  the proposed zoning and land use assumptions. The adjustment accounts 
for the synergy among the specific plan land uses that is expected to result in increased 
activation and walkability in the Downtown Artesia area due to the location of  the new 
Metro Station. The mixed-use nature of  the proposed Specific Plan will allow for shorter 
trips between various land use components to be completed on foot or by bicycle, 
resulting in fewer vehicular trips than would be forecast for each land use component on 
a stand-alone basis. In addition, a 10 percent adjustment was applied to the proposed non-
residential land uses to reflect the anticipated use of  light-rail transit in the specific plan 
area upon completion of  the Metro Southwest Gateway Line. The Specific Plan area falls 
within 0.5 miles of  the planned Southeast Gateway Line Pioneer Station.  

The commenter states that although trip generation adjustments are generally acceptable, 
additional analysis should be conducted because the Downtown Specific Plan area will 
serve as the terminus location for the future Southeast Gateway Line, which is anticipated 
to generate more vehicle trips than other, non-terminus stations. However, the 
Transportation Impact Study notes that the 10 percent transit reduction is consistent with 
typical practice in the Southern California region. Many agencies, including the City of  
Los Angeles, allow between 10 and 25 percent transit reductions for projects within 
0.5 mile of  major transit facilities such as light rail stations. Therefore, the 10 percent trip 
reduction was applied to provide a conservative trip forecast and thus adequately assess 
potential traffic impacts associated with the Southeast Gateway Line terminus location. 
Furthermore, and as discussed above, the Pioneer Boulevard Light Rail Station would be 
developed as the southern terminus of  the Metro light rail line extension, which is 
analyzed in Metro’s West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor Project EIR and is not a part 
of  the proposed project. The Final EIR for the Metro light rail line extension was certified 
April 2024.  

It should be noted that pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21099, “automobile 
delay, as described solely by level of  service (LOS) or similar measures of  vehicular 
capacity or traffic congestion shall not be considered a significant impact on the 
environment.” As a result of  SB 743 and the revisions to the CEQA Guidelines, level of  
service may no longer be used to identify transportation impacts in CEQA. However, the 
implementation of  VMT does not prevent agencies from continuing to analyze delay or 
LOS outside of  CEQA review for other transportation planning or analysis purposes. As 
part of  a project’s discretionary review and approval process, the City has the authority to 
require additional local transportation network analyses and site access studies. 
Specifically, the County Guidelines require an operational analysis of  intersections in the 
vicinity of  a proposed project to evaluate site access and circulation constraints that may 
be caused or worsened by project-generated traffic. Therefore, future projects facilitated 
by the Specific Plan will be reviewed on a project-by-project basis to ensure compliance 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 2-18 PlaceWorks 

with CEQA and non-CEQA transportation and traffic impacts. Therefore, the DEIR 
adequately evaluates potential environmental impacts pursuant to CEQA, with respect to 
trip generation as it relates to VMT, and no additional analysis with respect to trip 
generation or traffic is warranted.  

A2-8 This comment raises concerns regarding traffic and parking impacts to properties in 
Cerritos. See comment A2-7 regarding traffic concerns and LOS. Chapter 6.7 of  the 
Specific Plan outlines the parking requirements for residential and non-residential uses. 
Parking Standards are provided in Table 6.9, Parking Requirement By Use Type. 
Additional parking standards apply to off-street loading space, surface parking, residential 
garages, and parking garages. Parking is not an environmental topic addressed under 
Appendix G of  the CEQA Guidelines. With regard to future development facilitated by 
the Specific Plan, as specified in PRC Section 21099(d)(1), aesthetic and parking impacts 
of  a residential, mixed-use residential, or employment center project on an infill site in a 
transit priority area shall not be considered significant impacts on the environment, 
provided the project meets all the following three criteria—the project is in a transit 
priority area; an infill site; and residential, mixed-use residential, or an employment center. 
Additionally, development facilitated by the Specific Plan would be evaluated by the City 
of  Artesia and in collaboration with the City of  Cerritos as applicable, on a project-by-
project basis and would comply with City of  Artesia development standards regarding 
parking. This comment does not identify a deficiency in the DEIR nor a new or 
exacerbated potential significant environmental impact. Therefore, no changes to the 
DEIR are required.  

A2-9 This comment concludes the letter submitted by the City of  Cerrtios and requests a copy 
of  any further notices regarding the proposed project. In accordance with CEQA 
Guidelines, the City of  Cerritos will be notified of  future actions or projects in compliance 
with CEQA. This comment does not identify a deficiency in the DEIR nor a new or 
exacerbated significant environmental impact. This comment is acknowledged for the 
record and will be forwarded to the decision-making bodies for their review and 
consideration. 

 



 

June 2025 Page 3-1 

3. Revisions to the DEIR 
3.1 INTRODUCTION 
This section contains revisions to the DEIR based upon (1) additional or revised information required to 
prepare a response to a specific comment; (2) applicable updated information that was not available at the time 
of  DEIR publication; and/or (3) typographical errors. Changes made to the DEIR are identified here in 
strikeout text to indicate deletions and in underlined text to signify additions. 

3.2 DEIR REVISIONS IN RESPONSE TO WRITTEN COMMENTS 
The following text has been revised in response to comments received on the DEIR. 

Page 5.11-3,Section 5.11, Public Services. The following text has been revised to reflect changes based on 
comments received for public services.  

LACFD Fire Station 30 serves the project area. It is on the corner of  South Street and Pioneer Boulevard along 
the project area boundaries and in the City of  Cerritos. Fire Station 30 serves both the City of  Artesia and the 
City of  the Cerritos.  

Page 5.12-6,Section 5.12, Public Services. The following text has been revised to reflect changes based on 
comments received for public services.  

A minimum of  two hundred (200) one hundred fifty (150) square feet of  open space per unit, with dimensions 
no less than ten (10) feet. The provided open space may be private, common, or a combination of  both. 

Page 3-15, Section 3.3.1 Description of  the Project. Figure 3-6 Proposed Zoning Districts has been updated to 
reflect the addition of  development standards for setbacks. Refer to Section 6.2.3.4 of  the Specific Plan. 

 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Revisions to the Draft EIR 

Page 3-2 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Appendix 

June 2025 

Appendix A. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  F I N A L  E I R  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Appendix 

 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 



June 2025 | Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
State Clearinghouse No. 2024020999

ARTESIA DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
City of Artesia 

Prepared for: 

City of Artesia 
Salvador Lopez, Jr., Interim Community Development Director 

18747 Clarkdale Avenue 
Artesia, California 90701 

562.865.6262 

Prepared by: 

PlaceWorks 
Contact: Addie Farrell, Principal 

700 Flower St, Suite 600 
Los Angeles, California 90017 

213.623.1443 
info@placeworks.com 
www.placeworks.com 

A-1
~ PLACEWORKS 



A-2



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Table of Contents 

June 2025 Page i 

Section Page 

1. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................. 1 
1.1 PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM ............................ 1 
1.2 PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS ....................................................................................................................... 2 
1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS ........................................................................................................................ 5 

2. MITIGATION MONITORING PROCESS ......................................................................................... 7 
2.1 MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM ORGANIZATION ........................................................... 7 
2.2 DISPUTE RESOLUTION .................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.3 ENFORCEMENT ................................................................................................................................................. 8 

3. MITIGATION MONITORING REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................. 9 
3.1 PREMONITORING MEETING ...................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 CATEGORIZED MITIGATION MEASURES/MATRIX ......................................................................... 9 
3.3 IN-FIELD MONITORING ................................................................................................................................ 9 
3.4 DATABASE MANAGEMENT .......................................................................................................................... 9 
3.5 COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTORS ................................................................................................ 9 
3.6 LONG-TERM MONITORING ........................................................................................................................ 9 

4. MITIGATION MONITORING REPORTS ....................................................................................... 21 
4.1 FIELD CHECK REPORT ................................................................................................................................ 21 
4.2 IMPLEMENTATION COMPLIANCE REPORT ...................................................................................... 21 
4.3 DISPUTE/ENFORCEMENT REPORT ...................................................................................................... 21 

5. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT ...................................................................................................... 23 
6. REPORT PREPARATION ............................................................................................................. 25 

6.1 LIST OF PREPARERS ....................................................................................................................................... 25 

List of  Tables 

Table Page 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements .............................................................................................. 11 

A-3



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

Table of Contents 

Page ii PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

A-4



June 2025 Page 1 

1. Introduction 
1.1 PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 

PROGRAM 
The City of  Artesia (City) is the lead agency for the proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan (proposed 
project) and has developed this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) as a vehicle for 
monitoring and ensuring the successful implementation of  mitigation measures outlined in the City of  Artesia 
proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR), State Clearinghouse No. 
2024020999. As the lead agency, the City is responsible for implementing the MMRP, which has been prepared 
in conformance with Section 21081.6 of  the California Public Resources Code, as follows: 

(a) When making findings required by paragraph (1) of  subdivision (a) of  Section 21081 or 
when adopting a mitigated negative declaration pursuant to paragraph (2) of  subdivision 
(c) of  Section 21080, the following requirements shall apply: 

(1) The public agency shall adopt a reporting or monitoring program for the changes made 
to the project or conditions of  project approval, adopted in order to mitigate or avoid 
significant effects on the environment. The reporting or monitoring program shall be 
designed to ensure compliance during project implementation. For those changes which 
have been required or incorporated into the project at the request of  a responsible agency 
or a public agency having jurisdiction by law over natural resources affected by the project, 
that agency shall, if  so requested by the lead or responsible agency, prepare and submit a 
proposed reporting or monitoring program. 

(2) The lead agency shall specify the location and custodian of  the documents or other 
material which constitute the record of  proceedings upon which its decision is based. 

The MMRP consists of  mitigation measures that avoid, reduce, and/or fully mitigate potential environmental 
impacts. The mitigation measures have been identified and recommended through preparation of  the EIR and 
drafted to meet the requirements of  Public Resources Code, Section 21081.6.  

A-5



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 2 PlaceWorks 

1.2 PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 
1.2.1 Project Location 
The proposed Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area (Specific Plan area or project site) is in an urbanized area 
in the City of  Artesia, Los Angeles County. The City is 19 miles southeast of  Downtown Los Angeles; it shares 
its eastern, southern, and western boundaries with the City of  Cerritos and its northern boundary with the City 
of  Norwalk.  

The project site encompasses 70.8 acres known as the Artesia Downtown district, including the blocks adjoining 
Pioneer Boulevard to the southeast and ending at 180th Street to the north. The northern portion of  the project 
site (north of  Metro’s Southeast Gateway Line light rail project) is bounded by Alburtis Avenue and Corby 
Avenue to the west, 180th Street to the north, Arline Avenue to the east, and 188th Street to the south. The 
project site extends south of  the Southeast Gateway Line to the future Pioneer Boulevard light rail station and 
includes the area between 188th Street and the La Belle Chateau Mobile Home Park, and to Pioneer Boulevard 
on the east and Jersey Avenue on the west. The nearest freeway providing regional access to the project site is 
State Route (SR-) 91, a multilane freeway that divides the northern end of  the City.  

1.2.2 Project Description 
The proposed project would implement new land use, zoning, and development standards to guide the scale 
of  future development and growth in Artesia’s Downtown district as the City prepares for the planned 
expansion of  a new Metro light rail line (referred to as the Southeast Gateway Line) that would connect 
southeastern Los Angeles County communities, including Artesia, to Downtown Los Angeles. The new Metro 
light rail line extension is anticipated to connect to Pioneer Boulevard in 2035.1 The Final EIR for the Metro 
light rail line extension was certified April 2024.  

While there are no specific development projects proposed at this time, the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan 
would establish goals and objectives, development standards, and implementation actions associated with land 
use, mobility, and infrastructure and establish a transit-oriented plan that would provide new opportunities for 
housing, retail/commercial, and entertainment uses. The proposed project would establish the necessary plans, 
development standards, regulations, infrastructure requirements, and implementation programs on which 
subsequent project-related development activities in the Specific Plan area would be based. The following 
sections discuss components of  the proposed project. 

1.2.2.1 LAND USE PLAN 

As shown on Figure 3-6, Proposed Zoning Districts, of  the Draft EIR, the land use plan divides the project site 
into six zoning districts that allow for a range of  land uses and density within a defined building envelope. The 

 
1  The Pioneer Boulevard Light Rail Station would be developed as the southern terminus of a 14.5-mile segment that connects 

southeast Los Angeles to downtown Los Angeles. The forecast completion date is 2035 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit 
Authority (Metro). 2024. Southeast Gateway Line (previously West Santa Ana Branch Transit Corridor). 
https://www.metro.net/projects/southeastgateway/. (Metro 2024). 

A-6



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

June 2025 Page 3 

zones would also implement the City’s urban design objectives for each part of  the project site to establish and 
maintain attractive distinctions between each zone. The six zoning districts are: 

 Downtown North. The Downtown North District encompasses 15.3 acres and would become the 
northern gateway and anchor to Downtown Artesia. This district would allow for higher density mixed-use 
development at 65 dwelling units per acre (du/ac). The southwest corner of  this district would allow four- 
to five-story mixed-use development and two- and three-story townhomes. Where the City owns property 
at the northwest corner of  183rd Street and Pioneer Boulevard, a public-private partnership would be 
encouraged for development of  a public parking structure with ground-floor retail uses. The parking 
structure would serve visitors, residents, and employees as they travel to and from Downtown Artesia and 
the 91 freeway to the north. The post office at 183rd Street and Albertis Avenue is expected to remain. 

 Pioneer Boulevard. The Pioneer Boulevard District encompasses 8.8. acres, fronts Pioneer Boulevard 
north of  the future Metro Pioneer Boulevard light rail station and is in the center of  Downtown Artesia. 
This area is composed of  narrow parcels with a continuous street frontage of  one-story commercial 
establishments such as restaurants, markets, and jewelry shops. Although significant new development is 
not expected in this district, the district would allow for three-story buildings at 50 du/ac or 60 du/ac by 
utilizing the Downtown Density Bonus Program.  

 Downtown South. The Downtown South District encompasses 23.1 acres and would become the 
southern gateway to downtown Artesia and the City. This district would allow four- to six-story mixed-use 
development at 75 du/ac and incorporate land uses such as ground-floor retail, a hotel, townhomes, and 
neighborhood parks for residents and visitors. A Metro parking structure is planned in the South Street 
Mixed District just south of  the transit station.2 

 188th Street / Corby Avenue. The 188th Street/Corby Avenue District encompasses 4.6 acres and would 
be south of  the future Metro station; it presently includes residential and light industrial uses. This district 
would allow for residential uses such as duplex, triplex and townhomes at 65 du/ac and commercial office 
and retail in a horizontal mixed-use format. 

 Downtown Neighborhood. The Downtown Neighborhood District encompasses 9.4 acres and would 
be in the residential west and east edges of  the Downtown area along Corby Avenue and Arline Avenue. 
The Downtown Neighborhood District would retain its residential character at 40 du/ac. 

 Chateau Estates. The Le Belle Chateau Estates Mobile Home Park District encompasses 9.6 acres and 
sits at the southern edge of  the project site. Although the proposed project would establish new 
development standards for the Chateau Estates District, the mobile home park use would be maintained 
in this district. The Chateau Estates District would retain its residential character at 11 du/ac.  

 
2  A 3.3-acre, four-story parking structure with up to 1,100 parking spaces would be located south of the Pioneer Station. Access to 

the parking facility and station platform would be via Pioneer Boulevard and Corby Avenue. Pedestrian access from Pioneer 
Boulevard to the parking facility would be via Pioneer Boulevard from the southeast end of the station platform (Metro 2024).  

A-7



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 4 PlaceWorks 

1.2.2.2 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

The proposed project would establish development standards related to the physical form and design of  both 
new and renovated buildings and properties in the project site. Development standards would include 
requirements for site planning (i.e., setbacks from public rights-of-way and other structures); open space and 
landscaping standards; building mass, scale, and maximum heights; materials and finishes; parking and loading; 
and frontage design standards.  

1.2.2.3 MOBILITY AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

The proposed project includes mobility policies and standards reflective of  a long-term vision to maximize 
accessibility of  Downtown Artesia that is centered around the development of  a transit-oriented community, 
enhancing first/last mile and complete street elements that dedicate space and amenities for people walking, 
bicycling, and accessing transit. The proposed project aims to complete the gaps in the bicycle network, enhance 
the pedestrian network, boost transportation options by adding micro-mobility, and adjust the parking network 
to manage the curb space for continuously changing needs and to construct parking structures at the edges of  
Downtown. Additionally, the proposed project identifies improvements to the infrastructure system as a result 
of  implementation of  the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan with respect to water supply, sewage, and storm 
drainage. 

1.2.2.4 IMPLEMENTATION ACTIONS 

The goals and objectives of  the proposed project would be implemented through implementation policies and 
programs. The proposed project would establish the implementation process associated with the Specific Plan. 

1.2.2.5 INCENTIVES AND BONUSES 

Community benefits have been included as part of  the proposed project, including a new Downtown Density 
Bonus program. Additional development potential in exchange for community benefits would be granted to 
applicants by the City Council, following policies and procedures adopted by the City of  Artesia. Applicants 
utilizing the Downtown Density Bonus program would require a statutory development agreement with the 
City or a covenant between the City and developer.  

1.2.2.6 OPPORTUNITY SITES 

The proposed project includes buildout projections associated with the likely redevelopment of  Opportunity 
Sites based on the anticipated levels of  density and intensity for each land use category. The proposed project 
has identified 53 parcels within the Specific Plan area that could support future redevelopment (redevelopment 
opportunity sites). Criteria for selecting these sites are described in detail in the Specific Plan. For purposes of  
analysis, the Draft EIR conservatively assumed redevelopment of  the 53 redevelopment opportunity sites using 
the by-right development standards.  

A-8



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

June 2025 Page 5 

1.3 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
The level of  significance is identified for each impact in the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR). 
Although the criteria for determining significance are different for each topic area, the environmental analysis 
applied a uniform classification of  the impacts based on definitions consistent with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines: 

 No impact. The project would not change the environment. 

 Less than significant. The project would not cause any substantial, adverse change in the environment. 

 Less than significant with mitigation incorporated. The EIR includes mitigation measures that avoid 
substantial adverse impacts on the environment. 

 Significant and unavoidable. The project would cause a substantial adverse effect on the environment, 
and no feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce the impact to a less than significant level. 

1.3.1 Impacts Found Not to Be Significant 
 Aesthetics 
 Energy 

 Hydrology and Water Quality 

 Land Use and Planning  

 Population and Housing  

 Public Services 
 Recreation 
 Utilities and Service Systems 

1.3.2 Potentially Significant Adverse Impacts That Can Be Mitigated, Avoided, 
or Substantially Lessened 

 Air Quality 

 Cultural Historic Resources 

 Geology and Soils 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  

 Noise 
 Transportation 
 Tribal Cultural Resources 

  

A-9



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

1. Introduction 

Page 6 PlaceWorks 

1.3.3 Significant and Unavoidable Impacts  
 Air Quality 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  
 Noise  

 

A-10



June 2025 Page 7 

2. Mitigation Monitoring Process 
2.1 MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM ORGANIZATION 
Overall MMRP management is the responsibility of  the City of  Artesia. The City’s technical consultants (CEQA 
consultant, etc.) may perform related monitoring tasks under the direction of  the environmental monitor (i.e., 
the qualified/professional expert in charge of  monitoring and/or implementing mitigation) if  they are 
contracted by the City.  

2.1.1 City of Artesia 
As the lead agency, the City is responsible for the review of  all monitoring reports, enforcement actions, and 
document disposition. The City will rely on information provided by individual monitors (CEQA consultant, 
etc.) as accurate and up to date, and will field check mitigation measure status, as required.  

2.1.2 Mitigation Monitoring Team 
The mitigation monitoring team, consisting of  the designated Project Manager (e.g., Community Development 
Director) and Technical Consultants (CEQA consultant, etc.) are responsible for monitoring implementation 
and compliance with all adopted mitigation measures and conditions of  approval. A major portion of  the team’s 
work will entail in-field monitoring and compliance report preparation. Implementation disputes are brought 
to the Project Manager, and any appeals would go to the City Manager and ultimately the City Council. 

2.1.3 Monitoring Team 
The following summarizes key positions in the MMRP and their respective functions: 

 Project Manager. Responsible for coordination of  mitigation monitoring team, technical consultants, 
report preparation, and overall program administration and document/report clearinghouse. 

 Construction Contractor. Responsible for coordination of  mitigation monitoring team; technical 
consultants; report preparation; and implementation the monitoring program, including overall program 
administration, document/report clearinghouse, and first phase of  dispute resolution. 

 Technical Consultants. Responsible for monitoring in respective areas of  expertise (CEQA consultant, 
project engineer, noise analyst/specialist). Report directly to the Project Manager. 

A-11



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

2. Mitigation Monitoring Process 

Page 8 PlaceWorks 

2.1.4 Recognized Experts 
The use of  recognized experts on the monitoring team is required to ensure compliance with scientific and 
engineering mitigation measures. The mitigation monitoring team’s recognized experts assess compliance with 
required mitigation measures, and recognized experts from responsible agencies consult with the Project 
Manager regarding disputes. 

2.2 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
If  the monitoring team determines that a mitigation measure, in the opinion of  the monitor, has not been 
implemented or has not been implemented correctly, the problem will be brought before the Project Manager 
for resolution. The decision of  the Project Manager is final unless appealed to the City Manager. The Project 
Manager will have the authority to issue stop-work order until the dispute is resolved. 

2.3 ENFORCEMENT 
Public agencies may enforce conditions of  approval through their existing police powers using stop-work 
orders, fines, infraction citations, revocation of  approval/permits, or in some cases, notice of  violation for tax 
purposes. 

A-12



June 2025 Page 9 

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 
3.1 PREMONITORING MEETING 
A premonitoring meeting will be scheduled to review mitigation measures, implementation requirements, 
schedule conformance, and mitigation monitoring team responsibilities. At such meetings, the monitoring team 
rules are established, the entire mitigation monitoring program is presented, and any misunderstandings are 
resolved. 

3.2 CATEGORIZED MITIGATION MEASURES/MATRIX 
Project-specific mitigation measures have been categorized in matrix format, as shown in Table 1, Mitigation 
Monitoring Requirements. The matrix identifies the environmental factor, specific mitigation measures, schedule, 
and responsible monitor. The mitigation matrix will serve as the basis for scheduling the implementation of  
and compliance with all mitigation measures.  

3.3 IN-FIELD MONITORING 
Project monitors and technical subconsultants shall exercise caution and professional practices at all times when 
monitoring implementation of  mitigation measures. Protective wear (e.g., hard hat, glasses) shall be worn at all 
times in construction areas. Injuries shall be immediately reported to the mitigation monitoring team. 

3.4 DATABASE MANAGEMENT 
All mitigation monitoring reports, letters, and memos shall be prepared utilizing electronic software, such as 
Microsoft Word, Adobe, etc. 

3.5 COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTORS 
The construction manager is responsible for coordination of  contractors and for contractor completion of  
required mitigation measures. 

3.6 LONG-TERM MONITORING 
Long-term monitoring related to several mitigation measures will be required, including review of  project plans 
to ensure compliance with the most recent versions of  the California Building Code and California Fire Code. 
Post-construction fire inspections are conducted on a routine basis by the City of  Artesia  Fire Department. 

  

A-13



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 10 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

A-14



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 11 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

AIR QUALITY 
AQ-1 Prior to discretionary approval by the City of Artesia for development projects subject 

to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) review (i.e., nonexempt projects), 
project applicants shall prepare and submit a technical assessment evaluating 
potential project construction-related air quality impacts to the City of Artesia Planning 
Division for review and approval. The evaluation shall be prepared in conformance 
with South Coast Air Quality Management District (South Coast AQMD) methodology 
for assessing air quality impacts. If construction-related criteria air pollutants are 
determined to have the potential to exceed the South Coast AQMD–adopted 
thresholds of significance, the City of Artesia Building & Safety Division shall require 
feasible mitigation measures to reduce air quality emissions. Potential measures shall 
be incorporated as conditions of approval for a project and may include, but are not 
limited to the following: 
• Require fugitive dust control measures that exceed South Coast Air Quality 

Management District’s Rule 403, such as: 
- Requiring use of nontoxic soil stabilizers to reduce wind erosion. 

- Applying water every four hours to active soil disturbing activities. 

- Tarping and/or maintaining a minimum of 24 inches of freeboard on trucks 
hauling dirt, sand, soil, or other loose materials. 

• Using construction equipment rated by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency as having Tier 4 interim or higher exhaust emission limits. 

• Ensuring construction equipment is properly serviced and maintained to the 
manufacturer’s standards. 

• Limiting nonessential idling of construction equipment to no more than five 
consecutive minutes. 

• Using Super-Compliant VOC paints for coating of architectural surfaces 
whenever possible. A list of Super-Compliant architectural coating manufactures 
can be found on the South Coast Air Quality Management District’s website at: 
https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/compliance/vocs/architectural-
coatings/super-compliant-coatings. 

These identified measures shall be incorporated into all appropriate construction 
documents (e.g., construction management plans) submitted to the City and shall be 
verified by the City’s Planning Department.  

Future Project 
Applicants  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Planning Department  

 

A-15

I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 12 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

CULTURAL RESOURCES 
CUL-1 Historic Resources Assessment. Prior to the approval of a discretionary project 

proposed on a parcel(s) within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area that includes 
a building or structure more than 45 years old and that has not previously been 
evaluated for potential historic significance, the City shall require the project 
proponent to retain an architectural historian meeting the minimum professional 
qualifications standards (PQS) set forth by the Secretary of the Interior (codified in 36 
Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] Part 61; 48 Federal Register 44738–44739) 
(Qualified Architectural Historian) to conduct a historic resources assessment of 
affected properties. The assessment shall include a records search at the South 
Central Coastal Information Center or review of a prior record search conducted within 
the previous one year; a review of other pertinent archives and sources; a pedestrian 
field survey; recordation of all identified historic architectural resources on California 
Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) 523 forms; evaluation of resources which 
may be eligible for listing in the California Register (i.e., meets the definition for 
historical resource in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5[a]), and for local listing; and 
preparation of a technical report documenting the methods and results of the 
assessment for each future project facilitated by Artesia Downtown Specific Plan 
measures and actions.  
If a historic architectural resource is found eligible by the Qualified Architectural 
Historian, then the Qualified Architectural Historian shall coordinate with the project 
proponent and City to ensure the project is constructed in conformance with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. All reports resulting from implementation of this 
measure shall be filed with the South Central Coastal Information Center (including 
but not limited to historic resources assessments and Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards plan reviews). On the basis of this evaluation, if it is determined that the 
subject property contains a historic resource, Mitigation Measure CUL-2 shall be 
implemented.  

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Qualified Cultural 
Resources 
Specialist  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

CUL-2 Avoidance or Minimization of Effects on Identified Historic Resources. If it is 
determined that the subject property contains a historic resource the project 
proponent shall consult with City staff to determine whether a project can be feasibly 
redesigned or modified to avoid significant adverse impacts on listed and identified 
eligible historic resource(s), including historic districts. If avoidance of historic 
resource(s) is not feasible, where feasibility is defined as “capable of being 
accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into 
account economic, environmental, legal, social, and technological factors,” the project 
proponent shall seek to reduce the effect on historic resource(s) to a less-than-

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Professional 
Archaeologist  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-16



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 13 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

significant level pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15364. Projects that conform to 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties are 
considered to have a less-than-significant effect on historic architectural resources.  

CUL-3 Cultural Resources Assessment. For discretionary projects that involve ground-
disturbing activities during construction on areas within the Artesia Downtown Specific 
Plan area where no previous ground disturbance or excavation has occurred, or 
ground-disturbing activities would occur in native soil, a site-specific cultural resources 
study shall be completed prior to project approval. The study shall include records 
searches of the California Historical Resources Information System and the Sacred 
Lands File maintained by the Native American Heritage Commission. The records 
searches shall determine if the proposed project has been previously surveyed for 
archaeological resources, identify, and characterize the results of previous cultural 
resource surveys, and disclose any cultural resources that have been recorded and/or 
evaluated. 
If the records search identifies a sensitivity for archaeological resources, an 
archaeological resources assessment shall be performed under the supervision of an 
archaeologist that meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification 
Standards (PQS) in either prehistoric or historic archaeology. If the archaeological 
assessment indicates the area to be of medium sensitivity for archaeological 
resources, an archaeologist who meets the PQS shall be retained on an on-call basis.  
If the archaeological assessment indicated the area to be highly sensitive for 
archaeological resources, a qualified archaeologist shall monitor all ground-disturbing 
construction and pre-construction activities.  
 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Professional 
Archaeologist  

During Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

CUL-4  All Projects. If cultural resources are discovered during ground-disturbing activities, 
all ground-disturbing activities within 50 feet of the find shall be halted until a meeting 
is convened between the developer, archaeologist, tribal representatives, and the 
Director of the Community Development Department. At the meeting, the significance 
of the discoveries shall be discussed and after consultation with the tribal 
representatives, developer, and archaeologist, a decision shall be made, with the 
concurrence of the Director of the Community Development Department, as to the 
appropriate mitigation (documentation, recovery, avoidance, etc.) for the cultural 
resources. 
 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Professional 
Archaeologist 

During Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

A-17

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 14 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

GEO-1 Low-to-High Sensitivity. For discretionary projects that involve ground-disturbing 
activities during construction on areas within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan area 
where no previous ground disturbance or excavation has occurred, or ground-
disturbing activities would occur in native soil, the project applicant shall consult with a 
geologist or paleontologist to confirm the level of sensitivity for paleontological 
resources. If confirmed that underlying sediments may have moderate to high 
sensitivity, a qualified paleontologist shall be retained to develop and implement a 
Paleontological Resources Impact Mitigation Plan. The paleontologist shall have the 
authority to halt construction during ground disturbing activities as outlined in 
Mitigation Measure GEO-2.  

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Licensed 
Professional 
Engineer 

Prior to Issuance of a 
Grading Permit and 
during Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Building and Safety 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

GEO-2 All Projects. In the event of any fossil discovery, regardless of depth or geologic 
formation, ground disturbing activities shall halt within a 50-foot radius of the find until 
its significance can be determined by a qualified paleontologist. Significant fossils 
shall be recovered, prepared to the point of curation, identified by qualified experts, 
listed in a database to facilitate analysis, and deposited in a designated 
paleontological curation facility in accordance with the standards of the Society of 
Vertebrate Paleontology. The most likely repository is the Natural History Museum of 
Los Angeles County. The repository shall be identified, and a curatorial arrangement 
shall be signed as part of the Paleontological Impact Mitigation Plan (GEO-1) and 
prior to collection of the fossils. 
 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Certified 
Paleontologist 

Prior to Issuance of a 
Grading Permit and 
during Ground-
Disturbing Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-18



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 15 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
GHG-1 New development within the Artesia Downtown Specific Plan shall implement the 

following, voluntary provisions of the California Green Building Standards Code 
(CALGreen). The project applicant/developer(s) shall provide documentation (e.g., 
building plans) of implementation of the applicable voluntary measures to the City of 
Artesia Building and Safety Department prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 Residential Structures with Three or Fewer Stories. For residential land 

uses with three or fewer stories, the project developer(s) shall: 

• Design and build condominium/townhouses dwellings that have an 
attached private garage to have a dedicated electric circuit to support 
electric vehicle charging, as outlined in the Residential Voluntary 
Measures of CALGreen, Division A4.1, Planning and Design, as 
outlined under Section A4.106.8.1.  

• Design and build residential buildings to, at a minimum, meet the Tier 
2 electric vehicle parking standards of the Residential Voluntary 
Measures of CALGreen, Division A4.1, Planning and Design, as 
outlined under Section A4.106.8.2.1. 

• Design and build residential buildings to meet the short- and long-
term bicycle parking standards of the Residential Voluntary Measures 
of CALGreen, Division A4.1, Planning and Design, as outlined under 
Section A4.106.9. 

• Design and build residential buildings to meet energy efficiency 
requirements of the Residential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, 
Division A4.2, Energy Efficiency, as outlined under Section A4.203.1. 

 
 Nonresidential Structures and Residential Structures with Four or More 

Stories. For nonresidential land uses and residential land uses that are four 
or more stories, the applicant/developer shall: 

• Design and build structures to, at a minimum, meet the Tier 2 
advanced energy efficiency requirements of the Nonresidential 
Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, Division A5.2, Energy Efficiency, as 
outlined under Section A5.203.1.2.2. 

• For projects with off-street parking, design the proposed parking to 
provide parking for low-emitting, fuel-efficient, and carpool/van 
vehicles. At minimum, the number of preferential parking spaces shall 

Future Project 
Applicants and City 
of Artesia Public 
Works and 
Engineering 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department  

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-19

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 16 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

equal the Tier 2 Nonresidential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, 
Division A5.1, Planning and Design, Section A5.106.5.1.2.  

• For projects with off-street parking, design the proposed parking to 
provide electric vehicle (EV) charging stations. At minimum, the 
number of EV charging stations shall comply with the Tier 2 
Nonresidential Voluntary Measures of CALGreen, Division A5.1, 
Planning and Design, Section A5.106.5.3.3 or Section A5.106.5.3.4.   

GHG-2  For residential and nonresidential land use development projects, the 
project applicant/developer shall comply with the following: 

• All major appliances (e.g., dishwashers, refrigerators, clothes 
washers and dryers, and water heaters) provided/installed shall be 
Energy Star certified or of equivalent energy efficiency where 
applicable.  

• Installed water heaters shall meet a zero NOX emissions standard. 
• Installed central furnaces with a Rated Heat Input Capacity less than 

or equal to 2,000,000 British thermal units (Btu) per hour shall meet a 
zero NOX emissions standard. 

• Installed fireplaces shall be electric-powered only. 
Prior to the issuance of the certificate of occupancy, the City of 
Artesia Building and Safety Department shall verify implementation of 
these requirements. 

 

Future Project 
Applicants and City 
of Artesia Public 
Works and 
Engineering 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Prior to Discretionary 
Approval  

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

GHG-3 For nonresidential land use development projects, prior to issuance of the certificate 
of occupancy, the property owner shall provide documentation to the City of Artesia 
Building and Safety Department demonstrating enrollment in a 100 percent carbon-
free electricity energy plan, such as Southern California Edison’s Green Rate 
program, for proposed project building(s) when feasible. If a 100 percent carbon-free 
electricity plan is not available, the property owner shall enroll in an energy plan with 
the next highest carbon-free electricity until a 100 percent carbon-free electricity 
energy plan becomes available. Measures to achieve 100 percent carbon-free 
electricity use for the proposed project building(s) may include, but are not limited to, 
plans for 100 percent renewable electricity. If such carbon-free electricity energy plans 
are waitlisted, the property owner shall sign up onto the waiting list until such time a 
plan is available. 
 

Future Project 
Applicants and City 
of Artesia Public 
Works and 
Engineering 
Department and 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Prior to issuance of 
the Certificate of 
Occupancy  

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department 

 

A-20



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 17 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

NOISE  
N-1 Prior to any construction activity such as grading, site prep or issuance of building 

permits, a note shall be provided on construction plans indicating that during 
construction activities and phasing the project applicant shall be responsible for 
requiring contractors to implement the following measures to limit construction-related 
noise to a performance standard of 80 dBA Leq at the property line of the nearest 
sensitive receptor: 

• Per Section 5-2.06 of the Artesia Municipal Code, construction activity is limited 
to the daytime hours 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays or at any time on 
Sunday or Federal holiday. If construction outside of these hours is necessary 
for construction of a project under the Specific Plan, construction noise shall be 
limited to the City of Artesia nighttime exterior and interior noise standards for 
residential uses of 50 dBA and 45 dBA, respectively.  

• During the entire active construction period, equipment and trucks used for 
project construction shall utilize the best available noise control techniques (e.g., 
improved mufflers, use of intake silencers, ducts, engine enclosures, and 
acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds), wherever feasible. 

• Require that impact tools (e.g., jack hammers and hoe rams) be hydraulically or 
electrically powered wherever possible. Where the use of pneumatic tools is 
unavoidable, an exhaust muffler on the compressed air exhaust shall be used 
along with external noise jackets on the tools. 

• Stationary equipment such as generators, air compressors shall be located as 
far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive uses. 

• Stockpiling shall be located as far as feasible from nearby noise-sensitive 
receptors. 

• Construction traffic shall be limited—to the extent feasible—to approved haul 
routes established by the City. 

• At least 10 days prior to the start of construction activities, a sign shall be posted 
at the entrance(s) to the job site, clearly visible to the public, that includes 
permitted construction days and hours, as well as the telephone numbers of the 
City’s and contractor’s authorized representatives that are assigned to respond 
in the event of a noise or vibration complaint. If the authorized contractor’s 
representative receives a complaint, he/she shall investigate, take appropriate 
corrective action, and report the action to the City.  

• Signs shall be posted at the job site entrance(s), within the on-site construction 
zones, and along queueing lanes (if any) to reinforce the prohibition of 

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Construction 
Contractor 

Prior to Issuance of 
Demolition, Grading, 
and/or Building 
Permits and During 
Construction 
Activities 

City of Artesia 
Community 
Development 
Department and 
Building and Safety 
Department 

 

A-21

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 18 PlaceWorks 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

unnecessary engine idling. All other equipment shall be turned off if not in use 
for more than 5 minutes. 

• During the entire active construction period and to the extent feasible, the use of 
noise-producing signals, including horns, whistles, alarms, and bells, shall be for 
safety warning purposes only. The construction manager shall use smart back-
up alarms, which automatically adjust the alarm level based on the background 
noise level, or switch off back-up alarms and replace with human spotters in 
compliance with all safety requirements and laws. 

• Erect temporary noise barriers, where feasible, when construction noise is 
predicted to exceed the noise standards after other measures have been 
considered, would occur at nighttime, or when the anticipated construction 
duration is greater than is typical (e.g., two years or greater).  

N-2 Prior to issuance of a building permit for a project requiring pile driving during 
construction within 135 feet of fragile structures such as historical resources, 100 feet 
of non-engineered timber and masonry buildings (e.g., most residential buildings), or 
within 75 feet of engineered concrete and masonry (no plaster); or a vibratory roller 
within 25 feet of any structure, the project applicant shall prepare a noise and vibration 
analysis to assess and mitigate potential noise and vibration impacts related to these 
activities. This noise and vibration analysis shall be conducted by a qualified and 
experienced acoustical consultant or engineer. The vibration levels shall not exceed 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) architectural damage thresholds (e.g., 0.12 
in/sec PPV for fragile or historical resources, 0.2 in/sec PPV for non-engineered 
timber and masonry buildings, and 0.3 in/sec PPV for engineered concrete and 
masonry). If vibration levels would exceed this threshold, alternative uses such as 
static rollers and drilling piles as opposed to pile driving shall be used.  

Future Project 
Applicants and 
Qualified Acoustical 
Consultant 

Prior to Issuance of a 
Building Permit 

City of Artesia 
Community and 
Development 
Department and 
Building and Safety 
Department 

 

A-22



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

June 2025 Page 19 

Table 1 Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Mitigation Measure 
Responsibility for 
Implementation Timing 

Responsibility for 
Monitoring 

Monitor 
(Signature Required) 
(Date of Compliance) 

TRANSPORTATION  
T-1 At the time of project entitlement, the project developer shall ensure the 

implementation of California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Association (CAPCOA) 
2021 Handbook Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program T-16. 

• T-16. Unbundle Residential Parking Costs from Property Cost 
According to the CAPCOA 2021 Handbook, “this measure will unbundle 
or separate a residential project’s parking costs from property costs, 
requiring those who wish to purchase parking spaces do so at an 
additional cost. On the assumption that parking costs are passed to the 
vehicle owners/drivers utilizing the parking spaces, this measure results in 
decreased vehicle ownership and, therefore, a reduction in VMT and 
GHG emissions.” It is assumed that qualifying residential project within 
the Specific Plan area will comply with the provisions of California Civil 
Code Section 1947.1 resulting from Assembly Bill 1317 (2023, Carillo), 
which requires residential developments of 16 or more units located in 
Los Angeles County to unbundle parking from the cost of rent. A cost of 
$25.00 per month, or $300.00 per year, per leased parking space, is 
assumed for analysis purposes. No action is required by the City of 
Artesia to implement this measure, as project developers would be 
required to comply with all applicable State laws as the time of project 
entitlement. 

 

Future Project 
Applicant  

At the time of project 
entitlement  

City of Artesia 
Community and 
Development 
Department 

 

T-2 At the time of project operation, the developer shall and City shall continue to enforce 
California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Association (CAPCOA) 2021 Handbook 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program T-24. 

• T-24. Implement Market Price Public Parking (On-Street) 
According to the CAPCOA 2021 Handbook, “this measure will price all 
on-street parking in a given community. Increasing the costs of parking 
increases the total coast of driving to a location, incentivizing shifts to 
other modes and thus decreasing total VMT to and from the priced 
areas.” The City of Artesia currently provides priced on-street parking 
within the Specific Plan area, primarily along Pioneer Boulevard, 186th 
Street, and 187th Street. The City of Artesia should continue to implement 
the priced on-street parking which currently exists within the Specific Plan 
area. 

Future Project 
Applicant  

During project 
operation  

City of Artesia 
Community and 
Development 
Department 

 

A-23

I I 



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

3. Mitigation Monitoring Requirements 

Page 20 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

A-24



 

June 2025 Page 21 

4. Mitigation Monitoring Reports 
Mitigation monitoring reports are required to document compliance with the Mitigation Monitoring Program 
and to resolve disputes. Specific reports include: 

 Field Check Report 
 Implementation Compliance Report 
 Dispute/Enforcement Report 

4.1 FIELD CHECK REPORT 
Field check reports are required to record in-field compliance and conditions. 

4.2 IMPLEMENTATION COMPLIANCE REPORT 
The Implementation Compliance Report (ICR) is prepared to document the implementation of  mitigation 
measures on a phased basis, based on the information in Table 3-1. The report summarizes implementation 
compliance, including mitigation measures, date completed, and monitor’s signature. 

4.3 DISPUTE/ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
The Dispute/Enforcement Report (DER) is prepared to document the outcome of  the Project Manager or 
City Manager and becomes a portion of  the ICR. 

 

  

A-25



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

4. Mitigation Monitoring Reports 

Page 22 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

A-26



 

June 2025 Page 23 

5. Community Involvement 
Monitoring reports are public documents and are available for review by the general public. Discrepancies in 
monitoring reports can be taken to the Project Manager or Community Development Director by the general 
public. 

  

A-27



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

5. Community Involvement 

Page 24 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

A-28



 

June 2025 Page 25 

6. Report Preparation 
6.1 LIST OF PREPARERS 
6.1.1 City of Artesia, Planning Department 
Salvador Lopez, Jr., Interim Community Development Director 

Art Bashmakian, Senior Project Manager 

Karen Lee, Special Projects Manager 

6.1.2 PlaceWorks 
Addie Farrell, Managing Principal 

Jennifer Kelley, Senior Associate 

Itzeel Padilla, Project Planner  

  

A-29



A R T E S I A  D O W N T O W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  M I T I G A T I O N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  R E P O R T I N G  P R O G R A M  
C I T Y  O F  A R T E S I A  

6. Report Preparation 

Page 26 PlaceWorks 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

A-30



South St

186th St

185th St

Ro
se

to
n 

A
ve

Je
rs

ey
 A

ve
183rd St

Ashworth St

A
lb

ur
tis

 A
ve

A
rli

ne
 A

ve

187th St

180th St

178th St

188th St

C
or

by
 A

ve

G
rid

le
y 

Rd

Je
rs

ey
 A

ve

Pi
on

ee
r B

lv
d

Pi
on

ee
r B

lv
d

Pi
on

ee
r B

lv
d

C
la

rk
da

le
 A

ve

Se
in

e 
A

ve

D
ev

lin
 A

ve

El
ai

ne
 A

ve
South St

186th St

185th St

Ro
se

to
n 

A
ve

Je
rs

ey
 A

ve
183rd St

Ashworth St

A
lb

ur
tis

 A
ve

A
rli

ne
 A

ve

187th St

180th St

178th St

188th St

C
or

by
 A

ve

G
rid

le
y 

Rd

Je
rs

ey
 A

ve

Pi
on

ee
r B

lv
d

Pi
on

ee
r B

lv
d

Pi
on

ee
r B

lv
d

C
la

rk
da

le
 A

ve

Se
in

e 
A

ve

D
ev

lin
 A

ve

El
ai

ne
 A

ve
Lincoln Station 

Shopping Center
Lincoln Station 

Shopping Center

Bragg 
Elementary 

School

Bragg 
Elementary 

School

Artesia ParkArtesia Park
Cerritos PromenadeCerritos Promenade

Mobile Home ParkMobile Home Park

Shopping 
Center

Shopping 
Center

Shopping 
Center

Shopping 
Center

Southeast Gateway Line

Southeast Gateway Line

City of ArtesiaCity of Artesia
City of CerritosCity of Cerritos

Low Density Residential

General Plan Land Use
High Density Residential

General Commercial

Open Space
Institutional

South St. Gateway Commercial
City Center Mixed Use

PlaceWorks

A RT E S I A D O W N TO W N  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  D R A F T E I R
C I T Y O F  A RT E S I A

Figure 3-5 - Existing General Plan Land Use Map

Source: Generated using ArcMap 2023.

0

Scale (Feet)

735
Downtown Artesia Specific Plan Boundary

City Boundary

Future Metro Rail
Future Metro 
Pioneer Station


	PlanningCommission-2025-06-18
	Item 5A. 
	PC MINUTES 3-10-25
	PC MINUTES 5-20-25
	Item 7A. 
	Artesia_ADSP PC Reso No 2025-017P (CEQA)-c1
	Appendix-A_ADTSP MMRP_Final_05.29.25_OPT
	Artesia_ADSP PC Reso No 2025-18P (General Plan Amendment)-c1
	Artesia_ADSP PC Reso No 2025-19P (Establishing ADSP)-c1 (3)
	Artesia_ADSP Ordinance No. 25-971(Adopting  the ADSP)-c1_sledits - CLEAN
	Artesia_ADSP PC Reso No 2025-20P (Zoning Code Amendment)-c1 (3)
	ARTESIA_ADSP Ordinance No. 25-972 (Adopting  Zoning Amendment)-c1_sledits - CLEAN
	Artesia_DSP_Edits_Feb-to-June2025v2 (1)
	ADTSP_FEIR_Final_OPT[27]
	Attachment 8 General Plan Land Use Map

